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CORPORATE PROFILE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

ABE N R2BEH

InvesTech Holdings Limited (the “"Company”, “our” or “we", together
with all its subsidiaries, the "Group”) is mainly engaged in the
provision of network system integration including provision of
network infrastructure solutions, network professional services
and mobile internet software of mobile office automation software
business, the network equipment rental business and money lending
business. The shares of the Company (the “Shares") were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”) on 16 November 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ"))
Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO)
Mr. Lu Chengye
Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Appointed on 1 August 2020)
Mr. Ching Chau Wa (Resigned on 1 August 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek
(with his former name of Wong Tat Wai, Derek)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen

Mr. Huang Liangkuai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund (Chairman)
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen

Mr. Huang Liangkuai

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund

Mr. Huang Liangkuai

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Appointed on 1T August 2020)

Mr. Ching Chau Wa (Resigned on 1 August 2020)
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman)

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Appointed on 1 August 2020)
Mr. Ching Chau Wa (Resigned on 1 August 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Fung Siu Kei

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER

Room 1907-1909, 19/F.

Tower E2, Oriental Plaza

No. 1 East Chang An Avenue

Dong Cheng District, Beijing

The People's Republic of China ("PRC")

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

QAFB[ARABNER

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Standard Chartered Bank

LEGAL ADVISERS
Patrick Mak & Tse (as to Hong Kong Law)

AUDITORS
BDO Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

LISTING EXCHANGE INFORMATION

Place of Listing
Main Board, The Stock Exchange

STOCK CODE
1087

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.investech-holdings.com
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWBS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company (the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | hereby present to you the audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the "Year").

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continued to focus on its core business
of the IT infrastructure system integration and the sales of smart
office software. Mainland China continued to be the major source
of revenue contributed to the Group. The general business and
operating environment remains challenging throughout the Year
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic (the “COVID-19"). The
outbreak of COVID-19 had been causing certain level of disruptions
to the daily operation of the Group, especially in the first half of
the Year. For example, the implementation of pandemic prevention
measure increased the difficulties in our daily operations of business
activities, such as deferring product delivery and implementation
schedule. Similarly, the orders were also delayed as a result of the
late delivery of goods by our suppliers or lockdown of cities. These
situations delayed the recognition of revenue by deferring the orders
made by or provided to our customers. Nevertheless, the Group's
operations and business showed a gradual recovery in the second
half of the Year, and with our solid foundation and strong customer
relationship, the Group kept generating stable revenue and recorded
revenue of approximately RMB470.6 million for the Year (2019:
approximately RMB488.7 million).

The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately RMB52.8
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB12.2 million,
or approximately 18.8% as compared with that of approximately
RMB65.0 million for the corresponding period in 2019. The gross
profit margin for the Year decreased to approximately 11.2% from
approximately 13.3% for the corresponding period in 2019. The gross
profit margin of the Group was adversely affected by the increased
industry competition, and accordingly recorded a decrease.
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In order to maintain the Group's competitiveness and operating
efficiency, the Group effectively implemented cost control measures
and accordingly reduced the general and administrative expenses
during the Year. The economy slowdown resulted from the outbreak
of COVID-19 and ongoing geopolitical tension had also been
reflected in the valuation of the Group's goodwill and financial
assets, which had incurred impairment losses at an aggregate
of approximately RMB66.9 million (2019: approximately RMB3.8
million). As a result, the Group recorded a net loss after tax of
approximately RMB86.7 million (2019: approximately RMB24.7
million).

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The uncertainties stemming from ongoing geopolitical tensions and
other external political issues affected the Group's business and
financial results, especially the majority of the Group's revenue was
generated from the Mainland China by selling the product imported
from foreign manufacturers. During the Year, the Group proactively
diversified the respective risks and uncertainties by partnering
with manufacturers in the Mainland China in order to strengthen its
competitiveness in provision of wide range of products and services.
For example, in June 2020, the Group reached an agent cooperation
agreement with IBO Technology Company Limited for 5G pico base
stations series products exclusively sold and distributed by Wafer
Systems Limited to telecommunication operators in Sichuan Province
of the People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). This represented an
opportunity for the Group to enhance its business development in the
provision of network infrastructure solutions in the PRC.

On the other hand, the Group had also identified some business
opportunities during the outbreak of COVID-19 that led to slight
increase in demand and awareness of Smart Office Software
Solutions collaborated with the internet of things (loT) technology.
Such increase of demand was mainly caused by the closure of office
or work-from-home policy implemented by the business sector
during the Year. This new working culture promoted the usage of
cloud computing technology, B2B platform, Artificial Intelligence,
Software Defined Networking (SDN) technology in daily work among
the people.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS

Therefore, the development and enhancement of our smart office
software is expected to continuously assist the Group to seek for new
business opportunities in order to capture the future demand in the
application of 5G solutions.

OUTLOOK

The Group remains optimistic about the prospects of its business
in the long run, however, it is difficult to predict the development of
COVID-19 and the geopolitical tensions, the ultimate business impact
in respect of scope of service, supply chain and geographical results
could not be reasonably estimated at this moment. In view of this,
the Group had implemented multiple business strategies, including
identify new local suppliers, expand the service area to central Asian
countries and south-east Asian countries, design new software
solution for the recent change of working behavior, in order to
minimise the risks and adapt to the changes of business activities of
our customers. The Group will closely monitor the financial position
of the Group and changes of market condition and act promptly to
such changes.

Looking forward, the Group will look for challenges and
opportunities by building a new business ecosystem of the Group,
including branding our company, repositioning our existing products,
actively in identifying IT infrastructure and services related projects,
to become a one-stop solution IT service provider as a result of the
increasing demand and enterprise expenditure of IT services and IT
infrastructure since the outbreak of COVID-19 and the increasing of
the awareness of internet security issue. In addition, the Group will
keep identifying new partnership and investments opportunities in
local and overseas market, so as to strengthen our core business and
provide a better return to the shareholders (the "Shareholders") of
the Company.

Despite there are short term uncertainties due to the pandemic and

political conflicts, the Group is optimistic that we are well positioned
to benefit when the market becomes more stable.
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APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, | express my gratitu
for your continuous support to the Group, and
appreciation to our dedicated staff for their contributions a
hard work, and to our customers, business partners, Shareholder
and Directors for their continuing support.

Yours faithfully, kS

Chan Sek Keung, Ringo PR £7 58
Chairman and CEO FEREE
31 March 2021 - —F=-B=+—H
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A5 2

A highlight of results, selected financial ratios, assets and liabilities ##& - KETFTHBLX - EELEAERESRE
and cash flows is as follows: BEEEL T -
RESULTS INFORMATION FEEM

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—EBIEF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBEFIT
Revenue A 470,612 488,682
Gross profit EF] 52,763 65,042
Loss before tax PRI ARS8 (86,294) (22,638)
Loss for the year FERE (86,686) (24,665)
Loss attributable to: MTFEFELEEE .
- Owners of the parent = YNSIE 2 =DN (83,051) (21,096)
- Non-controlling interests —IEEGIE R (3,635) (3,569)
(86,686) (24,665)
Loss per share SREE
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EBEXRES (ANRED) (5.92) (1.51)

1 O InvesTech Holdings Limited & :iZRR B R A F
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HE

SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS INFORMATION RIETMIZLEERER

Year ended 31 December
#Z+ZA=+-ALFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

-t 23 “BNE “BN\E B tF —BRE
(approximate)  (approximate)  (approximate)  (approximate)  (approximate)

(BE49) (BE49) (BE49) (1E49) (#E49)
Gross profit margin EFIE 11.2% 13.3% 8.6% 12.7% 16.9%
Net loss margin REEE (18.4%) (5.0%) (13.2%) (19.3%) (19.6%)
Current ratio (times) TENELE (13) 13 13 1.4 23 33
Gearing ratio® BASGHEED 6.7% 5.8% 6.7% 8.6% 11.3%
Return on total assets®? BEEDRY (9.5%) (2.0%) (3.9%) (6.4%) (4.2%)
Return on total equity® Rk (14.4%) (2.8%) (5.4%) (9.2%) (6.6%)

(1) Calculated by using the total of short-term and long-term borrowings (1) HEMEHEREIEERBEN EZRHRUREE
and coupon notes divided by total assets. stHE

(2)  Calculated by using average balances of total assets and total equity. (2) BRPBEEELRERED Y FHEGRTE-

1 2 InvesTech Holdings Limited & :iZRR B R A F



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHHE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES INFORMATION EEHAELER

As at 31 December

®+=B=+—H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEF _ThE _T-N\E&E “2—tfF —TE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥ETRE ARETR ARBTT AR%®Tn ARETR

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
(excluding pledged deposits) ~ (FBIEEXIFEF) 76,128 48,781 98,278 211,514 533,491
Current assets REEE 366,343 399,185 404,426 744,695 1,186,687
Non-current assets FERBEE 354,127 710,719 955,346 691,423 390,937
Current liabilities PIEII=E 219,786 301,439 297,637 322,812 359,298
Non-current liabilities EISTE) =K 20,140 27,103 62,327 70,327 163,916

Equity attributable to SYNCIEZZSDN
owners of the parent (LR 371,099 728,093 943,072 977,730 987,983
Non-controlling interests JEESIE R 49,445 53,269 56,736 65,249 66,427
CASH FLOWS INFORMATION HEREEN

Year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=+—HLEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-N\E “E—tF “BRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AEBTT

_7—7E :%@_HE

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARETT

Net cash from/(used in)

geEBmE,/ )

operating activities B4 58 19,917 39,347 89,088 56,856 (30,308)
Net cash from/(used in) KRETBME/ FiA)

investing activities REEE 24,699 (40,333) (195,393) (443,965) 172,239
Net cash (used in)/from mMEEH (PrA) /5

financing activities REFE (15,853) (47,486) (2,902) 47,405 213,382
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HE

TEF+"A=+—HLEREFEN

A summary of consolidated financial results for the five years ended &

31 December 2020 is as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses, net

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
that may be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on
translation of the Company's
financial statements into
presentation currency

Financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive
income:

Change in fair value
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year
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Year ended 31 December

HETZRA=+-HILEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
- k- 52 “ZhE T-)\E “BtE 25F
RME'000 RMB000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000
ABBTR  ARBTR  AREFR  ABETR  ARETR
470,612 188,682 414,864 501,933 352,167
(417,849) (423,640) (379,258) (438,085) (292,690)
52,763 65,002 35,606 3,848 59477
6,021 3891 5629 15,979 56,86
(25.942) (24,654) (22167) (25,947) (28,814)
(48,601) (56,038) (47872) (57.766) (62.495)
(67.415) (6,764) (19,877) (51.975) (72,008)
(2:926) (4,115) (9735) (31.997) (2.556)
(86,29%) (22,636) (58,416) (87,852) (49,534)
(392) (2027) 3759 (8:855) (19.339)
(86,686) (24,865) (54,657) (9,707) (68,873)
21,848 (57,997) 602 (18,736) 5,385
(24,489) 60,052 0 974 (2,110)
(271,491) (230370) 12,939 - .
: 323 (3.235) - -
(295,980) (167,083) 10,106 974 (2,110)
(274,132) (225,080) 10,708 (17,762) 3275
(360,816) (249,745) (43,949) (16,469) (65,598)




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHHE

Year ended 31 December
HET-A=+—-HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

k- 52 “ThE “EN\E B tF “ETRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMBI000
ABETR ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT

(Loss)/profitattributable to: LTS AR (B8) /57
- Owners of the parent ERSUNGILZZPN (83,051) (21,096) (46,171) (95,611) (69,602)
- Non-controlling interests —JEsl s (3,635) (3,569) (8,486) (1,096) 729
(86,686) (24,665) (54,657) (96,707) (68873)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income M TR AEERE (B8 /
attributable to: W ag .
- Owners of the parent -BARBEA (356,994) (246,278) (35,436) (113,291) (66,386)
- Non-controlling interests —JeEsl (3,824) (3,467) (8,513) (1,178) 788
(360,818) (249,745) (43.949) (114,469) (65,598)
Loss per share BhEE
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) -BRREE (\RED) (5.92) (1.51) (3.95) (10.38) (8.73)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIREst w2 th

BUSINESS REVIEW

The uncertainties stemming from ongoing geopolitical tensions and
other external political issues affected the Group's business and
financial results, especially the majority of the Group's revenue was
generated from the Mainland China by selling the product imported
from foreign manufacturers. During the Year, the Group proactively
diversified the respective risks and uncertainties by partnering
with manufacturers in the Mainland China in order to strengthen its
competitiveness in provision of wide range of products and services.
For example, in June 2020, the Group reached an agent cooperation
agreement with IBO Technology Company Limited for 5G pico base
stations series products exclusively sold and distributed by Wafer
Systems Limited to telecommunication operators in Sichuan Province
of the PRC. This represented an opportunity for the Group to enhance
its business development in the provision of network infrastructure
solutions in the PRC.

On the other hand, the Group had also identified some business
opportunities during the outbreak of COVID-19 that led to slight
increase in demand and awareness of Smart Office Software
Solutions collaborated with the internet of things (loT) technology.
Such increase of demand was mainly caused by the closure of office
or work-from-home policy implemented by the business sector
during the Year. This new working culture promoted the usage of
cloud computing technology, B2B platform, Artificial Intelligence,
Software Defined Networking (SDN) technology in daily work among
the people.

Therefore, the development and enhancement of our smart office
software is expected to continuously assist the Group to seek for new
business opportunities in order to capture the future demand in the
application of 5G solutions.

1 é InvesTech Holdings Limited & :iZRR B R A F
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and cost of sales

The Group recorded a total revenue for the Year of approximately
RMB470.6 million (2019: approximately RMB488.7 million),
representing a decrease of approximately RMB18.1 million, or
approximately 3.7% as compared with that of 2019. The decrease in
sales in Vietnam contributed to the overall decrease in sales for the
Year.

The cost of sales decreased by approximately RMB5.8 million, or
approximately 1.4% to approximately RMB417.8 million for the Year
(2019: approximately RMB423.6 million). The decrease in the cost of
sales was in line with the decrease in revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group achieved gross profit for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB52.8 million (2019: approximately RMB65.0
million), representing a decrease of approximately RMB12.2
million, or approximately 18.8% as compared with that of 2019. The
gross profit margin for the Year was approximately 11.2% (2019:
approximately 13.3%), representing a decrease of approximately
2.1% as compared with that of 2019. The decrease in gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to the drop of sales in Vietnam,
which had a relatively high profit margin as compared to that of other
countries in 2020.

Other income and gains

The Group recorded other income and gains of approximately
RMB6.0 million for the Year (2019: approximately RMB3.9 million),
mainly including (i) government grants released to the Group of
approximately RMB3.3 million (2019: approximately RMB1.6 million);
(ii) a fair value gain on a debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately RMB1.6 million (2019: approximately
RMB1.2 million); (iii) finance income on the net investment in a
lease of approximately RMBO.4 million (2019: approximately RMBO0.6
million); and (iv) bank interest income of approximately RMBO0.4
million (2019: approximately RMBO0.3 million).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFA AR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB1.2 million or approximately 4.9% to approximately RMB25.9
million for the Year (2019: approximately RMB24.7 million), primarily
due to the increase in commission incentive to sales and marketing
team to enhance the overall sales performance.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB7.2
million or approximately 12.9% to approximately RMB48.8 million
for the Year (2019: approximately RMB56.0 million), was primarily
attributable to (i) the decrease in travelling costs as a result of the
travelling restriction and lockdown due to outbreak of COVID-19; (ii)
the decrease in administrative staff cost and related expenses; and
(iii) the overall cost savings during the Year.

Other expenses

The other expenses of approximately RMBO0.5 million for the Year
(2019: approximately RMB3.0 million) mainly consisted of the fair
value loss of approximately RMB0.2 million (2019: approximately
RMB2.8 million) recognised for the change in fair value of equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss. The details of the
equity investment are set out in the section “Investment in listed
equity securities” below.

Impairment losses

During the Year, the Group recorded an impairment of goodwill of
approximately RMB57.6 million (2019: Nil) in relation to the network
system integration cash-generating unit arisen from the acquisition
of Fortune Grace Management Limited in 2015, which is mainly
caused by (i) the slowdown in the global economy resulted from
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and its escalation during the
Year while the Group foresees the unfavorable global economic
condition to continue, if not worsen, in the coming years resulting
from unprecedented disruptions in various aspects of business
operations of the Group; (ii) the tension between the United States of
America (the "US") and China as a result of the trade war, which may
affect the Group's business development of network infrastructure
and software; and (iii) the stagnant growth in business development
in respect of the agency agreement entered into between the Group
and IBO Technology Company Limited.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Impairment losses (continued)

The Group recorded loss on impairment of other loan receivables of
approximately RMB9.4 million (2019: approximately RMB0.2 million)
by taking into consideration (i) the increase in the risk of default by
certain borrowers in respect of the repayments of loan receivables of
the Group for the Year; and (ii) and the decrease in the chance for the
Group to recover such loan receivables due to further deterioration in
the global economy. In order to minimise the credit risks and default
risks associated with the money lending business, the Group has
maintained adequate internal control policies and tightly control the
overdue balances. A debts collection policy is also in place within
the Group, which includes sending reminder letters to borrowers
for repayments and instructing the Group's legal advisers to issue
demand letters for loans and interests overdue for a certain period of
time.

Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately RMB1.2 million to
approximately RMB2.9 million for the Year (2019: approximately
RMB4.1 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the
absence of interest on coupon notes incurred for the Year (2019:
approximately RMBO0.8 million).

Income tax

The Group incurred income tax expense of approximately RMBO0.4
million for the Year (2019: approximately RMB2.0 million) primarily
due to the current income tax expense of approximately RMBA4.1
million, which was offset by deferred income tax credit from
amortisation of intangible assets acquired by the acquisition
of Fortune Grace Management Limited in November 2015 of
approximately RMB3.7 million. Overall, the Group's effective tax rate
for the Year was -0.5%, compared with that of -9.0% for 2019.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss after tax of approximately RMB86.7
million for the Year (2019: approximately RMB24.7 million). The
increase in the Group's net loss was mainly attributable to the
recognition of the impairment losses on goodwill and financial assets
for the Year, as mentioned above.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBREwmR A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continues to implement prudent financial management
policies and maintains a relatively low gearing ratio during its
operations. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio
(measured by total of short-term and long-term borrowings divided
by total assets) was approximately 6.7% (31 December 2019:
approximately 5.8%). The increase in gearing ratio was mainly
due to the decrease in total assets resulted from the recognition of
impairment losses on goodwill and financial assets for the Year and
the decrease in fair value of the CCT Investment.

As at 31 December 2020, the total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately RMB48.2 million
(31 December 2019: approximately RMB64.6 million), among which
approximately RMB41.2 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB38.9 million) was unsecured and guaranteed by a director of the
Company. As at 31 December 2020, the interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB17.6 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB42.3 million) carried at fixed interest
rates and approximately RMB30.6 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB22.3 million) carried at floating interest rates.

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed in this report, and apart
from intragroup liabilities, the Company did not have any outstanding
loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank
overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtednesses, liabilities
under acceptances or acceptable credits, debentures, mortgages,
charges, hire purchases commitments, guarantees or other material
contingent liabilities as at the close of business on 31 December

2020.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors have confirmed that
there has been no material change in the indebtednesses and
contingent liabilities of the Group since 31 December 2020 to the date
of this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Foreign currency risk

As certain of the Group's trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables are denominated in foreign
currency, exposure to exchange rate fluctuation arises. The Group
has relevant policy to monitor the risk associated with the fluctuation
of foreign currency and control such risk, if necessary.

Working capital

Inventories balance as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB12.6 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB12.9
million). The average turnover days for inventories was 11 days as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 11 days).

Trade and bills receivables balance as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB199.6 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB210.3 million). The average turnover days for trade and bills
receivables increased to 159 days as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: 157 days), which was comparable between the
years.

Trade payables balance as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB161.7 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB170.9
million). The average turnover days for trade payables increased to
145 days as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 142 days),
which was comparable between the years.

The Group's cash conversion cycle for the Year was 25 days as
compared with that of 26 days in 2019.

Cash flows
The net cash generated from operating activities for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB19.9 million.

The net cash generated from investing activities for the Year of
approximately RMB24.7 million was mainly attributable to the
decrease in pledged deposits of approximately RMB24.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFA AR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cash flows (continued)

The net cash used in financing activities for the Year of approximately
RMB15.9 million was primarily attributable to the combined effect
of (i) repayment of bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB57.5 million; (ii) new bank and other borrowings (including
loans from a director of the Company) of approximately RMB48.9
million; and (iii) payment of principal portion of lease payments of
approximately RMB7.3 million.

Capital expenditures

The Group had capital expenditures of approximately RMBO0.6 million
for the Year (31 December 2019: approximately RMB3.5 million) for
additions to property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets.

Capital commitments
The Group had no significant capital commitments as at 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

The Group underwent several reorganisations, including disposals
of the entire interests in Honglin International Limited and &/ 4
SR BRI B R/AF] (Weihaishi Yubo Wire & Cable Technology Co.,
Ltd.*) during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the transfers
of several subsidiaries within the Group. The Group has conducted
filings of the reorganisations, if required, with the relevant tax
authorities. However, those reorganisations may be subject to
further investigations if initiated and requested by the relevant tax
authorities. The Directors believe that the taxes arising from those
reorganisations have been properly dealt with and provided for in the
financial statements. Given the complexity of relevant tax laws and
regulations and the diversified practice of respective tax authorities
in the PRC, there exists a possibility that tax authorities may levy and
collect additional taxes for those reorganisations.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFA AR

INVESTMENT IN LISTED EQUITY SECURITIES EHRAFESFKE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a HE_ZE_ZE+_B=+—HILEE > AEH
fair value loss on a held for trading listed securities investment of #FSFEFEE LHESFRENAARBEEELY

approximately RMBO0.2 million, details as follows: AR®02E® T FIBAT !
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFA AR

INVESTMENT IN LISTED EQUITY SECURITIES (continued)
Investee Company’s Principal Business, Performance and
Future Prospect

New Ray Medicine International Holding Ltd. (“"New Ray")

New Ray is an investment holding company principally engaged in
(i) the distribution and trading of pharmaceutical products including
injection drugs, capsule and granule drugs and tablet drugs; and (ii)
the provision of marketing and promotion services of drugs in the
PRC. As disclosed in the interim report of New Ray for the six month
ended 30 June 2020, (i) the unaudited revenue and loss of New Ray
for the six month ended 30 June 2020 were approximately HK$69.5
million and approximately HK$36.4 million respectively; (i) New Ray
focused on its own core business and would continue to diversify its
existing product portfolio; and (iii) New Ray would also continue to
enhance and expand its sales and marketing capabilities.

New Ray was suspended trading on 6 October 2017 due to Securities
and Futures Commission has issued a direction under Section 8(1) of
the Securities and Futures (Stock Market Listing) Rules to suspend
trading in the shares of New Ray.

The Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss from its investment
in New Ray amounted to approximately RMB0.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Group remained holding 25,080,000
shares of New Ray in its investment portfolio as at 31 December
2020. The Group's management appointed an external valuer to be
responsible for the valuation of shares of New Ray. The fair value
of shares of New Ray held by the Group was approximately RMB1.0
million as at 31 December 2020.

The Group will keep monitoring New Ray's operation status or any
update of resumption of trading of New Ray.

INVESTMENT IN NON-LISTED EQUITY SECURITIES
Investee Company'’s Principal Business, Performance and
Future Prospect

China Communication Technology Co., Ltd.* (“CCT")

CCT is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability which
together with its subsidiaries are principally engaged in research and
development, design, production and sales of computer software
and hardware, communication products, metal, semi-conductor
and provision of network information service. Its major businesses
include high-frequency satellite communication systems, military
communication and provision of related supporting services.
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INVESTMENT IN NON-LISTED EQUITY SECURITIES

(continued)

Investee Company'’s Principal Business, Performance and
Future Prospect (continued)

China Communication Technology Co., Ltd.* (“CCT") (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company entered
into a capital injection agreement to inject an amount of RMB600
million to CCT (the "CCT Investment"”). The CCT Investment was
completed on 25 July 2018 and the Company had interested in
approximately 3.91% of the enlarged registered capital of CCT as at
31 December 2020. The CCT Investment was booked as a financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income of the Group.
The fair value of the CCT Investment as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB111.1 million which accounted for approximately
15.4% of the Company's total asset as at 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to the unaudited consolidated management account of CCT
for the year ended 31 December 2020, excluding Huaxun Fangzhou
Co. Ltd., which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CCT as to
approximately 29.46% of its issued share capital and is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (000687.5Z) (the "CCT Results"), the
CCT Results recorded revenue of approximately RMB2,587.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately 64.9% as compared to approximately RMB7,382.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly as a result of
the significant decrease in revenue attributed by (i) the sanctions
imposed by the US to high-tech enterprise in China; (ii) unfavourable
economic environment and business conditions in satellite
communication products segment caused by outbreak of COVID-19
since the first quarter of 2020; and (iii) military communications and
ancillary services segment due to restructuring of military related
industries in China. The CCT Results recorded loss attributable
to the owners of CCT of approximately RMB2,086.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, as compared to profit attributable to
the owners of CCT of approximately RMB452.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, mainly attributable to (i) the significant
decrease in revenue; and (ii) the gross profit margin decreased
to approximately 7.4% for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately 22.6% for the year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFA AR

INVESTMENT IN NON-LISTED EQUITY SECURITIES

(continued)

Investee Company'’s Principal Business, Performance and
Future Prospect (continued)

China Communication Technology Co., Ltd.* (“CCT") (continued)
According to the business outlook of its management, CCT's
business faced great challenges in 2020 due to the impact of US
sanctions, including supply chain, customer orders and financial
financing. However, CCT will take this opportunity to restructure
its business by divesting non-main businesses and focusing on its
four core businesses, including the terahertz segment, the satellite
communication segment, the chip segment and the military industry
segment. Meanwhile, CCT pays an attention on big data, cloud
platform development and application software services to drive
efficientindustrial development.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of employees of the Group
was 256 (31 December 2019: 256). The breakdown of employees of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Manufacturing and technical engineering B4 R T T12
Sales and marketing THE M TG E
General and administration — MR RAT
Research and development B Es

Total Aast

Compensation policy of the Group is determined by evaluating
individual performance of the employees and has been reviewed
regularly.
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A _ECEF+_RA=+—H KEBEEHE
256 (ZE—NE+"B=+—H :256%) E
B-AEERBEN_BE_ZFR_ZB-NFE+Z
B=+—HrB4EmT :

As at As at

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
ATECEE A2 —NF
+ZA=+—H +ZHA=1+—H
81 78

58 59

50 49

67 70

256 256
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Second Extension of the Maturity of a Debt Investment

On 18 March 2021, the Company (as the subscriber) and Elite Foster
International Investment Limited (the “Issuer”, as the issuer) entered
into a second supplemental subscription agreement in relation to
the extension of the maturity date of an one-year 12% unlisted bond
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$15.0 million issued by the
Issuer from 19 March 2021 to 19 June 2021 (the "Extension”). Details
of the Extension have been set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 March 2021.

Disposal of Wholly-owned Subsidiaries

On 25 March 2021, the Company (as the vendor), Metro Win
Investment Holdings Limited (the "Metro Win", as the purchaser),
and Ms. Cheung Hing Ling (being the ultimate beneficial owner
of Metro Win, as the guarantor) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to sell and Metro Win has conditionally agreed to purchase
one (1) share of InvesTech Finance (International) Limited (the
“Target Company"), representing the entire issued share of the
Target Company at the consideration of HK$16.0 million (the
"Disposal Transaction”). The Target Company is principally engaged
in investment holding and its wholly owned subsidiary, InvesTech
Finance Limited, is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is principally engaged in money lending
business. Upon completion of the Disposal Transaction, the Target
Company and its subsidiary will no longer be the subsidiaries of the
Company. Details of the Disposal Transaction have been set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2021. The Disposal
Transaction has been completed on 30 March 2021.

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no other significant
subsequent event undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBREwmR A

OUTLOOK

The Group remains optimistic about the prospects of its business
in the long run, however, it is difficult to predict the development of
COVID-19 and the geopolitical tensions, the ultimate business impact
in respect of scope of service, supply chain and geographical results
could not be reasonably estimated at this moment. In view of this,
the Group had implemented multiple business strategies, including
identify new local suppliers, expand the service area to central Asian
countries and south-east Asian countries, design new software
solution for the recent change of working behavior, in order to
minimise the risks and adapt to the changes of business activities of
our customers. The Group will closely monitor the financial position
of the Group and changes of market condition and act promptly to
such changes.

Looking forward, the Group will look for challenges and
opportunities by building a new business ecosystem of the Group,
including branding our company, repositioning our existing products,
actively in identifying IT infrastructure and services related projects,
to become a one-stop solution IT service provider as a result of the
increasing demand and enterprise expenditure of IT services and IT
infrastructure since the outbreak of COVID-19 and the increasing of
the awareness of internet security issue. In addition, the Group will
keep identifying new partnership and investments opportunities in
local and overseas market, so as to strengthen our core business and
provide a better return to the Shareholders.

Despite there are short term uncertainties due to the pandemic and

political conflicts, the Group is optimistic that we are well positioned
to benefit when the market becomes more stable.

2 8 InvesTech Holdings Limited & :iZRR B R A F

AIREE

AEERHARBANEBIRMFRLREE ER
REBEUBRAFEBRRSHEBERMMGH
AERES BAIHRESEMGSHRFTHEE
HEREREXENREEFZZE UM S
FEBRCE RS EEBRE > Q5 IR YA
HEF RRFEEBEBREPRERK AR EEE
K A TRT AR ECREHBI A R
FE UESREERIBREREFIHNG
B o AEBRERBYEZEMBR T RH SRR

RERR > ARIRE M ERREE R AR AP
EMEZEHENEH RS BENEMH
RIRF R EMRRERR N TR R EEFZ
Brgm SAEEREE BUAEBRNMERE
BrskRBREE SFTERAmER &
WMEMIRA Edm  RiBHH AR ERR &
RFFBIAERIEE » U A — RS REMR
EIRBRMARE I AEEREBTESR KRS
SNTHIGHEAT S ER A RRER S (Mg R
ZIDEF R RN AR EF RO

BERBRBATRENERIEE L £5E
LEHMRN ENHECTRBRER > R
R o



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (“Mr. Chan"), aged 61, is the chairman
of the Board, an executive Director and the CEO of the Company.
Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the investment committee of the
Company (the "Investment Committee"”). Mr. Chan is in charge of the
overall strategic planning, business planning and decision making in
all material matters of the Group. Mr. Chan was appointed as non-
executive Director on 23 December 2015 and was re-designated as
executive Director on 21 September 2016. Mr. Chan was appointed as
the chairman of the Board on 25 February 2016 and was appointed as
CEO of the Company on 21 September 2016.

Mr. Chan has obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
from The University of Hong Kong in November 1981. Mr. Chan is
currently a member of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference for Chengdu, Sichuan Province, the PRC. Mr. Chan has
over 33 years of experience in the IT and network industry. Mr. Chan
has previously worked for various multi-national corporations such
as General Electric Company, Case Communications Limited and Infa
Telecom Limited and served in senior executive positions in the Asia
Pacific region.

Mr. Chan also served as the sole director of Smoothly Global
Holdings Limited. He is currently the director of the following major
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Fortune Grace Management
Ltd., Wafer Systems Limited, Wafer Systems (China) Ltd., Beijing
Wafer New Century Information Technology Co., Ltd., Wafer Network
Systems (Shanghai) Co Ltd., Wafer (Xi'an) Software Co Ltd., and
Wafer Systems (Vietnam) Co., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
FREE

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Wang Fang (“Ms. Wang"), aged 53, is an executive Director and a
vice CEO of the Company. Ms. Wang was appointed as Director and a
vice CEO of the Company on 23 December 2015.

Ms. Wang graduated from Nanjing University of Posts and
Telecommunications (formerly known as Nanjing College of Posts
and Telecommunications) (Radio Engineering Section) in July 1988,
and obtained a degree of master of Business Administration from
the program jointly organised by the Beijing University and Fordham
University in May 2002.

Ms. Wang joined us in June 1995 and was promoted as the president
subsequently, wherein Ms. Wang was mainly responsible for daily
business operation, management and oversee of communication
system segment, including decision making in corporate strategy,
corporate policy review and internal control. Ms. Wang has over 24
years of experience in the area of network system integration.

Mr. Lu Chengye ("Mr. Lu"), aged 43, is an executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Lu is in charge of the overall strategic planning,
business planning and decision making in all material matters of
communication system segment of the Group. Mr. Lu was appointed
as Director on 29 May 2013.

Mr. Lu has over 20 years of experience in the communication industry
gained in the Group and in his previous employment. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Lu worked as a director of the science and research
department of base station software development in a renowned
mobile communication equipment company in the PRC from April
2002 to August 2008, mainly responsible for the design, development
and implementation of solution of communication base station
software. From August 2009 to May 2012, Mr. Lu had served as the
general manager of TD-SCDMA/TD-LTE production line of another
prestigious communication equipment and technology firm, mainly
in charge of the establishment and research and development works
for projects of wireless base station and communication base station
equipments. Mr. Lu obtained his master degree of engineering
from Xidian University (F5% & F#l#2K22) majoring in information
and communication engineering in March 2002. As an expert from
TD-LTE workgroup of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People's Republic of China (F1ZE AR ILFET
M= B1530), Mr. Lu is the inventor of 7 patented technologies in
the communication sector over the last 16 years, and has published
several research papers on communication topics in various journals.
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Executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Liu Chun Fai ("Mr. Liu"), age 33, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Liu was appointed as Director on 1 August 2020.

Mr. Liu was educated in Canada. Mr. Liu has over 9 years of working
experience in legal, finance and management. Mr. Liu has been
acting as a director of Blue Sky Solar Energy Management Limited,
a company is mainly engaged in one-stop solar power system
installation service, since November 2018. Mr. Liu was an executive
director of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited
(stock code: 1520) from November 2016 to June 2019. Mr. Liu has
been acting as a director of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals since 2019.

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek (“Mr. Derek Wong"), aged 51, is a non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Derek Wong was appointed as
Director on 1 August 2019.

Mr. Derek Wong was educated in Canada. Mr. Derek Wong has
approximately 25 years of experience in management and operation
of textile and knitting, food and beverages business. Mr. Derek Wong
was a co-founder and an executive director of Fornton Group Limited
(renamed as Momentum Financials Holdings Limited, stock code:
1152, a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) from October 2011 to June
2014.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
FREE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund (“Mr. Edmund Wong"), aged 36,
is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
audit committee of the Company and a member of each of the
compensation and benefits committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Edmund Wong was appointed as Director on 5 June
2017.

Mr. Edmund Wong holds bachelor's degree in Accountancy, master
degrees in Master of Science in Applied Accounting and Finance,
Master of Business Administration and Master of Corporate
Governance. Mr. Edmund Wong is a fellow member of HKICPA
and holds the practicing certificate issued by HKICPA. He is also a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).

Mr. Edmund Wong has over 13 years of experience in financial
reporting, taxation and audit and assurance of Hong Kong listed
and private companies. He had participated in various audit and
assurance engagements for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu before, and
currently is a practising director of Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited.
Mr. Edmund Wong is an independent non-executive director of
Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (stock code: 1967, a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) and Deyun Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1440, a Company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange)
since 18 October 2019 and 13 January 2021 respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of each of the C&B Committee and the
Nomination Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Investment Committee. Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen was
appointed as Director on 25 June 2015.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen graduated from the University of New South
Wales in Australia with a Degree of Master of Information Science in
October 1994.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen served as a Manager, Design/Architecture
of IBM Australia Limited from May 1995 to April 2001. Mr. Lu, Brian
Yong Chen then served as a Client Unit Executive in the IBM Global
Technology Services Department of IBM China/Hong Kong Limited
from 2001 to 2012, and a partner of the Business Application
Consulting Sector of IBM (China) Company Limited from June 2012.
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen is an independent non-executive director of
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (stock code: 1401, a company whose
share are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since 18
October 2019.

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen is a successful corporate executive with
excellent business strategy capability and well established business
connections in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen has
over 24 years of management experience in Fortune 100 companies
in Australia, Hong Kong and the PRC, assisting in enterprises with
their business transformation and growth.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
FREE

BIUFERITESE @

BRREE ST RBUIFNTES FHx
BN EEERRERZEGEEZEIRFRERE
EENKREZEEREZME - mKkRAEER
E-HEARNATTHEREZRERES

SRBRAEER—ANTEE+ B RER BN
BBLAR  ERREENBERLE-

BKREER—NAAFRAREZZSE—
/97 IEH{FIBM Australia LimitedBysR 5t £2
RELEB ZAKRALEHBEH_ZEZT—Fi
EZZE—ZF|EHEIBM China/Hong Kong
LimitedBYIBME KT AR ¥ EFIE R BB 1T
HEE H-FE—"F;XxAEHMEIBM (China)
Company LimitedEARFBIHNSUA-BZZ
—hEFE+AB+NBE BXEILEASprocomm
Intelligence Limited (B(A1XSE - 1401 ERMH L
SZPRFEMR EHRE) B IFRNITE SR

BXREER—BAINEESE A S
BERBE  ERAMERZEREZHNEER
BomkREEERAF D -FANPENYE
100 AB A EBE24FNEREER BhbxE
ETEGBERAR-

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF FIR 33



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
FREE

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Huang Liangkuai ("Mr. Huang"), aged 78, is an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the C&B Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Huang was appointed as Director on 25 February 2016.

Mr. Huang graduated from the department of economics of Xiamen
University (Fujian, PRC) in August 1966 with major in statistics.

Mr. Huang has been the chief representative of the Shenzhen
Research Institute of Xiamen University (& P9A 2 %&IFF3EF) and
vice chairman of Xiamen University Alumni General Association
since August 1999. From November 1984 to December 1998, Mr.
Huang served as the chief of the general affairs division, chief of the
assets division and vice chairman of the alumni association at Xiamen
University. Mr. Huang was the secretary to the party committee of the
school of economics at Xiamen University from September 1979 to
October 1984.

Mr. Huang was a former external supervisor of Shengjing Bank Co.,
Ltd. (a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2066) from May 2014 to February
2018.

Mr. Huang was a former independent non-executive director of China
New Economy Fund Limited (a company the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 80) from
February 2015 to April 2016.

Mr. Huang acted as the chairman of Beijing Kaixuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (EREEKEEIEBRAE) from 6
February 2007 to 17 December 2010. This company was established
in China and had no substantial business operations upon its
establishment and its business license was revoked by the relevant
authority on 17 December 2010 due to the failure to conduct annual
inspection. Mr. Huang confirmed that he was not involved in the
actual operation of the company and has not assumed any contingent
liabilities nor has he been subject to any relevant claims as a result of
the revocation of the business license of the aforesaid company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating the
elements of good corporate governance into the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as to
achieve effective accountability to the Shareholders as a whole.
The Board strives to uphold good corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices continuously in the interest
of Shareholders to enhance the overall performance of the Group.
The Company has adopted and complied with the principles and
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") contained in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the Year except for the following deviations.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Being aware of the said
deviation from code provision A.2.1, but in view of the current
rapid development of the Group, the Board believes that with the
support of the management, vesting the roles of both chairman
and CEO by Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo can facilitate execution
of the Group's business strategies and boost effectiveness of its
operation. In addition, under the supervision by the Board which
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, the interests
of the Shareholders will be adequately and fairly represented.
The Company will seek to recomply with code provision A.2.1 by
identifying and appointing a suitable and qualified candidate to the
position of the CEO in future.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. Some independent non-executive Directors
were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 29 May 2020 due to their respective business engagements.
Other Board members who attend the aforesaid annual general
meeting were already of sufficient calibre and number for answering
questions raised by the Shareholders at the relevant general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRS

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. On specific
enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that they complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code regarding Directors'
securities transactions during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprised four executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board as at 31 December 2020 and the date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman and CEO)
Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO)

Mr. Lu Chengye

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Appointed on 1 August 2020)
Mr. Ching Chau Wa (Resigned on 1 August 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek
(with his former name of Wong Tat Wai, Derek)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen

Mr. Huang Liangkuai

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in pages 29 to
34 of this report. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Board brings a variety of experiences and expertise to the
Company.
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Functions of the Board

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Group, including the formulation and approval of all policy
matters, considering and approving overall development strategies,
financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals,
monitoring and controlling the operation and financial performance,
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and to
assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group.

Board meetings and Board practices

During the Year, the Board held 8 meetings, including 4 regular Board
meetings. Apart from the Board meetings, the Board has passed 7
written resolutions. The Directors can attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Articles of Association. The company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman of the Board
to prepare the agenda of the meeting and all Directors have the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for the Board meetings.
Notices of at least 14 days for regular Board meetings are given to
the Directors and Board procedures in compliance with the Articles of
Association, as well as relevant rules and regulations. The Directors
are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters brought
before the meetings. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the senior management and the Company Secretary at all
time and will be able to seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expenses. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings. All minutes
of Board meetings were recorded in sufficient details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.

During the Year, a meeting between the chairman of the Board and
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executives or other representatives of the Group was held to discuss
issues that they wish to raise at the Board.
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(1) Board Meetings

The numbers of the Board meetings held and the attendances
of each Director at the Board meetings for the Year have been BEEHEESE SR

set out as follows:
No. of Board meetings held:
Name of the Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman and CEQ)

Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO)
Mr. Ching Chau Wa
(Resigned on 1 August 2020)
Mr. Lu Chengye
Mr. Liu Chun Fai

(Appointed on 1 August 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen
Mr. Huang Liangkuai

(2) General Meeting

The number of general meeting held and the attendance of
each Director at the general meeting for the Year have been set

out as follows:
No. of general meeting held:
Name of the Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman and CEO)

Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO)
Mr. Ching Chau Wa

(Resigned on 1 August 2020)
Mr. Lu Chengye

Mr. Liu Chun Fai PEELE
(Appointed on 1 August 2020) MRZZEZZFENA—HEZD

Non-executive Director EMITES

Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek Firigid

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFRITES

Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund =EETE

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen =KL

Mr. Huang Liangkuai BRIRLE

Note: Mr. Liu Chun Fai not yet appointed as executive director as at 29 Wit - EEAES LR

May 2020 (the most recent annual general meeting held on 29

May 2020).
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Directors’ appointment, re-election and removal

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years, all are subject to termination in accordance with
the provisions of the service contract or by either party giving the
other not less than three months' prior written notice.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy of the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Furthermore, pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors have played a crucial role in
the Board by providing their independent judgment at the Board
meeting and scrutinising the Group's performance. Their views
carry significant weight in the Board's decision, in particular, they
bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the Group's strategy,
performance and control. All independent non-executive Directors
possess extensive academic, professional and industry expertise
and management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board. The independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Group's business strategy,
results and management so that all interests of the Shareholders
will be taken into account, and the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders can be protected.
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In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Board consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
representing not less than one-third of the Board, among the three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund,
possessing appropriate professional qualification in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on
such confirmations, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund, Mr. Lu, Brian Yong
Chen and Mr. Huang Liangkuai, are independent and they all meet the
specificindependence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Chairman and CEO

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Being aware of the said deviation from code
provision A.2.1, but in view of the current rapid development of the
Group, the Board believes that with the support of the management,
vesting the roles of both chairman and CEO by Mr. Chan Sek Keung,
Ringo can facilitate execution of the Group's business strategies
and boost effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under the
supervision by the Board which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, the interests of the Shareholders will
be adequately and fairly represented. The Company will seek to
recomply with code provision A.2.1 by identifying and appointing a
suitable and qualified candidate to the position of the CEO in future.
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Delegation of powers

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, administration and
management of the Group's businesses to the CEO, executive
Directors, senior management and certain specific responsibilities
to the Board committees of the Company. It is the job of the Board
to determine the objectives of the Company and it is the job of the
executives and senior management to decide the means by which
those objectives are best achieved within rules of conduct and limits
of risk that are set by the Board. When the Board delegates aspects
of its management and administration functions to members of
the management team, it gives clear directions as to the powers
of management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where the management team needs to report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company. The delegated functions and
work tasks are regularly reviewed.

Continuous professional development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year, the Company had arranged to provide to all Directors
with the “Guidelines for Directors” and the “Guide for Independent
Non-executive Directors” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

The Company also updated the Directors and senior management
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. In particular, training sessions covering topics
including the CG Code and the disclosure of inside information had
been held during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of the
training received by the Directors for the Year is as follows:

BEEFRMUNEH EFSNEAFENEINIER
Bt

Attending
training/
Reading briefing
materials sessions
Name of Directors HEEIRE
BN REME fRE
Executive Directors WITER
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman and CEO) 85385 % (F/E #487) v v
Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEQ) IEUL EHEEH) v v
Mr. Lu Chengye R SRE v 4
Mr. Liu Chun Fai BEELE
(Appointed on 1 August 2020) MZZZFEN\B—HEZD v v
Mr. Ching Chau Wa EMELRE
(Resigned on 1 August 2020) MZZ2ZZFEN\B—H#HD v N/ARGE
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek ey v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund EERERE v v
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen BARELE v 4
Mr. Huang Liangkuai BRMREE v 4
/: Completed VSR
Liability insurance for directors E5HERE

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors' liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities since 31 March
2015.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) the audit committee of the Company
(the "Audit Committee"”); (ii) the compensation and benefits
committee of the Company (the "C&B Committee"”); and (iii)
the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee"), with defined terms of reference. The latest versions of
the terms of reference of the Board committees which explain their
respective role and the authority delegated to them by the Board are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice and other assistance in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses.
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Audit Committee

Composition

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of Directors passed on 25 October 2010 in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has set
up the written terms of reference which was revised on 22 March
2012 and further revised on 26 November 2015 and 1 January 2019.
The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditors, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting at least at half-year intervals,
and oversee the risk management policies and internal control
procedures of the Group constantly. The Audit Committee currently
consists of three members, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund,
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen and Mr. Huang Liangkuai, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund
currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has adopted the terms of reference which are in line with
the applicable code provisions in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2020, the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and this report.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings to make
recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors, change
of auditors, review financial statements, financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems of the Company. And
the attendances of each Audit Committee member for the Year have
been set out as follows:
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No. of Audit Committee meetings held: EEFREZZEEEERY . 3
Name of the Audit Committee members BEREZEGMENS

Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund EEELE 3/3
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen EKERT Y 3/3
Mr. Huang Liangkuai BHRREE 3/3
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C&B Committee

Composition

The Company established the C&B Committee pursuant to a
resolution of Directors passed on 25 October 2010 in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The C&B Committee has set up
with written terms of reference which was revised on 22 March 2012.
The primary duties of the C&B Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Company. The compensation and remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Company are subject to regular review by
the C&B Committee to ensure that the levels of their compensation
and remuneration are appropriate and none of the Directors
determine their own remuneration. The C&B Committee currently
consists of four members, namely, Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen, Mr. Wong
Chun Sek, Edmund, Mr. Huang Liangkuai (all are independent non-
executive Directors) and Mr. Liu Chun Fai (an executive Director).
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen currently serves as the chairman of the C&B
Committee. Mr. Ching Chau Wa resigned as a member on 1 August
2020 and Mr. Liu Chun Fai was appointed as a member on 1 August
2020.

During the Year, the C&B Committee held 2 meetings to review and
make recommendation on the remuneration policy and structure
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relating to Directors and senior management of the Company. And  BiIiftltiEEBRE AEERFINRENEZES
the attendances of each C&B Committee member for the Year have SEHEZIERWT :
been set out as follows:
No. of C&B Committee meetings held: ECHHMNAETZEETERE : 2
Name of C&B Committee members N EFZEEREHS
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen EKERT A 2/2
Mr. Ching Chau Wa BehERE

(Resigned on 1 August 2020) (RZEZZFN\B—BFHD 2/2
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund =HEBHELE 2/2
Mr. Huang Liangkuai BERREE 2/2
Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Appointed on 1 August 2020) BEELE (W_E_T5)/\B—REZDT N/A B
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Remuneration policy for Directors and senior management
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the C&B
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results,
individual performance, experience, responsibility, workload and
time devoted to the Company and comparable market statistics.
Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
reviewed annually. In addition, each of the executive Directors may
receive a discretionary bonus as the Board may recommend. Such
amount has to be approved by the C&B Committee.

In addition, the Company maintained a Share Option Scheme. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity. The
Share Option Scheme expired in October 2020 and new share option
scheme shall be adopted in due course.

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Company established a nominating and corporate governance
committee pursuant to a resolution of Directors passed on 25
October 2010 (which was renamed as Nomination Committee on
22 March 2012). The Nomination Committee has set up the written
terms of reference which was revised on 22 March 2012, and was
further revised on 28 August 2013 and 1 January 2019. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis and to recommend to
the Board the suitable candidates for Directors after consideration of
the nominees' independence and quality in order to ensure fairness
and transparency of all nominations. The Nomination Committee
currently consists of three members, namely Mr. Lu, Brian Yong
Chen, Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund and Mr. Huang Liangkuai (all
are independent non-executive Directors). Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen
currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy in
August 2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Pursuant to the board diversity policy, selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate as a member of
the Board, the Nomination Committee would follow the nomination
policy and consider factors including:

(a) Reputation;

(b) Skills, knowledge, experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age and other qualities required, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(c) The extent to which the proposed candidate is likely to
contribute to the overall effectiveness of the Board and work
constructively with the existing Directors;

(d) The skills and experience that the proposed candidate brings
to the role and how he/she will enhance the efficiency and
performance of the Board as a whole;

(e) The nature of existing positions served by the proposed
candidate including directorships or other relationship with the
Company and/or its Directors and impact they may have on his/
her ability to exercise independent judgment; and

(f)  Factors which may affect the proposed candidate's time
commitment to the Company.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive

and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board. And the
attendances of each Nomination Committee member for the Year
have been set out as follows:
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REFE RREZEEERMAERURNES
EHRBE HERER - FFERRREEGN
BHEZEROT :

No. of Nomination Committee meetings held: EEHRLEETEENRE 2
Name of the Nomination Committee members RAZEEMBEEH

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen EKERTE 2/2
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund =REELEE 2/2
Mr. Huang Liangkuai =ERIRTE 2/2

Corporate governance functions

The Company's corporate governance functions are carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by
the Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code,
which include (a) to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group and the
Directors; and (e) to review the Company's compliance with the
applicable CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for
the preparation of the Group's financial statements for each financial
year which shall give a true and fair view of the financial position,
performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable
and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern.
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The responsibilities of the Company's external auditors, BDO
Limited, on the financial statements are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditors’ Report” in this report.

External auditors' remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid or payable to the Company's external
auditors in respect of their audit and non-audit services were as
follows:

Type of Services AR5 4E R
Audit services ZBARTS
Non-audit services* IRILBARES
Total w5t

* including the fees for tax compliance services.
COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Link Corporate Services Limited (the “Link"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services
to the Company in order to assist the Company to cope with the
changing regulatory environment and to suit different commercial
needs. Mr. Fung Siu Kei (“Mr. Fung"), the representative of Link, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary since 1 October 2019.

Mr Fung has over ten years of professional experience in public
accounting and auditing, and had previously served in international
audit firm and acted as company secretary for a Hong Kong listed
company. Mr. Fung is a practicing member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounts. Mr. Fung obtained a degree of bachelor of
business administration in accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in 2007.

The financial controller of the Company is the primary point of
contact at the Company with the Company Secretary.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has access to
the advice and services of Mr. Fung at all time in accordance with
Code Provision F.1.4 of Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules"). Mr.
Fung has taken no less than 15 hours of professional training during
the Year under review pursuant to the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

In accordance with the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely
to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show
of hands. Therefore, all votes of the Shareholders at general
meetings shall be taken by poll. The results of voting by poll will be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the Company
respectively.

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward proposals at Shareholders'
meetings

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary by mail at Room 1201, 12/F, C C Wu Building, 302-308
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to
the Board by sending their written request to the Company's
correspondence address in Hong Kong.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there has been no
significant change in the Company's constitutional documents.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with Shareholders and investors
of the Company. The Board also recognises that effective
communication with investors is the key to establish investor
confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the Group
is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to
ensure that the investors and the Shareholders receiving accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the
publication of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and
circulars. The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence
on the Company's website at http://www.investech-holdings.com.
The Board continues to maintain regular dialogues with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time to keep them informed of the
Group's strategy, operations, management and plans. The Directors
and the members of the Board committees would attend and are
available to answer questions at general meetings of the Company.
Separate resolutions would be proposed at general meetings of the
Company on each substantially separate issue.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.
The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The procedures and feature of the Group's risk management and

internal control systems are as follows:

For risk management

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.
Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

For internal control

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.
Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

The management of the Company has established a set of

comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of

operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets

against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper

accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial

information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the

likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.
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The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company's and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

The Group has established systems and procedures for
disseminating inside information as defined under the Securities and
Future Ordinance (the "SF0") so as to ensure inside information is
promptly identified and escalated. Directors and management of the
Group have received relevant trainings to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such information is
efficiently and consistently made.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to submit herewith this annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong
is Room 1201, 12/F, C C Wu Building, 302-308 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Group was mainly engaged in the provision
of network system integration including provision of network
infrastructure solutions, network professional services and mobile
internet software of mobile office automation software business, the
network equipment rental business and money lending business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is included in
the sections of Chairman’s Statement, Financial Summary and
Management Discussion and Analysis which are set out in pages 5 to
28 of this report and the paragraphs below.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the SFO for the disclosure of
information and corporate governance. The Group also complies with
the requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating
to occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
financial year under review up to the date of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group promotes environmental protection by raising the
employees’ awareness of resources saving and efficient use of
energy. In recent years, the Group has implemented several policies
to encourage employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs which are
beneficial to the environment and meet the commercial goals of the
Group.

For further information about the environment policies and
performance of the Company during the Year, please refer to
the Environmental. Social and Governance Report prepared in
accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules to be published in
the middle of April 2021 and will be available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company accordingly.

KEY RISK FACTORS
The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group:

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is subject to government
policies, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with applicable rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors
changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as
conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in
parts of business to improve performance and efficiency of the
Group. While gaining the benefits from external service providers,
management realises that such operational dependency may
pose a threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in
service including reputation damage, business disruption and
monetary losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group only
engages reputable third party providers and closely monitors their
performance.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the year under review.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers' needs in an effective and efficient manner.
Each department works closely to make sure the tendering
and procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner. The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of business intelligence
to understand customer trends and needs and regular analysis on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors consider that the declaration, payment and amount
of the dividend shall be subject to the status of the Group's future
development. The Board does not recommend any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to Shareholders after considering the Company's ability to
pay dividends, which will depend upon, among other things, its actual
and expected financial performance, its current and future business
operation, level of liquidity, capital requirements, contractual and
regulatory restrictions and so on. The Board has complete discretion
on whether to pay a dividend, subject to Shareholders' approval,
where applicable. Even if the Board decides to recommend and
pay dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
its actual financial performance, its current and future business
operation, level of liquidity, capital requirements, contractual and
regulatory restrictions of and affecting the Group. The Board may
also consider declaring special dividends from time to time, in
addition to the interim and/or final dividends. The Company would
review and reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a
regular basis or as required.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB156.2 million as at 31 December 2020. Such
amount includes the Company's share premium and capital reserve
accounts of approximately RMB731.7 million and accumulated losses
of approximately RMB575.5 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will
to be closed from 10 May 2021 (Monday) to 14 May 2021 (Friday)
(both dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. The holders of shares whose name appears on
the register of members of the Company on 14 May 2021 (Friday)
will be entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting of
the Company (the “Annual General Meeting”). In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 May
2021 (Friday).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein, no contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or
existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group's top five largest customers comprised
approximately 27.2% (2019: 34.1%) of the Group's sales and
the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were
approximately 7.8% of the Group's sales. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's top five largest suppliers comprised
approximately 42.8% (2019: 62.7%) of the Group's purchases for the
year and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
were approximately 27.5% of the Group's purchases for the year.

So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company's issued shares capital had any interest in the share capital
of any of the top five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 232 of this report.

The Group's loss attributable to owners of the parent for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB83.1 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo (Chairman and CEO)
Ms. Wang Fang (Vice CEO)

Mr. Lu Chengye

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (Appointed on 1 August 2020)
Mr. Ching Chau Wa (Resigned on 1 August 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek
(with his former name of Wong Tat Wai, Derek)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund

Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen

Mr. Huang Liangkuai

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Liu Chun
Fai shall retire and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual, general meeting at least once
every three years. Ms. Wang Fang (executive Director) and Mr. Wong
Chun Sek, Edmund (independent non-executive Director) are the
Directors, whom, since their last election, serve the longest in office,
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Save and except for Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund, who has indicated
that he will not stand for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the remaining retiring Director, Ms. Wang Fang,
being eligible, has confirmed that she will offer herself for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The Company
will identify a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy occasioned by the
retirement of Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund in due course.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years. Each of Mr. Chan Sek Keung,
Ringo and Ms. Wang Fang's current service contract commenced
on 23 December 2018, Mr. Lu Chengye's current service contract
commenced on 29 May 2019, and Mr. Liu Chun Fai's current service
contract commenced on 1 August 2020.

Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek's (non-executive Director) has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years, and his
current service contract commenced on 1 August 2019.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund and Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen
(both are independent non-executive Directors) has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years. The
service contact of Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund's was renewed on 2
June 2020 for a term of three year commencing on 5 June 2020. Mr.
Lu, Brian Yong Chen’s current service contract commenced on 25
June 2018. The service contract of Mr. Huang Liangkuai (independent
non-executive Director) was renewed on 25 February 2020 for a term
of one year commencing on 25 February 2020.

All service contracts with Directors are subject to termination, among
others, by giving not less than three month'’s written notice.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The C&B Committee considers and recommends to the Board
the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the C&B Committee to ensure that the levels of
their remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details of
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to 34 of
this report.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE IN INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
information on Directors is as follows:

(1) Mr. Ching Chau Wa resigned as an executive Director, a member
of each of the Compensation and Benefits Committee and
the Investment Committee of the Company with effect from 1
August 2020.

(2)  Mr. Liu Chun Fai has been appointed as an executive Director, a
member of each of the Compensation and Benefits Committee
and the Investment Committee of the Company with effect from
1 August 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director and a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the "Model Code") as follows:

Interest in Shares and underlying shares of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EENR S RN PZ2ED

FABDHHEEAERAE  WEA T EFRHE
AEEFRAFRNEFEEERRRE LETILES
EREFCHEBRENAETHEEARD S
AR5 BFHEL

EEREETHRASRRKG - 8RRG
R G HEsE By e ik

A CECERF+ "B+ —H ' BEERARER
BITBRAERAAT N EAEERLZE (E&
EE MG KA HEXVER) IR ~ MHRARRD R &R
BHEAERESE S MPERAEXVESET S
DWEMNF AR RBE RN ERN RS (BE
RIEZESRBERIZEEREFI RS E
BENERIRAE) WAL ERRIBEESREE
BREIEREFEEZ S LMW ERI KA
FIRE LR BT AERETHESFIZNEESTRY

(THZ#E<FR))) BRI A QB RN ER
ARBEWT !

AT IRD R ABRARR D PRV

Name of Director Capacity

BRSNS a4

Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo Interest of controlled

("Mr. Chan") ™M@ corporation
BsesE (MR ) e RfEEEG

Beneficial owner

BaBEBA
Beneficial owner
BEamBEEA
Ms. Wang Fang Interest of controlled
("Ms. Wang") @@ corporation
et ((FgL))o0 RELRRED

Beneficial owner

EmBEAA

(L): Long position

Percentage of
Number of Number of the issued
issued ordinary underlying shares share capital
Shares held/ of the Company of the Company
interested in held/interested in (approximate)
e/ GEERD  RA/EEED fEAAF
ZBEfT . YN B&{TRA
LER¥E HamRMHE B2t (#4)
330,082,839 (L) - 23.51%
74,267,000 (L) - 5.28%
- 720,000 (L) 0.05%
310,118,839 (L) - 22.08%
- 7,200,000 (L) 0.51%
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Interest in Shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

(1) Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested in 330,082,839 Shares,
comprising of (i) 310,118,839 Shares held by Smoothly Global Holdings
Limited by virtue of it being owned as to 70% by Mr. Chan and (ii)
19,964,000 Shares held by Woodstock Management Limited by virtue of
it being owned as to 100% by Mr. Chan.

(2)  Ms. Wang was deemed to be interested in 310,118,839 Shares held by
Smoothly Global Holdings Limited by virtue of it being owned as to 20%
by Ms. Wang.

(3)  These Shares are the share options granted to Mr. Chan and Ms. Wang
under the share option scheme of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), which had been recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the Year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the Year
or subsisting during the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 October
2010 (the "Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of enabling
the Company to grant options to selected eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high caliber employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
invested entity.

Eligible participants include the Directors, any employee (whether
full-time or part-time) or Shareholder, and any customer, supplier,
agent, business or joint venture business partner, consultant,
distributor, promoter, service provider, adviser or contractor to any
member of the Group.

The maximum number of Share which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the Shares in issued as at the Listing Date, i.e. 72,000,000 Shares.
The scheme mandate limit was refreshed on the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2017 to 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue on the same day, i.e. 97,500,000 Shares. No
option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme
such that the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to that person in
any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of
the Company's issued share capital from time to time.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required
to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on the offer
date. The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than which ever is the
highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant, which must be a
business day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

(c) the nominalvalue of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from 15 November 2010 after which no further options will
be granted or offered. As at 31 December 2020, the Share Option
Scheme has expired.

Movements of share options during the year ended 31 December
2020 under the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows and
details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements:
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)
Movements of Share Option Scheme during the Year
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Balance Balance
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat31 Exercise
1January during during during during December Price
List of Grantees 2020 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020 HKS  Dateofgrant Exercise Period
RIBZ%%
R-E-%% ZA=+-H
ARARE -B-B&H REEERYE REEERFE  REEEXN  REEEHS g EEER R e
Directors
E%
Chan Sek Keung, Ringo 720,000 = = = = 720,000 1.70 251012006 25/10/2016-
5k (Note 1) 25102026
(1) (Note?)
W#2)
Wang Fang 7,200,000 - - - = 7,200,000 1.70 251012006 25/10/2016-
1% Note 1) 25110/2026
(1) (Note2)
W#2)
Total 7,920,000 - - - - 7,920,000
st
Notes: Hiat -

1.

The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$1.73.

Up to 40% of the options granted (the “First Options"”) are exercisable
during the period from 25 October 2016 to 25 October 2026 (both
days inclusive) (the "First Period"); up to 30% of the options granted
(the “Second Options”) (together with the First Options to the extent
the same has not been exercised during the First Period, as the case
may be) are exercisable during the period from 25 October 2017 to
25 October 2026 (both days inclusive) (the “Second Period"); up to
30% of the options granted (the “Third Options”) (together with the
First Options and the Second Options to the extent they have not been
exercised during the First Period and the Second Period, as the case
may be) are exercisable during the period from 25 October 2018 to 25
October 2026 (both days inclusive) (the “Third Period").

During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or

cance

lled under the Share Option Scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FER RN IR1D R AH BB {7 B9 = Bk
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING B

SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the FIEFNEFTHARTARSITHRAEMM R -F
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the persons or corporations _—_ZF+_-B=+—H > RAREKRH RBREK
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had 7 A BEm X B MAREREF KA HRM
interest or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the ~ SEXVE552/&%3 70 BIFX A4 A B H EE > LB aCE
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company under RiREBFEF KGR AIE336EBEFEZE LM

the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which ~ BYALZUEE (EEFHARABRSITHRAERIN
were recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of ~ ¥01°F :

the SFO were as follows:

Number of Number of Percentage of
issued ordinary underlying the issued
shares of the shares of the share capital of
Company held/ Company held/ the Company
Name of Substantial Shareholders  Capacity interested in interested in (approximate)
FisE/ BRRE  FRA/ AR fHAAE
FAREHT P YNGIE L BE&{TRE
TERREH g3 LERHE R #E B (BE49)
Smoothly Global Holdings Limited ~ Beneficial owner™ 310,118,839 (L) - 22.09%
(“Smoothly Global") EnkEa Al
Woodstock Management Limited Beneficial owner®@ 19,964,000 (L) - 1.42%
("Woodstock Management") BEaEAA?
Ms. Tin Yat Yu, Carol Beneficial owner 163,728,000 (L) - 11.66%
At ERBEEA
Interest of controlled corporation® 23,330,000 (L) - 1.66%
TEERES
Favor Way Investments Limited Beneficial owner® 23,330,000 (L) - 1.66%
(“Favor Way") EnkEa A
(L): Long position (L):F8
Notes: et -

(1)  These 310,118,839 Shares are held by Smoothly Global, a company (1)  #%%£310,118,839i& B {7 FiSmoothly GlobaliF5

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is ZABIANEBHEARAHEEMRUNBRA
70% and 20% owned by Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo and Ms. Wang Fang B WHRBREEREFSZ LT ARERT0%K
respectively. 20%7E % ©

(2) These 19,964,000 Shares are held by Woodstock Management, a  (2)  #%%519,964,0008% %15 FHHWoodstock Management

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability FR ZRaARABERRESHMMRINEG
and is 100% owned by Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo. FRAE] > M FA PR 7 58 5T 4 %5 100% o ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(3) These 23,300,000 Shares are held by Favor Way, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is
100% owned by Ms. Tin Yat Yu, Carol, who is deemed to be interested in
these 23,300,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation (other than Directors
or chief executives of the Company) having an interest or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would require to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of
not less than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
then controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries, at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to and
including the date of this report.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction of the Company subject to, among
other things, reporting, announcement or independent shareholders'
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The related party transactions under the paragraph headed
“Compensation of key management personnel of the Group” in note
38(e) to the consolidated financial statements were exempted from
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.73(6) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank balances (excluding pledged
deposits) of the Group amounted to approximately RMB76.1 million
(2019: approximately RMB48.8 million). Details of such are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately RMB48.2 million
(2019: approximately RMB64.6 million), among which approximately
RMB41.2 million (2019: approximately RMB38.9 million) was
unsecured and guaranteed by a director of the Company. As at 31
December 2020, the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of RMB17.6 million (2019: approximately RMB42.3 million) carried
at fixed interest rates and RMB30.6 million (2019: approximately
RMB22.3 million) carried at floating interest rates. Details of such are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,
there was no other significant subsequent event undertaken by the
Group subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 256 employees
(2019: 256).
Group is determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

The emolument policy of the employees of the

competence. The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme to
provide incentive to its senior management and employees. Please
refer to the paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme" in this report
for details of such scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total staff costs
(including directors' remuneration) amounted to approximately
RMB54.4 million (2019: approximately RMB49.5 million). The
Company maintains a Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to the eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in the section of Financial
Summary on pages 10 to 15 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata
basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 14 May 2021 (Friday)
and the notice of Annual General Meeting will be published and
despatched to Shareholders in due course.

REPORT OF THE [!i!RECTORS

FEHRE

ABER

R TERF+ A=+ —H AEEEF256
LET (CEBE—NE:256%) - KEEES BN
BRDBRERENRIB - BERRENEE AR
SRMBERES R AR EEE RESRME
Eho BRAGT EIMEIBA2BARE MERETE

—Ee

BHE_ZE_ZHFF+_RA=+—HLFE BIH
A (BREEEME) WA ARESLLBET (T
E-NF  OARBLSEETT) - AREAREBE
REE BARTASERSEALREER
RUERSKEHAEEFIFEMZ B KRR -

HEEE
FEBRBRTREMBEENEEREELHAE
HEEHNAREFI0EEISEHMEHE—o

BrchEhietE

RBEHERMURBEHE (FAFEMAIL
FEN A ER) ZAfBEEMETERES
RE UBA AT AR ABREREEITHR

BE -HENEOFEATN EHhEsF

BE_ZF_BHE+_AS+-ALFE FAFH
IR AR R E S M E A AT
ER L ES -
RRBFEXRG

KREBFAEFEN _Z-_—FHA+WMH (EH
)BT RREBFAGREFNBERETE
I E TR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF FIR 69



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by BDO Limited.

Ernst & Young resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 1 December 2020 as the Company and Ernst & Young could not
reach a consensus on the audit fee for the year ended 31 December
2020. BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 8 December 2020 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of Ernst & Young.

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan Sek Keung, Ringo
Chairman and CEO

Hong Kong
31 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

|IBDO

To the Shareholders of Investech Holdings Limited
BZERARAE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of InvesTech
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group"”)
set out on pages 82 to 232, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill
Refer to notes 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies on pages 103 to 105.

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of the Group's
goodwill amounted to RMB135.0 million, and an impairment of
goodwill of RMB57.6 million was made for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Based on management's impairment testing, goodwill was allocated
to the network system integration cash-generating unit (“CGU"), and
the recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on value
in use calculation carried out by an independent professional valuer
using cash flow projections. Significant judgement is involved to
determine the key inputs and assumptions used in the calculation of
value in use of the CGU.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (continued)

We identified impairment assessment of goodwill as a key audit
matter because of the management'’s significant judgement and
high level of estimation uncertainty involved in the determination of
the recoverable amount, and the net carrying amount of goodwill is
significant to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

o Evaluated the reasonableness of key inputs and assumptions
used in the cash flow projections, which include budgeted
revenue growth rates, long term growth rate, budgeted gross

margins and discount rate;

o Checked the arithmetic accuracy of the cash flow projections
used in the value in use calculation;

° Evaluated the reasonableness of disclosures related to
goodwill impairment assessment in the consolidated financial
statements; and

o Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent professional valuer used by management.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Fair value measurement of an unlisted equity investment
Refer to notes 3, 18 and 40 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 118.

The Group held an unlisted equity investment as at 31 December
2020, the fair value of which was estimated by management to be
RMB111.1 million. Such unlisted equity investment was classified as
a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Management engaged an independent professional valuer to
assess the fair value of the above unlisted equity investment as at
31 December 2020. The fair value of the unlisted equity investment
was determined based on a number of valuation techniques and
unobservable inputs, the selection of which requires the exercise of
significant judgement.

We identified fair value measurement of an unlisted equity
investment as a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement and high level of estimation uncertainty involved in the
determination of fair value, and the carrying amount and fair value
change during the year of such investment are significant to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

o Evaluated the reasonableness of selection of valuation
techniques, as well as those key assumptions and data used
in the fair value determination of the investment, with the
assistance of our valuation specialist;

o Evaluated the reasonableness of disclosures related to the fair
value measurement of the unlisted equity investment in the
consolidated financial statements; and

e Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the

independent professional valuer used by management and our
valuation specialist.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and loan
receivables

Refer to notes 3, 19, 21 and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 120 to 122.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables and loan
receivables, net of loss allowance for impairment, of RMB186.3
million and RMB12.6 million, respectively, which represented 25.9%
and 1.8% of the total assets of the Group. Net impairment of these
financial assets amounted to RMB9.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The estimation of expected credit losses (“ECLs") for trade
receivables and loan receivables requires management's significant
judgement and involves high level of estimation uncertainty.

Specific factors, such as ageing of the balances, existence of
disputes, past collection history, historical loss rates, forward-
looking information and any other reasonable and supportable
information available concerning the creditworthiness of
counterparties, would be considered during the estimation.
Management engaged an independent professional valuer to assist
with the estimation of ECLs.

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables and
loan receivables as a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement and high level of estimation uncertainty involved, and
the aggregate carrying amount of the trade receivables and loan
receivables is significant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and loan
receivables (continued)

Our response:

o Evaluated the appropriateness of estimation techniques used,
as well as the reasonableness of inputs and assumptions
used, to determine the ECLs. This includes assessment on the
groupings of customer categories under the provision matrix
used to estimate the ECL for trade receivables, accuracy
and relevancy of the historical loss rates and whether they
are reasonably adjusted based on recent loss experience
and forward-looking factors specific to the debtors, and the
realisable value of collaterals where appropriate;

o Checked the arithmetic accuracy of the calculation of ECLs;

° Evaluated the reasonableness of disclosures related to the ECL
estimation in the consolidated financial statements; and

o Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent professional valuer used by management.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 March
2020.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIZHBERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIZHERS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tang Tak Wah

Practising Certificate no. P06262

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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BIZHBERS

REMMESHRSMBRRZEE @

REEFBENFET EERTEZFHERE

ﬁé%?ﬁﬁ?%%z%%ﬁ’ilmﬁﬁ%
ﬁ%&%@ogﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁi$mm
E“@%%@ﬁ%ﬁ$ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%$ﬁLﬁ®%
REINBHRERNBERT > SRR M
BETEBRESRENNTNERRBBZRESE
EENARM o EFRENERBETEEZX
FRe

BRI EEREHMEHRAERAE
HEEEET

i

HEBZESIEP06262

EB _F_—F=A=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF F IR 81



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FalmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T T+ _F=+—HIFEE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses, net

Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of financial assets, net
Finance costs

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic and diluted
- For loss for the year

82 InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

EH)

H AU A R W
HE R DX
TR
HhFAs 2 4R
FERE
THEEREPER
RRE A2

PRI ARS8

FriSi

FEBR

BUT & LRSS

ISYNSIEZZ=PN
FREEfI D

BB SEKRED

FAEAELSRER

BEAR#E
—FERIE

(RMB5.92 cents)
(AE#5.929)

2020 2019

—E_BF “EBNEF

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

023 ARBFT ARET T

5 470,612 488,682
(417,849) (423,640)

52,763 65,042

5 6,027 3,891
(25,942) (24,654)
(48,801) (56,038)
(507) (2,967)

15 (57,612) -
(9,296) (3,797)
7 (2,926) (4,115)
6 (86,294) (22,638)
10 (392) (2,027)
(86,686) (24,665)
(83,051) (21,096)
(3,635) (3,569)
(86,686) (24,665)

12

(RMB1.51 cents)
(ANE1.519)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEEWNER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_FE_TFf _F=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
k- Jd 2 2 “E—NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTFT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FERIE (86,686) (24,665)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hfti2EzE,~ (B518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that IR HB AR SR O 4
may be reclassified to profit or loss AE@mNWEMEE
in subsequent periods: W, (E518)
Exchange differences on translation of MBEINEEFE 2
foreign operations PER =% 21,848 (57,997)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that REBIBERAIEHDLE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BT EMEE
in subsequent periods: (B548) /Wa
Exchange differences on translation of BMERNB M FIERE
the Company's financial statements REFEEBZ
into presentation currency bE 2 =% (24,489) 60,052
Financial asset at fair value through B EE AEM
other comprehensive income: S2EWRENEHEE .
Change in fair value NAEEEE) (271,491) (230,370)
Income tax effect FRigii s & = 3,235
(295,980) (167,083)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEHMEZM@E
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 518 INpRAIE (274,132) (225,080)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEZEBRBE
FOR THE YEAR (360,818) (249,745)
Total comprehensive loss MUTFEFEGEmERARLEE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent ISYNSTEZZ= N (356,994) (246,278)
Non-controlling interests FEEHI S (3,824) (3,467)
(360,818) (249,745)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HRE IR R

As at 31 December 2020
R-F-FF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—BEHF

it SIS
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARST R ARBF T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Otherintangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Loan receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Loan receivables

Interest receivables

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Equity investment at fair value through

profit or loss

Debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
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ERESE
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ESERIRE

BAREESAEM
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FEWER

IERENEEMBE
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FEWER

PRI B

FRATRIR  EfthFEUR
MIARHEMEE

BAnBEFABmD
RAKE

BAREES ABT
WEHKE

[REGSERES A

REKRREFEY

MBBEERE

13
14
15
16
17

19

20
21
19

22

23

24

25
25

1,044 1,487
2,963 8,248
134,952 192,564
98,691 118,936
3,650 3,002
111,078 382,569
1,749 3,913
354,127 710,719
12,648 12,881
199,575 210,280
14,783 27,034
149 343
42,916 53,743
999 1,249
13,055 13,856
6,090 31,018
76,128 48,781
366,343 399,185




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maMBRRE

As at 31 December 2020
KRoE-ZEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEnafE
Trade payables B S RIE 26 161,709 170,915
Contract liabilities aH8aE 27 23,284 24,932
Other payables and accruals HMENTIERESER 28 35,413 33,788
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t 8 BT K& EfthfE 29 46,184 57,664
Tax payable eI IE 13,196 14,140
Total current liabilities BB EAEE 279,786 301,439
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 86,557 97,746
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B EA(EREI&E 440,684 808,465
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Contract liabilities = V=R 27 3,344 2,296
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings +'§'$Eﬁ?§zﬁf’@faﬂk 29 1,991 6,966
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 17 14,805 17,841
Total non-current liabilities ElE ) =F=Ficks 20,140 27,103
Net assets BEEFE 420,544 781,362
EQUITY T
Equity attributable to owners of the parent  BFA B A AFE(GERE
Issued capital BE1TRAS 31 188,710 188,710
Reserves #H 33 182,389 539,383
371,099 728,093
Non-controlling interests JEPEH R 49,445 53,269
Total equity TR 4B %E 420,544 781,362
On behalf of the board REREEG
Chan Sek Keung, Ringo Liu Chun Fai
PR %58 BEE
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEmBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE T T+ _F=+—HIFEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREE AE(
Foreign Retained
Share Share Statutory Fair  currency profits/ Non-
Issued Share option Special award Other surplus value translation (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  reserve(a) reserve reserve(b)  reserve(c) reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
fElE RipsEm EERE  AREE
BEfTRE  RAEE (O] R HtEE®) ff(c) e EREE & FEbED Bl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABETT ARBTRT ARETR AR%TR AREBTRT AREBTR ARMTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
At1 January 2020 KoE-3E—F-R 188,710 625012 6306 61,066 203 (413 228 QU (383 4915 128098 53269 781382
Loss for the year FEFR o @ = = = = = o o (83,051) (83,01) (3,635) (86,686)
Other comprehensive income/  FEEHMIZE
(loss) for the year. Wit/ (6518)
Exchange differenceson ~ BESNEIXBZERER
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - - - - 22,031 - 22,031 (189) 21,848
Exchange differences BEXATRBRES
ontranslation of the 2IERZERER
Company's financial
statementsinto
presentation currency - - - - - - - - (24,489) - (24,489) - (24,489)
Changeinfairvalueof — #AAEESALM
afinancial asset at PERGNEREEN
fairvalue throughother ~ AR(BELE) MIHE
comprehensive income,
net of tax = = = = = = = (211,491) = = (271,491) = (211,491)
Total comprehensiveloss ~ FE2EFBEER
for the year - - - - - - - (211,491) (2,452) (83,051)  (356,994) (3,824)  (360,818)
Transfer from accumulated ~ ERREHEA
losses - - - - - - 1,780 - - (1,780) - - -
At31 December 2020 RZE-RE
+ZB=+-H 188,710 625,012* 6,304* 61,066* 2,073* (71473)*  31,002%  (488,922)* (9,815)*  (36,916)* 371,09 49,445 420,544
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
maEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BP T T+ F=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

Foreign
Share Share Statutory Fair currency Non-
Issued Share option Special award Other surplus value translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve  reserve(a) reserve  reserve(b)  reserve(c) reserve reserve profits interests equity
i ‘ DB ‘ ‘
i HhEEE) e HihERD) HfE(c) fE ERRE RREH Thign
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR AR AR ARET A T A ARBTR ARETT ARETT AR
At1 January 2019 RZ%2-n&-F-B 156,928 625,495 6,304 61,004 2,073 (7,473) 28,655 9,704 (9,316) 69,638 943,072 56,738 999,808
Loss for the year FEBRR = = = = = = = = = (21,09) (21,096) (3,569) (24,665)
Other comprehensive income/  EEEfMIZE
(loss) for the year: e/ (B4 ©
Exchange differenceson ~ ESNEIXBZERER
translation of foreign
operations = = = = = = = = (58,099) = (58,099) 102 (57,997)
Exchange differences BEXAEMBRER
ontranslation of the RIGHIERER

Company's financial

statementsinto

presentation currency o o o o = = = = 60,052 o 60,052 o 60,052
Changeinfairvalueof — ZARBEESALM

afinancial asset at PERGNEREEN

fairvalue throughother ~ AABEZE) MHE

comprehensive income,

net of tax = = = = = = - (2113) = = (227,135) = (227,135)

Total comprehensive income/  EE2E

(loss) for the year Wi/ (518 - - - - - - - (22113) 1953 (21,096)  (246,278) (3,467)  (249,745)
Issue of shares (note 31) RipET (3 31,782 652 = = ° ° ° = = = 32,434 - 32,634
Share issue expenses (note 31) AR{A%TRI57 (Fizk31) - (1,135) - - - - - - - - (1,135) - (1,135)
Transfer from retained profits & B R &7 o o o S S S 627 = = (627) - - -
At31 December 2019 RZE-—NE

+ZB=1+-H 188,710 625,012* 6,304 61,064% 2,073% (7,473)* 29,282* (217,431)* (7,363)* 47,915* 728,093 53,269 781,362

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERERBOEFEVBRRARANEG S
RMB182,389,000 (2019: RMB539,383,000) in the consolidated HARK182,389,000c (ZE—NE: ARKE
statement of financial position. 539,383,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERDEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E B T = —HIFEE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

88

Special reserve
The balances as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 mainly represent:

(i) the difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
by the parent and the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation of the
Company in 2008; and

(ii)  the excess, amounting to RMB13,330,000, of the consideration

paid by the parent for the acquisition of a subsidiary over the

consideration paid by Mr. Chi Shaolin (“Mr. Chi"), the then
controlling shareholder of the Company, for the acquisition of the
subsidiary from a third party.

Other reserve
Other reserve arose from acquisitions of non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries or disposals of interests in subsidiaries.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises
in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"), the Company's PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund
which is non-distributable. The appropriations to such reserve are
made out of net profit after tax of the statutory financial statements
of the relevant PRC subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve fund
can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
g@For ﬁf ieir ;nie_ii /; 1 De;femgirt;gg

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R B &&= EBNIRE s

Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interestincome
Finance income on the net investment in
a lease
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Fair value (gain)/losses, net:

Equity investment at fair value through
profit or loss
Debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss
Government grants released to the
statement of profit or loss
Amortisation of other intangible assets
(Reversal of impairment losses)/
impairment losses of
trade receivables, net
Reversal of impairment losses of deposits
and other receivables, net
Impairment losses of other loan
receivables
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down
of provision for inventories to net
realisable value
Impairment of goodwill

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets

Decrease in loan receivables
Decrease in interest receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities
Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase in government grants

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

PRI AT ES IR
ThRAIRIE 2
EH= DN
R1TFRI B WA
HEREFEEEN

BAE WA
YE BB KRR EITE

FREEERE
@ﬁ%ﬁ .
=) E5ER AR
&\ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ
2R E
BN RBER A
BERmZBHERE
FTABE@mRZ
B3 BT AL
HhEmp & =S
B 7 EUGRIA (BlE
BIERE) RE
[E518 5 28
BEREMEWRIE
BB RSB R Bl S AR
HhEWERRE
518
(WHWE/WMI
7(‘“%’“1%17

FE
ZiRE

EERELD,/ ()
557 R R U
A (8 i)

T RIE R
R H
A,/ ()

R E S b
A B R L
2R

GRD) /12
SER () 1
HAh R (AR R At 8 B

]

BT RGN

KERSRE
ENFE
B

KEEBFTE
Eﬁfléuuiﬁﬁéa

oy & o

(SN

2020 2019
—E2F —=—hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
(86,294) (22,638)
2,926 4,115
(419) (292)
(389) (553)
1,089 1,208
5,285 4,814
188 2,821
(1,607) (1,233)
(3,295) (1,631)
20,245 20,245
(71) 3,641
= (16)
9,367 172
(1,360) 1,022
57,612 -
3,277 11,675
1,593 (695)
10,503 (5,065)
10,827 (18,495)
5,939 15,344
194 1,023
(9,206) 13,240
(600) 20,250
1,625 3,711
3,295 1,631
27,4417 42,619
(2,926) (3,272)
(4,604) -
19,917 39,347
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_F_TFEfH = —HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBEEBIRES RE

Interest received BUH S

Purchases of items of property, plantand ~ BEEY% \-MEX
equipment REIEE

Proceeds from disposals of items of HEWE BB RRE
property, plant and equipment 15 B PrigsRiE

Purchase of a debt investment at fair value ~ FEEIRZ A RNEETA
through profit or loss BamNEHBESE

Interest from debt investment at fair value  3ZA A EEFT ABIEA
through profit or loss BEFRENAE

BEHERERREL, (8

Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits

REEEMS PR
REMNEFEE

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES KRB EZEIIRE HiE
New bank and other borrowings TG IR T R EL M fERR
Repayments of bank and other borrowings &3 IR1T R EME K

Principal portion of lease payments HENRAEE D
Proceeds from issue of shares AR B ATPRISRIE
Share issue expenses R 31T

Early redemption of coupon notes REELFSRE

Increase/(decrease) in loans from a director ZRE—% %%E’Jgﬁ’ﬂ
a0, Geizl)

RRE R ENFT A
REMNEFEE

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND IR RKIREEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1w, GRiZL) 7$%58
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERIREEEY

beginning of year - B
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net i BE 2R 4 & 57 285 48

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRRERIREEEY
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EER

Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe R FIRRRTIIR
statement of financial position HERIREEEY
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2020 2019

—E_BF “EBNEF

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Jiog=3 ARBT T ARKFT
419 845
(648) (372)

- 24
- (12,980)

- 794
24,928 (28,644)
24,699 (40,333)

48,146 76,946
(57,447) (62,255)
(7,341) (6,347)

- 32,434
- (1,135)
- (49,323)
789 (37,806)
(15,853) (47,486)
28,763 (48,472)

48,781 98,278
(1,416) (1,025)

76,128 48,781

25 76,128 48,781




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

InvesTech Holdings Limited (the "“Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 16 November 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is located at P.0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus
Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands. The Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Room 1201, 12/F, C C Wu Building, 302-308 Hennessy
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group") are principally engaged in the provision of network
system integration including the provision of network
infrastructure solutions, network professional services and
mobile internet software of mobile office automation software
business, the network equipment rental business and money
lending business.

P 5 4R R P 5E

31 December 2020
CECEFEF A=A —H

AEREEER
RFIZERARAR (AAE) AR _2F
tFE+—A+/"BEHEESEMAIL
ERRBREELE ERONREEBHS
RBMBERAT (THAZAT)) TR LEH oA
NE) M S R M AL I Z3P.0. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands e A RABIEARAEESEMMA S
BT EF 255 E302-3085 R £ A 01248
1201ZE °

ERBDHREERRAT - A RB R EK B
NE (B IaEl) TEREREEER
MES SREREHABERERBRASE
MEHEERBREIMAZEEBCTRME
BB EMERT BERREEEEXRS
RIBEFES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

AR REEEH (8
il VNGBS
FABREEMBARZHBEOT

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company
FRTIRMERES DL
Place of incorporation/
registration and
business
SEfAR L, AR
R

Issued ordinary/
registered share
capital
BRITEE/
R B GifE

Direct Indirect  Principal activities

TEXEH

Fortune Grace Management BVI Uss$100 75 - Investment holding
Limited" (“Fortune Grace") EBETRHE 100% 7T REERG
Fortune Grace Management
Limited" (T Fortune Grace | )
Wafer Systems Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong dollars - 75  Investment holding
BERRERAF s ("HKS$") 67,269,905 KREEZER
67,269,9057%8 70
(870
Wafer Systems Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 75  Investment holding
(China) Limited 55 30,000,000 7T and network system
BERG (FE) BRAR integration
KEERR B
RRES
Beijing Wafer New Century PRC/Mainland China USS$15,000,000 - 75  Investment holding
Information Technology Co., HE FREIARE 15,000,000% 7T and network system
Ltd. ** integration
("Beijing Wafer") REER RA8%
IO LB B A5 Bl ARES
BIRAR* (NEREE))
Wafer Network Systems PRC/Mainland China RMB6,580,000 = 75  Network system
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ** FRE B ARE AE#6,580,0007C integration
LEERRBRARERATY PRARES
Wafer (Xi'an) Software Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China US$700,000 = 75 Researchand
*4 ("Xi'an Wafer") FE R ARE 700,000 7T development
B3 (A% REERAE i

(TAZEE)
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
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REAKRERER @
M ARFE @

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to
the Company

FABEGRIET D

Direct Indirect  Principal activities

Bk Mg FEEH

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/

registration and registered share

business capital

SEMR AL, 5 R BRTESE/

ik A

Wafer Systems Vietnam US$400,000
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd. e 400,0005 7T

("Vietnam Wafer")
RERS (HE) BRAE

(TEmE )
InvesTech Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS1
EEMHEBERAR e 187
Chunlin Group Limited Hong Kong HKS1
EREEERAF aB 187
Chunlin Technology Development  PRC/Mainland China RMB833,000,000©
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. *** FRER R E A RE AR
(“Chunlin Technology 833,000,0007c®

Development”, formerly known
as Chunlin Finance Leasing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.)
ERRRERE (R BRAT*
(TERERER)  AIRERR
BHE (R BRAE)

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not
audited by BDO Limited or another member firm of the BDO
global network

# Wholly-foreign-owned limited liability enterprises
* The English name is for identification purpose only
@ The registered share capital of Chunlin Technology Development

amounted to RMB833,000,000, among which RMB594,732,000
was unpaid as at 31 December 2020.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

- 75  Network system
integration

BEARES

- 100 Money lending

- 100  Investment holding
and sale of
telecommunications
products
REERNIFE
BNEmR
- 100  Technology Development
R R
(2019: Finance leasing)
CE-NEF  MEHEE)

§ HEEMBRERLIFHEBIULEERE
MEBMARARNIGEREREERE
B AR EZNNE AT

¢ SNEBERRAFE

* E @2 e il

€ RIZ-FE+-_R=+—H'FHK
LMK ARY833,000,0005t 0 H
fR AR #6594,732,0007T i) AR AT ©

EREIEERRETERETEFEEN
A EREEFEETEZMONEATMN
BAF %%.m?%kﬁ\/ﬁmﬂﬁ BABRER
SENEBRT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1

94

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards ("IASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for a
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income, an equity investment at fair value through profit or loss
and a debt investment at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to IFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Reform
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8

The impact of the adoption of Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-
19-Related Rent Concession have been summarised in below.
The other new and amended IFRSs that are effective from 1
January 2020 did not have significant financial effect on these
consolidated financial statements.

96 InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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2.2

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Impact of the adoption of Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-
19-Related Rent Concession

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
novel coronavirus (“Covid-19") pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and only if (i)
the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
(ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly
lease payments for the leases of the Group's office building
have been reduced or waived by the lessors as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic and there are no other changes to the terms
of the leases. The Group has early adopted the amendment
on 1 January 2020 and elected not to apply lease modification
accounting for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as
a result of the Covid-19 pandemic during the year ended 31
December 2020. The rent concession amounted to RMB151,000
has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards,
and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that
are effective in future accounting periods that the group has
decided not to adopt early.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 BilafEMRERZERMFBRS
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to [AS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37
Amendments to IAS 39,

IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and |AS 28

Amendments to IFRS 1,

IFRS9,IFRS 16
and IAS 41

IFRS 17

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

9 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use*

Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2!

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020?

Insurance Contracts*
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acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2022

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

J The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on

or after a date to be determined
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification
is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the
end of the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers
to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.

Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the Amendments
to IAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to Int 5 (2020)
updates the wordings in the interpretation to align with the
Amendments to IAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not
change the existing requirements.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from
selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in
profit or loss.
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2.3

100

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IFRS
16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019
and relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which
an entity will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to
reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge
accounting in which an entity will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes changes required
by the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge accounting
criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an entity will be required
to disclose information about new risks arising from the Reform
and how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead
of the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to IFRS
3 a requirement that, for obligations within the scope of IAS
37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past
events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC-Int 21
Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC-Int 21 to determine whether
the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy
has occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments also
add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new
associate or joint venture.
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2.3
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards, which permit a subsidiary that applies paragraph
D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent's
date of transition to IFRSs.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees included in the
‘10 per cent' test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability, explaining that
only fees paid or received between the entity and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other's behalf are included.

IFRS 16 - Leases

Leases, which amend Illustrative Example 13 to remove the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by
the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

IAS 41 - Agriculture

Agriculture, which remove the requirement to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset
using a present value technique.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General Model’, which
is modified for insurance contracts with direct participation
features, described as the ‘Variable Fee Approach’. The General
Model is simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring the
liability for remaining coverage using the Premium Allocation
Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the

application of the amendments and revision in the future will
have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and
equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets and goodwill),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person
(i)  has control orjoint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020
—ETEFE+—H=+—H

2.4 ERGHBEHRE @

FERMBEERE (@
MESRENEERMEBLEITRES
BB T LURESR - ST e BB ER » A5t R
RIBEMEL A RRFRHIH T LG
R EREERERRIBRR A IR R
BMERE - BEBENDNEERBS AR
HRNEEREEENE—RZHAXIER
Ao

RERESPREETHEUBEE ST R
Rz BRI EBETBEEIR
Do fi HIRZ IR » B F (A5t A UK [El 88 -
BEESBNEE (FERIN BEGERER
F3 LU E 2 TR E E P WA B] s 3R B9 1 5t o
Friol - ERRIRNBEI TSN IRRE
FTEETEMREERSREGEMESN
FREE (ORREMITE HiER) - mES
BRERINEEREF ABTmTe

RIZET
ER—FWBLUTER BIR A EEE
RE

(@) BAREFMALTHEKIERHRE M
g Mm&ZAL

(i) EFRIHHEFERFER
(i) HEAEEBEAZE , N
(i) RAEEENAEEBZHFAFH

EEEERENHED—RK
8

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF F IR 1 O 7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MEE

31 December 2020

o e 2 e =

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

108

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Equipment 33.3%
Motor vehicles 33.3%
Others 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment, including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Technology know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 10 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
asincurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the

estimated useful life of the asset.

1 ] 2 InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the lease payments and
related payments (including the initial direct costs), and
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The finance income of such leases is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is
classified as a finance lease or operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
on-balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies
the sublease as an operating lease.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial asset designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investment)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investment as equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings, and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, loans from
a director, coupon notes, and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain products for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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126

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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128

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

130

(a) Sale of goods

(b)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the

point in time when control of the asset is transferred

to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods by

customers. Invoices are usually payable within 7 to 30

days.

Rendering of services

(i)

Installation services

The Group provides installation services that are
either sold separately or bundled together with
the sale of goods to a customer. The installation
services can be obtained from other providers and
do not significantly customise or modify the goods.

Contracts for bundled sales of goods and
installation services are comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to
transfer the goods and provide installation services
are capable of being distinct and separately
identifiable. Accordingly, the transaction price is
allocated based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the goods and installation services.
Invoices are usually payable within 7 to 30 days.

Revenue from installation services is recognised
over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the Group's performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the installation services.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b) Rendering of services (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Maintenance services
Revenue from the provision of maintenance
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Construction contracts for communication
network infrastructure

The Group also provides design and build data
network infrastructure services to customer. A
contract with a customer is classified by the Group
as a construction contract when the contract
relates to work on the infrastructure under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group's
construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control. Invoices are usually
payable within 30 days.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected

life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4

132

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil
a contract when those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the cost relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental costs of
obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs
of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

The Group applies the practical expedient in IFRS 15 and
recognises the incremental costs of obtaining contracts
relating to the sale of completed properties and services as an
expense when incurred if the amortisation period of the assets
that the Group otherwise would have recognised is within the
same reporting period as the date of entering into the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Contract asset is recognised when the Group completes the
delivery under such services contracts but yet certified by
customers. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which
the delivery is certified by customer. If the considerations
(including advances received from customers) exceeds the
revenue recognised to date under the output method then the
Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions").
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134

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note 32 to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, oris
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees' basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

For the defined contribution schemes of the Group, the
forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) would not be used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contribution.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company's presentation currency. The Company, which
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands, uses the HKS as
its functional currency. As the Group mainly operates in
Mainland China, RMB is used as the presentation currency
of the Company. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes
Deferred tax liabilities should be recognised for withholding
tax levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised,
based upon the probability that dividends would be declared.
The Group is of the view that it is able to fully control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference arising from
dividend distribution of these subsidiaries and it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will make such profit distribution in the
foreseeable future. Therefore, the Group has not recognised
any deferred tax liability for withholding taxes as at 31
December 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that affect the
determination of the amount of revenue from contracts with
customers:

Measurement of value of construction works for
communication networks infrastructure

The management measure the value of completed construction
work based on output method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurement of the value of construction
work transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining construction works promised to be completed
under the construction contract. The management's estimate
of revenue and the completion status of construction works
requires significant judgement and has a significant impact
on the amount and timing of revenue recognised. The Group
has the qualified surveyors to periodically measure the value
of the construction work completed for each construction
projects and issue the internal construction progress reports.
The construction works performed by the Group would also be
certified by the independent quantity surveyors periodically
according to the construction contracts. The Group regularly
reviews and revises the estimation of contract revenue
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses based on the internal construction progress
reports and the certification issued by the independent quantity
surveyors.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer categories that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating and coverage by letters of credit or other forms
of credit issuance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
payment profile of the trade receivables. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer's actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also a suitable discount rate to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2020 was RMB134,952,000 (2019:
RMB192,564,000). Further details are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The value-
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can
be utilised. Significant management's judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value measurement of debt and equity investments
Where fair value of debt and equity investments cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using
valuation techniques. The inputs used in the valuation are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. This valuation requires the Group to make estimates
about expected factors which may have impact on the fair
value of the debt and equity investment and the discount for
lack of marketability, illiquidity and control and hence they
are subject to uncertainty. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of debt and
equity investment. The Group's debt investment at fair value
through profit or loss at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB13,055,000 (2019: RMB13,856,000), equity investment
at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB999,000 (2019: RMB1,249,000) and the
Group's unlisted equity investment, which was accounted for
as a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 31 December 2020, was approximately
RMB111,078,000 (2019: RMB382,569,000). Further details are
included in notes 18, 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay", which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’'s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the communication system segment, which is engaged in
the provision of network system integration including the
provision of network infrastructure solutions, network
professional services and mobile internet software of
mobile office automation software business, and the
trading of telecommunications products; and

(b) the money lending segment, which provides credit
financing to entities and individuals in Hong Kong.

3.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax.
The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's loss before tax except that interest income,
unallocated income and gains, non-lease-related finance
costs, as well as corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss, debt investment at fair value through
profit or loss, and corporate and other unallocated assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (other than lease liabilities), tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities, loans from a director and corporate and other
unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) L, RBEFIER @

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_E-_ZTHE+_A=+—HLEE
Communication Money
system lending* Total
BERH WE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR AR®TT
Segment revenue (note 5) &Rk (FTEE5)
Sales to external customers MmN E P IEE 469,116 1,496 470,612
Segment results DEREELE (68,479) (8,016) (76,495)
Interest income FEUWA 419
Finance costs (other than MERS FAEaE
interest on lease liabilities) ) EBRIN (2,255)
Corporate and other REIREMEKDE
unallocated expenses 552 (7,963)
Loss before tax PRI AIESIE (86,294)
Segment assets DEPE E 607,538 12,777 620,315
Corporate and other NE)REME D
unallocated assets BE 100,155
Total assets BEEHEE 720,470
Segment liabilities AEEE 215,735 243 215,978
Corporate and other NEREMK DB
unallocated liabilities afE 83,948
Total liabilities = REECEE] 299,926

Other segment information: Hith 3 EBE*} :
(Reversal of impairment loss)/  FA1E@m KPR
impairment losses recognised (B {EE5 & #5[E])

in the statement of /SRR SEE

profit or loss, net (71) 9,367 9,296
Impairment of goodwill EESERE] 57,612 - 57,612
Depreciation and amortisation 725 K # 26,619 - 26,619
Capital expenditure* BARRE* 648 - 648
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 25 March 2021,
the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to dispose of InvesTech Finance
(International) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, at a consideration of HK$16,000,000 (the “Disposal
Transaction”). InvesTech Finance (International) Limited
and its subsidiary (the "Disposal Group”) are principally
engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong. The results
of the Disposal Group will be presented as a discontinued
operation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the financial year ending 31
December 2021. Details of the Disposal Transaction have been
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 March
2021.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) L, RBEFIER @

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_T-hF+-A=+—HL#F
E
Communication Money
system lending Total
BIERR 4= Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARETT
Segment revenue (note 5) AE S (FiEES)
Sales to external customers BINBEEIHE 484,655 4,027 488,682
Segment results DEPEE (10,732) 3,206 (7,526)
Interest income F) WA 292
Unallocated income and gains RO EURA KUz 1,233
Finance costs (other than MERAS FEEEE
interest on lease liabilities) M EBRIN (3,149)
Corporate and other NE)REME D
unallocated expenses 2 (13,488)
Loss before tax PRIgRIESIE (22,638)
Segment assets DEEE 986,264 25,398 1,011,662
Corporate and other NE R E MRS
unallocated assets BE 98,242
Total assets BEMRE 1,109,904
Segment liabilities DEPEE 231,119 480 231,599
Corporate and other REREMAKRDE
unallocated liabilities =L 96,943
Total liabilities SRR 328,542

Other segment information: Hith 3 EE*} :
Impairment losses recognised ~ FAEmR TP RERH

in the statement of VEREY SEi=berE
profit or loss, net 4,819 = 4,819
Depreciation and amortisation 7 25 K 26,267 = 26,267
Capital expenditure** B 3,508 = 3,508
**  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and **  BARYEIEABEYE -BREEZBEUR
equipment and right-of-use assets. {FRBEEE-
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) L RBEJIER @

Geographical information IR Bl
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIIEBERZKA
2020 2019
—E_BF “EBNEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARET T
Mainland China F [ P 3t 418,684 400,858
Vietnam 2] 37,217 72,934
Hong Kong 558 7,634 6,152
United States of America B 3,095 4,661
Other countries/regions HMER & 3,982 4,077
470,612 488,682

LU A BT DA P PR RS 2 K

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers. o

(b) Non-current assets (b) FETEEE
2020 2019
—BEF —ZT-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AE®BFT
Mainland China F B g 3 350,474 707,669
Hong Kong B 1 48
Vietnam 2] 2 -
350,477 707,717

LHIFRBEEEMOUEEMR®E
MERKER EF T REELERES
Ao

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) L, RBEFIER @

Information about major customers ] ﬁéigéﬁ ZE#
No revenue from sales to a single external customer amounted BE_Z_EF+_A=+—HLFE>
to over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended BEEE—SBERIEENHERABS
31 December 2020. REEBAEUTAT0% °
Revenue of approximately RMB72,934,000 was derived from RBE_Z—NF+_A=+—HLHF
sales by the communication system segment to a single E> 1451)\“]/\@“”72 934,0007T75R BaEB(E
customer during the year ended 31 December 2019. RO BHE—KLNIHE -
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. UWRA ~ EthUg A Bz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
2020 2019
—= —vﬂz :g_hﬁz
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers ~ ZREZEE &K Z WA 469,116 484,655
Revenue from other sources IR B H MR Z WA
- Interest income from money lending —REBEEHZ
business FBEUWA 1,496 4,027
470,612 488,682
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. URA ~ ELftil A R Ui zs @

Revenue from contracts with customers RKEEEEHNZIA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) ZFEUAEK
Communication system segment BISAZTE
2020 2019
—E2IEF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFIT
Type of goods or services A mEARFEERR
Sales of goods HESM 296,144 418,579
Rendering of services AR 172,972 66,076
Total revenue from contracts with REREE G ZHEWA
customers 469,116 484,655
Geographical markets IR 5
Mainland China FR [ P 3t 418,684 400,858
Vietnam 2] 37,217 72,934
Hong Kong 58 6,138 2,125
United States of America S 3,095 4,661
Other countries/regions HMER & 3,982 4,077
Total revenue from contracts with REFFRGHZBEA
customers 469,116 484,655
Timing of revenue recognition AN
Goods transferred at a point in time RE RS ES M 296,144 418,579
Services transferred over time Ve I R B AR 75 172,972 66,076
Total revenue from contracts with REER G ZHBUA
customers 469,116 484,655
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

5. A ~HEMMRARIKE @
RKEEESHZWA @
(i) PEUAEN &
TRITARSHBI SHNEENE
DA SEE

2020
—E-SF

—_—=—=

2019
—=—nE
RMB'000
NRETFTT

RMB'000
AR®T T

Revenue recognised that was included in Bt ARSHVEHEE

contract liabilities at the beginning of HE RSB -
the reporting period:
Sales of goods HESMm
Rendering of services RHEARTS

(ii) Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from invoice date, except for certain customers,
where payment in advance is normally required.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 to 90 days from invoice date, except for certain
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

13,422 6,415
11,510 564
24,932 6,979

(i) BAHEE
ERAERBENESENERBRN
T

HESm

BB ERRZNE mEFZER ™
—R B REHAE30EI0E N EIH
H—RBERMRENETERR
Jpe

FERIRES
BHEERREHEmEEREZENL
MM —AREETZ B HAEIEIERN
I E-RBERTRENETS
B ERSh o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(iij) Performance obligations (continued)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at the end of each of the
reporting period are as follows:

5.

U A~ Efth A Be i ms ()

REERSHNZIA @

(i) BREME (E)
REBRSHARDE TR TROEE
(CREMNE D RER) X ZERE
LI

2020 2019
—=F=F “E-NE

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T

Amounts expected to be recognised TEHATE S A IR AR FUE -

as revenue:
Within one year —FR
After one year —F®

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
certain services, of which the performance obligations
are to be satisfied within two years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA ~HtUA RS @

Other income and gains Hih A Rz
2020 2019
—EITH —ENEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Bank interest income RITHE WA 419 292
Finance income on the netinvestmentina FHERE FHEEENRE
lease A 389 553
Fair value gain on a debt investment at fair %A A EEFT ABE 2
value though profit or loss (note 24) BERENANEERZE
(Mf5E24) 1,607 1,233
Government grants released* B R MBUNfEAL* 3,295 1,631
Gain on collection of impaired trade WEIREH S HTSHY
receivables acquired in a business BREE ZEWFIE
combination** 2 Wamr* 73 116
Others H 244 66
6,027 3,891
3 There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to * G 3R B 52 A AL A AR R B AT IR 3K
these grants. HARE o
**  The gain was generated by the cash collection of trade > RE R BB S RUGRIEMREINRE 0 H
receivables which were fully impaired when they were acquired RREBE_ZE—AF+"A=+—HIF
by the Group through a business combination in the year ended EREEFEBERS HINEREHR TR
31 December 2015. BEZ B REURIE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MEE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

6.

156

LOSS BEFORE TAX
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

6. RIRAIRSIE

Cost of inventories sold* BEFEMAE*
Depreciation of property, plant and Y ENN Yk Ei =
equipment 13
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESEE 14
Amortisation of other intangible assets** HE{thiE & FE 2 i ** 16
Impairment of goodwill BRI E 15
Impairment of financial assets, net: ERMBEERETRE !
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B Z EWIE (BiE
impairment losses of trade E51EEE) RE
receivables, net 518 F 5 21
Impairment losses of other loan HAn W ERRE
receivables, net E518/2 %8 19
Reversal of impairment losses of BE R HEAMEU
deposits and other receivables, net RIER B R
e EIpE 22
Lease payments not included in the Rt AMEEG=
measurement of lease liabilities R E TR
- Short-term leases —rEHAME
Auditors' remuneration 2 Gl
Research and development costs B 22 Al 2
Foreign exchange differences, net EREREFER
Employee benefit expenses (including  EE=EFIFES (B
directors' and a chief executive's EER—BITH
remuneration) 4R BB )
- Wages and salaries —TER#E
- Pension scheme contributions — RIS EIHR
(Reversal of write-down) /write-down of ~ GE[EI#UR) MiRFEE
inventories to net realisable value* F R EIRRE*
Net fair value loss on equity investment at %A B E 5T A Bz Y
fair value through profit or loss*** BEBEARBE
SR B R ** 23
Inclusive of (reversal of write-down)/write-down of inventories *
to net realisable value
**  The amortisation of other intangible assets is included in “Cost of Ry
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
***  The new fair value loss on equity investment of fair value A

through profit or loss is included in “Other expenses, net” in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

2&@%5@&%‘6)&?%5% %/ Gt A) UTF&
g :

2020 2019
ZECZE —E—hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
394,724 371,188
1,089 1,208
5,285 4,814
20,245 20,245
57,612 -
(71) 3,641
9,367 172
= (16)

9,296 3,797
1,710 1,407
1,566 2,220
13,373 14,317
319 146
48,348 44,313
6,080 5,222
54,428 49,535
(1,360) 1,022
188 2,821

BER GO A MRFEE 2R

(=]

Hm & ESEM AL S Ba RS

R ITEE A ©

BARBEFABDNREREANEE
BIRFHEES ARG IRmAER M HMBEX

THEEIA o



7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS 1.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank and other borrowings IR1T R EMERA S

Interest on lease liabilities HESEHNE

Interest on coupon notes FMEREFE
DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees: W\
Executive directors and a non-executive ~ H{TEEKR—ZIEHIT
director ==t
Independent non-executive directors BIIFHITES

HITESER—RIFRT
EEMHEMME

Other emoluments of executive directors
and a non-executive director:

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REYEN
in kind
Pension scheme contributions RIRNESTEIHRR

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

=%
MBERADTUWT -
2020 2019
—ECEF “EB—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
2,255 2,339
671 966
- 810
2,926 4,115

EFRRETHASHM

R LHRR S FE(LTFA ) 55383(1)
(@)~ (b) () R (MEU R AT (REBEEEF
@mER) ROIF2HBTFURBZFEREEK
RBTHRAEMENT :

2020 2019
—BEHF —T-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
534 468

321 318

855 786

5,104 5,364

33 82

5,137 5,446

5,992 6,232
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020

—Z=
—=

158

A —H=+—H

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, two directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of

the Company during the year were as follows:

Mr. Huang Liangkuai =
Mr. Lu, Brian Yong Chen ERERFA
Mr. Wong Chun Sek, Edmund =

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
during the year (2019: Nil).

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

EFRBRETHASHM @
BHE_ZT—ARE+A=1+—HLEEE>
MmBEFERE R E B R HEZRB MR E
AABZBRIESEERBRE HE—
THBHN GV HRERWEI2 - ZEHE
RiEZARBEENRBHRBEASER
RS WRBEBEE -

(a) WIIFRITES
FEANTFAERBRBIUIFNTESRIME
TWOF

2020 2019

i ot~ —T-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBT T
107 106

107 106

107 106

321 318

FRTEBRVERABDBIUIFANTES
WEMME CZ—hF |-



DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and

the chief executive

2020 “E-EE
Executive directors: HITESE .
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo 873844
Mr. Lu Chengye e e
Ms. Wang Fang FEUL
Mr. Ching Chau Wa' BRELE!
Mr. Liu Chun Fai? BEERL
Non-executive director: FERTES !
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek®  FE{T 443
(with his former name HE B4
of Mr. Wong Dak Wai) TERRD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fees

ik
RMB'000

ARBTT

AB

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
A
REMER
RMB'000
ARBTT

B R M

31 December 2020

—ETEFE+—H=+—H

Pension
scheme
contributions
BAE

HE G
RMB'000
ARET

RESTHRAESHMN @

(b) HITEFR -FATEERRSITH

Total
remuneration

B
RMB'000
ARBETT

107 3,739 16 3,862
107 - - 107
107 1,054 8 1,169

62 31 9 382

4 - - 4
427 5,104 33 5,564
107 - - 107
534 5,104 33 5,671
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFRESITHAEHM @
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and (b) HMITEF -IEHITEERESITH
the chief executive (continued) AB @

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions remuneration

T Bk

e REWER  HEER  HHEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARMTFRT  ARETT

2019 “E-AE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chan Sek Keung, Ringo ~ [R#5385c4%E 106 3,712 16 3,834
Mr. Lu Chengye e e 106 = = 106
Ms. Wang Fang FruL 106 1,079 50 1,235
Mr. Ching Chau Wa' BRELE 106 573 16 695
424 5,364 82 5,870
Non-executive director: ERTES !
Mr. Wong Tsu Wai, Derek®  FE{T#E5E4E
(with his former name HEBRA%R
of Mr. Wong Dak Wai) FERRYD 4t - - 4t
468 5,364 82 5,914
! This director was appointed as an executive director of 1 ZEER _E—hE—FH—RHES
the Company on 1 January 2019 and resigned on 1 August EARATRTES TR _—_E-=F
2020. ENB—BEHE-
2 This director was appointed as an executive director of the 2 BEEN_S_ESENA—HEZ
Company on 1 August 2020. EANATHITES -
3 This director was appointed as a non-executive director of 3 BEEN_S—HhhENA—BHEZ
the Company on 1 August 2019. EAKRATIEHITES
There was no arrangement under which a director of the ERAATEERESTHRAEHE
Company or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive ST ZEHERES R E R E T A
any remuneration during the year. Bl o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2019: two) executive directors of the Company, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019: three)
highest paid employees who are neither director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

HlusE#HES
FRNLUERSHESEEFEEARIML (Z
T—NF M) RTES RENFHM
BEN EXHWES - FANEEGR=U (ZF
—NE =D UFERREFTHARSTH
ABRSHESNFMFBELT -

Salaries, allowances and benefitsinkind ~ ¥rs& 2 BE R EY)EF
Pension scheme contributions RIREFETEIHR

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

band is as follows:

2020 2019
—ETTHF —E2—hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥BTT AR®ETTT
2,177 2,460

30 99

2,207 2,559

FHMEUTHEENFESTRIFRSITEA
BNREHESEABUT !

Number of employees
EE A¥
2020 2019
—ETH —ZT-hF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to = Z1,000,00078 T FEER
RMB890,000) AR #890,0007T) 3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary
of the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year of
assessment 2019/2020. The first HK$2,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,779,000) (2019: HKS$2,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,763,000)) of assessable profits of this subsidiary is
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5%. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

Current - Hong Kong BPER—& &
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior B EE#EERE
years (EBEa#E )
Current - Mainland China BPEA— A [ Ayt
Charge for the year FAZH
Current - Vietnam BNHA— i r
Charge for the year FRZH

EIEFRISHE (5E17)

Deferred income tax (note 17)

Total tax charge for the year FRIRIE HARER
Except for the following companies, the subsidiaries of the
Company established in Mainland China were subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT") at the statutory tax rate of 25% in

the following years:

FrigfiE

FRBER6.5%RE (ZT—HE :16.5%)
MEBEEEBNMGTERREANFRES
FEREH BAEEN—BWE QSR
Shr ZARABTEE_BE—N/ B8
FREEREMNNMBHFSRREGE
M E RS - 5z B A B & 22,000,000 T (18
EMRARE1,779,00070) (ZE—HE:
2,000,000t (FEER AR1,763,000
7)) BIFESRREF148.25% R MR MR - H
BRFERRR A B 1216.5%89 R K830 - Hfth
HENERREFNNRECRAERLE
ERFERAEENERREFE-

2020
-

2019
—E-hE
RMB'000
AR¥FIT

RMB'000
ARBTT

8 (8)
3,026 1,996
1,042 3,507

(3,684) (3,468)
392 2,027

BRUTRBIS  ARABRPEAMAILZ
B AT LT FEERR25%EERRH
M= (MEEPER)

IR EE*
P22l 3

Beijing Wafer*
Xi'an Wafer**
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

* The entity is qualified as High and New Technology Enterprises

and was entitled to a preferential CIT rate of 15% for the years

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

*%

The entity has been recognised as a software enterprise and was

exempted from CIT for the years ended 31 December 2015 and

2016, and is entitled to a 50% reduction in the applicable tax rate

for CIT until year ended 31 December 2021.

The subsidiary which operates in Vietnam was subject to CIT at

a rate of 14% (2019: 20%) on taxable income for the year ended
31 December 2020. This entity is entitled to enjoy 30% tax relief
based on the condition that its revenue was less than VND200
billion (equivalent to RMB59,781,000) for the year ended 31

December 2020.

Loss before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%)

Different tax rates enacted by local
authorities in Mainland China

Different tax rates in different jurisdictions

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Income not subject to tax

Tax expense at the Group's effective
rate

PRI ATESE
¥216.5% (—ZE— . 16.
EERE S ENRIE

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

ﬁ SHFX @
ZEBTLBRRMERER ANREE
“ECEER-F-AE+-A=+—H
I EEEHEE L RAIERE5%-

ZEREERIABNGLE TERRH
MEE_ZS—HAFRZ—XRFE+ZA
= t+—HIEEENTEMSR UEEZ
BRE0%BATEMSHRMREZEERR
BE_E_—F+_HA=+—HIFE-

EMEEENIE AT AR CE—R
& 20%) WRERBE-B-BE+A
=+— B FEERREABA D LS
Mo BN BERRRE_S -85 +27

=+ —HIEEENKRZERR2,000EHEE
(HBEMNARKS59,781,0007T) BIEH » B
BREZZ30%MTRIER %

CRED Pt 75 IR FS /B B i BY

FERE
RER LB RERE
BRI AN IE R

TR BRI s

5 R AR Z IR TS RS 18T
MBTE
BARRZWA

RAEBEBRERIEL
MRIARSZ

2020 2019

RMB'000 RMB'000

ABR¥FIT ARMFIT

(86,294) (22,638)
5%)

(14,239) (3,735)

(816) 176

188 613

8 (8)

11,275 1,124

4,688 3,879

(712) (22)

392 2,027
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ok

wmRMIE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

11.

12.

164

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and subsequent to the end of
the reporting period (2019: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,404,000,000 (2019: 1,396,947,945) in issue during
the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

w1
AR BEREL

Loss
Loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, used in the

basic loss per share calculation FREREE
Shares iavl
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EERERBEN
shares in issue during the year used in FREZTEBER
the basic loss per share calculation N#EF 92K
Loss per share: FEEIE
Basic and diluted BEARKEE

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the impact of share options
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amounts presented.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

11.

12.

BAEA
FEIGE1R ANEt R

(o)
BE_T_THE+_RA=+—HIEFEK
R EHRE QBB 302 K
TRE (CEB—AF 8o

BAREBREGHE ARES
518
SREAEENREAEES AT ER
A ABGLER URFRBETE
AR N T ¥9%01,404,000,00088 (—ZE—H,
F 1 1,396,947,94508%) 5t o

BREXAEBEZABUTARBERKE

2020
BB HF

2019
—E—hE
RMB'000
ARETR

RMB'000
AR®T

(83,051) (21,096)
1,404,000,000 1,396,947,945
(RMB5.92 cents)  (RMB1.51 cents)
(AR #5.925) (ANR#1.519)

HRERTEZERESHERCERER
BEEHREREBEXE RIREHHET
ZCEFERZZE-NAF+ZA=+—HIL
FEER2EREXRGIEEHRELARE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ -BERSZE

Leasehold Motor
improvements Equipment vehicles Others Total

REMm=EE =t HE Htt fast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTRT ARt ARETR  ARETR

31 December 2020 ZZZZE+ZHR=+—H
At 1 January 2020 “2TTHE—f—H
Cost mA 1,159 1,52 728 1,419 4,833
Accumulated depreciation REHNE (724) (1,219) (488) (915) (3,346)
Net carrying amount REFE 435 308 240 504 1,487
At 1 January 2020, net of RIZZZEF—F—H>
accumulated depreciation MBRREHTE 435 308 240 504 1,487
Additions hE 1 502 = 145 648
Depreciation provided during the year  ER5HEZITE (192) (315) (147) (435) (1,089)
Exchange realignment EREX o (2) = = (2)
At31 December 2020, net of RIBZZE
accumulated depreciation +-B=+—H>
MRRHTE 244 493 93 214 1,044
At31 December 2020 RIZZZF
+-B=1+—H
Cost e 1,160 2,029 728 1,564 5,481
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (916) (1,536) (635) (1,350) (4,437)
Net carrying amount FREFE 244 493 93 214 1,044
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ME -BERSZE @

Leasehold Motor
improvements Equipment vehicles Others Total

THEMFEE &M RE At Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETT  ARETET

31 December 2019 “E-hE+ZA=t+—H
At1January 2019 “Z—h&—HF—H
Cost HA 1,154 1,392 714 1,257 4517
Accumulated depreciation Retirs (531) (923) (239) (473) (2,166)
Net carrying amount REFE 623 469 475 784 2,351
At 1 January 2019, net of R-E—h&—HF—H’
accumulated depreciation MR RFHTE 623 469 475 784 2,351
Additions HE 5 142 = 225 372
Disposal RE = = = (24) (24)
Depreciation provided during the year ERFHEZ I E (193) (300) (237) (478) (1,208)
Exchange realignment ER A% - (3) 2 (3) (4)
At31 December 2019, net of RZE—hF
accumulated depreciation +-B=+—H>
MR RFHTE 435 308 240 504 1,487
At31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+=A=+—H
Cost A 1,159 1527 728 1,419 4,833
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (724) (1,219) (488) (915) (3,346)
Net carrying amount FREZE 435 308 240 504 1,487
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no property, plant and R_E_EFER_EBE—hAhFEF+_B=+—
equipment were pledged. B Iy R REEHER

1 éé InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F



14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of machinery
and buildings used in its operations. Leases of machinery
generally have lease terms of 2 years. Buildings in Mainland
China generally have lease terms between 2 and 3 years.
Buildings in Hong Kong generally have lease terms between 1
and 2 years. Certain offices have lease terms of 12 months or
less. There are no lease contracts that include extension and
termination options and variable lease payments.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets

and the movements during the year are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

14. HE
FEBEREBA
AEBAANEXGEENRERIETS
BEENHEESXN HBNEMRBER2
FoRERMEFHHERABE N F2E3F -
BEEBTHEABEBENFIE25 - 5T
’&EE’J%EHHEH@E‘ZL/{'F *EEﬁi% BG

;—\'K o
(a) BHEESE

AEEFAERESERREERE
E2 LI

Buildings

g

RMB'000

AR®T T

At 1 January 2019 RIZE—NF—HF—H 9,926

Additions NE 3,136

Depreciation charge TERX (4,814)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 Eﬁ‘:‘; NEFE+ZHA=+—H

—E-E&E—F—H 8,248

Depreciation charge MERX (5,285)

At 31 December 2020 RIEZEF+"H=+—H 2,963
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

14. LEASES (continued) 14. HE ®
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEEEAEEA (@
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under FREEESE (BIEsTERITAEM
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, note 29) BRVIE R M 5E29) BIBREE K &
and the movements during the year are as follows: T
2020 2019
—E_BF “EBNEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—BZiKEE 14,307 17,518
New leases WMEE - 3,136
Accretion of interest recognised during £ A B FES2A B 1 1E
the year 671 966
Payments e (8,012) (7,313)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZB=+—HBz
fRmEfE 6,966 14,307
Analysed into: A=
Within one year —FR 4,975 7,341
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BE_FERRHF
(BIEEEMS) 1,991 6,966
6,966 14,307
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HESBENREDTIRER G
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements. HRERMIEEALT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

14. LEASES (continued) 14. A ®
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEREAN @
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) MNBETPHETNBEERERIBOT :

leases are as follows:

2020 2019

—E_EHE —E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARKT T

Interest on lease liabilities HESEHE 671 966
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ERAREENERS

assets 5,285 4,814

Expense relating to short-term leases ~ E25GHAFA & K &% T FAHR
and other leases with remaining lease A+ _-"B=+—H=k
terms ended on or before 31 December  Z FHifE/mAE A E

BREANES 1,710 1,407
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 187k P HERRIEA2%E 7,666 7,187
(d) The total cash outflows for leases are disclosed in note (d) ERBEENREERERBEEERGS
35(c) to the consolidated financial statements. AR R MIEE35(c) ©
15. GOODWILL 15. H&
2020 2019
ZETHF “E2E—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Cost: R
At 1 January w—B—H 207,580 268,726
Write-off* HisE* - (61,146)
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H 207,580 207,580
Accumulated impairment: KEHHEE !
At 1 January n—HB—H (15,016) (76,162)
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRE (fT5E6) (57,612) =
Write-off e - 61,146
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H (72,628) (15,016)
Net carrying amount: AREEE !
At 31 December R+-—B=+—H 134,952 192,564
& During the year ended 31 December 2019, the goodwill related * RBE_ET—NEF+_A=+—HL%HF
to the terminal and network product cash-generating unit, which B BERBEERRAR (TER#4)) 14
arose on the acquisition of Rosy Sun Investment Limited (“Rosy K =B — = F UK B BR A8 B A= 4 B9 B AR i &z
Sun") in 2013, was written off along with the deregistration of HEERRSELBUERNE EEM
Rosy Sun. £ o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

15.

170

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Terminal and network product cash-generating unit

Goodwill related to the terminal and network product cash-
generating unit arose on the acquisition of Rosy Sun in 2013.
Details of the acquisition are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 31 December 2012 which was approved by
the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 28 January 2013. The recoverable amount
of the terminal and network product cash-generating unit was
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections. In 2016, the recoverable amount of terminal and
network product cash-generating unit was estimated to be
minimal by senior management, as the Group shifted its focus
towards the development of the business of network system
integration and significantly downsized the sales of terminal
and network products due to diminishing gross margin and
intense market competition. Accordingly, the goodwill was
fully impaired since 31 December 2016. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the goodwill related to the terminal and
network product cash-generating unit was written off along
with the deregistration of Rosy Sun.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

15.

HE @

& Z R ER

i RATAE Em P EL B
BERERECERREEEEUERN
FMEEER S —=FUWRHEERM - I HEH
BEREAARNBHA—ZTE——_F+_F8
=r—HZBXR AREWEBER_-ZT—=
F-AZHNBREGTZEAATREFRIK
THERERE - RERBERERRSE
FEBMUzAREIEEDZRERS AR
SAESHNERBEEE - R _F—1%>
MR EFNRBRTHEFEME > NEBR
BEOEBRERPRAMBESEB RKNRERE
HMERIERBEEREE  BREERE G
KimkfAEERREEEBEANTREE
B eAt B E—RFE+"A=+—
HEBEERE2RE - RBEE_T-—NF
TTR=+—HLLEE BERAFEH K
mREEERREELBURRNBEER



15. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Network system integration cash-generating unit

The carrying amount of goodwill acquired through business
combinations allocated to the network system integration

cash-generating unit is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

15. HE ®

BEZRENR @

HEERBE R EL B

BBEZOHWEZBENREEDEE
MERRBEOREELBUWT

B 1RRT

Before impairment loss

After impairment loss REEER
Goodwill related to the network system integration cash-
generating unit arose from the acquisition of Fortune
Grace in 2015. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 6 and 13 November
2015. To support the management to determine the
recoverable amount of the network system integration cash-
generating unit (the "Recoverable Amount of CGU"), the Group
engaged an independent professional valuer, Jones Lane
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, to perform a
valuation.

The Recoverable Amount of CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by senior management
covering a five-year period with budgeted revenue growth
rate, the budgeted gross margins, the discount rate and the
terminal growth rate applied in the cash flow projections. As at
30 June 2020, based on the goodwill impairment assessment
results, an impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
RMB57,612,000, representing the impairment loss of goodwill
for the year ended 31 December 2020, (taking into account
of holding 75% of equity interest of the network system
integration cash-generating unit) had been recognised during
the interim period for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The
relevant disclosures should be read in conjunction with the
Group's interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2020.

2020 2019
—E2F —=—hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARBFIT
207,580 207,580
134,952 192,564

PR AGESRTELBEUARANEE
MR- ZE—HFWEEFortune GraceRFESE o
WEFBEN AL ABHBEAZE—HEF
+—BARNEET=ZHZAG #iHHERE
BEECRIEAMESRESEEB UMUK
Bl ((REeEEEMNWEEEEL)
AEBZEBTEXHEMPEHITHRE
R EHE R AR ETME

REEEBUNAIWEEERTHRERIEA
REnERANEREEREE METR
ERARNSHREERBFEREL TN
BREBALRRRNMHEE - AEEFX-
TREREANREREBANKAL R
ROBRB-R_T-FFA=+H ' RE
HEAETLER ERMBE_ZT_TF
NAZ=THIENER PR AR R E R
BEEBENAARES7,612,00050 HERE
ECETTE+_RA=+—HLEENH
BRERE (Kt RBEEARBAREESE
BUPTRARIT5%MRE) - tLiaRI# 52 /8 A
FEEHE_T _TFRA=ZTHLNE
Bz BRE—EERM-
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A%

wmRMIE

31 December 2020

—Z=
—=

15.

172

A —H=+—H

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Network system integration cash-generating unit (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, based on the goodwill impairment
assessment results, the Recoverable Amount of CGU and
the carrying amount of the network system integration
cash-generating unit is approximately RMB302,249,000
(2019: RMB380,951,000) and RMB282,635,000 (2019:
RMB360,617,000) respectively (taking into account of holding
75% of equity interest of the terminal and network product
cash-generating unit).

The cash flow projections have taken into account the (i)
slowdown in the global economy caused by the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic and its escalation during the year ended
31 December 2020, while the Group foresees the unfavorable
global economic conditions to continue, if not worsen, in the
coming years resulting from the unprecedented disruptions in
various aspects of business operations of the Group; (ii) the
tension between the United States of America and the PRC as a
result of the trade war, which may affect the Group's business
development of network infrastructure and software; and (iii)
the stagnant growth in business development in respect of
the agency agreement entered into between the Group and
IBO Technology Company Limited (details of which are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 15 June 2020).
The directors of the Company considered that these reasons
directly affected the parameters applied in the assumptions
used in the value in use calculation for network system
integration cash-generating unit at 31 December 2020.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

15 ﬁg r\ﬁ

2z R ERE @
HEZAESHEEELEN (B
R_E_EE+_HB=+—H RiEE2
BEFGHER ReEEBANTKES
ZEA 4 A\ R 1302,249,00070 (ZE—HLEF :
A E#380,951,0007T) * MALS RAESIR
SELBEMNMNRTEES AR282,635,000
7T (CE—HF AR1E360,617,00070) (&
SRR RBSERRESELBAMBEA
FY75%RE 1) ©

REMERALHK(NBE_ST_FF
+TZRA=t—HLEEE MESREER
BEREABERNZIKEERRTE &
EREXGEEZ T EERMAARENS
b A EE AR E KRR EF 2 IRBAF]
EBERRNERE (RUOAZE) ; (i) =E
EREZBREZBMERNERBEEN
ERELAERPERERERRRENES
R kii)AEBEYARKRKROBRA
Bl UM AR ZE EFBEHRINARE A
RTETERERATEANAS) HEHE
REHFTH -ARDEERA/RFRAE
BRERN - ZF+_A=1+—HNH
BARECRESEEBUNERBESE
hETERANRRZ#H -



15. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Network system integration cash-generating unit (continued)
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation for
network system integration cash-generating unit for 31
December 2020 and 2019. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue growth rates - The budgeted revenue
growth rates are based on the historical revenue growth data
and market outlook perceived by management. The five-
year period with estimated revenue growth rate applied at 31
December 2020 is 4.36% to 17.69% per annum (2019: -1.64%
to 23.35% perannum).

Budgeted gross margins - The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected market development. The
gross margin applied in the cash flow projections ranges from
24.15% to 33.28% (2019: 22.90% to 39.10%).

Discount rate - The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant unit. The discount
rate applied at 31 December 2020 is 26.07% (2019: 27.00%).

Long term growth rate - The long term growth rate is based
on market data and management's expectation on the future
development of the technology industry. The ong term growth
rate applied at 31 December 2020 is 3% (2019: 3%).

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development and discount rate are consistent with external
information sources.

If the key assumptions on which the Group had based its
determination of the Recoverable Amount of CGU changed in
an unfavourable extent, the changes would cause a further
impairment loss.

Details of future development of the network system
integration cash-generating until or known as the segment
of communication system are set out in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement - Business Development and Business
Review and Outlook” in this report.
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B R M

31 December 2020
—ETEFE+—H=+—H

15. HE ®

A2 2 EERE @

HER RS HETELEN (B)
EMGEEIEER_E—NAFE+A
—t+—HPRERREEREELEEUZE
FEEERRSZ TXHAEEEGEHRE
B RAElETEERENAFFKEZS
BEERE :

EEBRAEBEE-FEHRKRAERETIRE
FEFEWARERHELAEEESE M S
PEEC - EFRAN_E_EF+_-_A=+—
BN ASFHESRABREEATFEL36%
F17.69% (ZE—NF : 8F—1.64%E
23.35%) ©

FHEANX-FBHEENXZBEDLRER
BHEEEER 2 ERBEIZFHERNZK
(MBEHTSEERMER) B - BAM
HEARTEAMNERN RN F24.15%Z33.28%
(ZE—NEF : 22.90%ZE39.10%) ©

MIRE-FTRITREABRMATINIRE I
KRB REMER 2 ERRE -ERAR
TECEEA+ A=+ —HBREA
26.07% (ZZ— N4 : 27.00%) ©

FEHEER - R EXTIREMN SRS
REBBHEMITERKRLEENHESE
E-EBENR_ZE_ZE+_HA=+—HH
EHI E XK A3% (Z2—NF | 3%) °

TEERZ T ERREERTRERAINER
BRHOR—2

WEEEBEEREEEBUNA O EEE
kN EERRHREAFEE  AZE
R AES I BE—F RERE

EREERGEERSELBUNBER
G5 BERAT RIS WIARE T
RS- EBERREBERRAREL)
—#pe
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HtIEREE
Technology
31 December 2020 know-how
—ETF+"HA=1+—8 EEREM
RMB'000
ARBETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 RIZ2ZEF—HA—HRZZZ
ZFE+"/F=+—H 202,446
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2020 S _E_TE—F—H 83,510
Amortisation provided during the year FNEHEE 20,245
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+"H=+—H 103,755
Net carrying amount: IREFEE
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEF+"H=+—H 98,691

31 December 2019 Customer Technology
relationships know-how Total

AZB—nE+ZA=+—8 1 SR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBF T AREBT T ARBT T

Cost: RS
At 1 January 2019 R_Z2—NF—HF—H 41,339 202,446 243,785
Deregistration of a subsidiary ~ s=#H—FRElIB AT (41,339) = (41,339)
At 31 December 2019 RIZZ2—hF
+—B=+—H - 202,446 202,446
Accumulated amortisation R #ERORE -
and impairment:
At1 January 2019 HoE—h&E—B—Q 41,339 63,265 104,604
Amortisation provided during R EIH B
the year - 20,245 20,245
Deregistration of a subsidiary =8 —FRElI B AT (41,339) = (41,339)
At 31 December 2019 RIZZ2—hF
+—B=+—H - 83,510 83,510
Net carrying amount: IREDRE !
At 31 December 2019 ATE—HE
F=E=4=E - 118,936 118,936
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group's other R _E—NEFER_EBEIEFF_/=+—
intangible assets consist of technology know-how, which B 7 5 B B B A 4 1 3
was arose from the acquisition of Fortune Grace in 2015. The o MR —Z 2 — A F WS Fortune
Group has prepared impairment testing for other intangible GraceBs & 4 - A B B st LML & A
assets together with goodwill related to the network system TRHENS BREENKEBRRRE
integration cash generating unit, and no impairment loss has EREELABUEHNEE BEZZZ
been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: TFE+ "B =+—HIEFE  WHEKRER
nil). HREREE CE—NF 8-
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17.

DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2019 S ZE—NF—HF—H
Credited to profit or loss during R Em T A (HIzE10)
the year (note 10)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—hF
1 January 2020 +ZBA=+—HkK
B ®2F—H—H
Credited to profit or loss during FEARETsHA (HIEE10)
the year (note 10)
At 31 December 2020 R
+ZA=+—H

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2019

RZB—hF—8
Credited to profit or loss during PR ER A (f5E10)

—H

the year (note 10)
Credited to other comprehensive & R E th & FE Uk
income during the year

i5t A

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

REZ—NEF
+:HE+—E&
=22 F—HF—

Credited to profit or loss during ERFEE T A (WDHO)
the year (note 10)

At 31 December 2020 AT TEE

\—7—7

+=—B=+—8”

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020

—ECEFf _H=1—H

17. IBEMRIE

EMRMIEEE
Impairment
loss of assets Others Total
BERERSE Hith #ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT
2,187 383 2,570
430 2 432
2,617 385 3,002
648 = 648
3,265 385 3,650
EEIRIEE R
Fair value
adjustment of
financial asset
at fair value Fair value
through other adjustment on
comprehensive  acquisition of
income a subsidiary
RASEE
st AEAM
2 EWaHY g s — P
THEEN MEBABZ
RRABERAE Q[REBERE w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBT T ARBT T
3,235 20,877 24,112
- (3,036) (3,036)
(3,235) - (3,235)
= 17,841 17,841
- (3,036) (3,036)
= 14,805 14,805
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wmRMIE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

17.

176

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
deductible temporary differences of RMB550,970,000 (2019:
RMB288,382,000) as the deductible temporary differences
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
years and it is not probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. The unused tax losses of the PRC subsidiaries will
expire in five years.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled RMB54,667,000 at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB36,140,000).

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

17.

IRIERIE (@)

1t e ot Al 30 R B B = 2 A\ R #6550,970,000
5T (CE—N4E . ARM5288,382,0007T) 5
SIRIERMIBEE > RRAZEIRE R
EEELFENRNZFERNRSEHEENKEB L
B AL A K BER R m A A (4 7] 30
BREREZEEFRAERHE TEFKEATHN
REBRBEESNAFARIE-

RFEPEEEFTEHE £ B AL 1L
PSINEEERIIEKEEERRE AR
IR EABMI0%M AN RER - ILRE B
—EEN\F-RB-HRBERLBERR =
EZLFEFR=+—HZBHEN
EREAMEZEINEREEPTE R A
5] ARWEHE RN ABRKRENE
FREAME - HIt » AEBA SEMETEAM
BMINZENBRAEE —_EENE—F—
HEELENEFFTDIKER SN AH
o

AT TEBE+ T H=+—H LERAE
EETETEAMBRINKBARZARE
IR F A 2 IR RIEERIE
BEERA ZENBRABRAIERAEX
KRORBEBBAN R_TE_TF+_H
=+—B > HABBBRIERESGEZRF
BERtHE AR 2 EHANERERR
A NERKS54,667,00000 (ZZE—NFE A
R 1£36,140,0007T) ©



18.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

On 17 February 2017, the Company entered into a capital
injection agreement (“Agreement”) with ZE:f 5 AR AR
‘A7) (China Communication Technology Co., Ltd.* "CCT")
which was established in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province of
the PRC, and certain shareholders of CCT, pursuant to which
the Company would inject an amount of RMB600,000,000 to
CCT. The capital injection was completed on 25 July 2018 when
the Company became a non-substantial shareholder of CCT
and owned approximately 3.95% of the enlarged registered
capital of CCT. Upon completion of the capital injection into
CCT and other conditions as stipulated in the Agreement,
the Group has irrevocably designated this unlisted equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
at initial recognition as the Group considers this investment
to be strategic in nature. As at 31 December 2019, resulting
from CCT's capital increase during the year, the Company's
shareholding percentage decreased to approximately 3.91% of
the enlarged registered capital of CCT. There is no change on
the shareholding percentage as at 31 December 2020.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

Financial asset at fair value through BARBESAHEM
other comprehensive income SERENEMEE
Unlisted equity investment, at fairvalue A A EEFEH

FFELETRALE
CccT ENH A

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

BARBEHARMEZEKRENSE
REE

N_E—tHF A+t B> AAsHEER
FRABEERAR (MFERA A > THIRHE
BRE RN RERS A TREET
B ((ZE) B KABME
A A EEANERKE600,000,000c° FEE
A _E—N\FELtBAZtAHRHATM AR H
ERAERAAANIEETERE LHERE
A A RIEAREME ARL3.95% FRIFEE
AR RZBEAENEMEFETRE
HRAEERAZEEBREEE  Eit
E RS i A n] i s E B A
ABEFAEMEERENIE EHEAE
B ZEBE—NE+-HA=+—8>H=EHR
FRARERIZEE  ARENFRKRE D LR
DEER S A SEAEMEARL3.91% &
EEZFA+"A=1+—H > FRLHA
TR A A o

2020
—E-SF

—_—= =

2019
—=—nE
RMB'000
ANREFTT

RMB'000
AR®T T

111,078 382,569

177
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

18.

19.

178

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair value loss
netting of the income tax in respect of the above unlisted equity
investment recognised in other comprehensive loss amounted
to RMB271,491,000 (2019: fair value loss netting of the income
tax amounting to RMB227,135,000). The fair value loss was
mainly attributable to (i) the poorer business and economic
environment in the industry of satellite communication
products and military communication products as a result
of the sanctions imposed by the United States of America
to high-tech enterprise in the PRC and the slowdown in the
global economy caused by the outbreak and the escalation of
COVID-19 and (ii) the substantial decrease in value of share
investments held by CCT.

To support the management to determine the fair value of CCT,
the Group engaged an independent professional valuer, Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, to
perform a valuation.

Details of the summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial investments together with a
quantitation sensitivity analysis are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

RER SRR

Finance lease receivables

Other loan receivables HEWER
Impairment BE
Other loan receivables, net HEWERFE

Total loan receivables, net

Portion classified as non-current assets:
- Finance lease receivables

Current portion EPERER 3
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18.

19.

DERIFRBEESD

— BB HERWTIR

BRARBEAAHMZEKENE
MEE @
BE_E_EF+-_A=+—HLEE"
MEMEEEEREMN Ll IE EHRAER
BERNA R EEREFE (ARAER) & A
E#8271,491,00070 (& — & : {ABKFR
BRHNANEBEEEER ARK227,135,000
7o) c ARBEEEETERREN()EREHS
Bl i Al 5 1 2 B9l 3 R BL TS AR R B R Y
IR R FHRSIREMN B E R EENEE
B EERAEEEGERTENERNLK
BIRIBRAE ; R(DENHAFIFRMOKE
BEKE FEC

B EEEEEEMA AN ANEE
AERZRBEILSEXGEMPERITEE
M REAERADETEE

ERERMEEHEZERTTHEZHAY
BHRENFS EREEMRE DN &N

REMBERRMIEEL0 0
2020 2019
T HE “E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
3,913 5,900
21,722 25,300
(9,103) (253)
12,619 25,047
16,532 30,947
(1,749) (3,913)
14,783 27,034




19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(A) Finance lease receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

. BUWER @

(A) RUEHERURE

Present value of minimum lease

Minimum lease receivables

receivables

RIEFEERKRE RIEHERKRERNIRE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
—7—7E :g_jlﬂi —7—7E :g_hﬂi
+ZB=+—-8B +ZA=+—H +ZA=+—HA +ZA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETF T ARET ARETT
Within one year —FR 2,433 2,433 2,164 1,987
In the second to fifth years, BEFREF
inclusive (BEEEME) 1,825 4,257 1,749 3,913
4,258 6,690 3,913 5,900
Less: Unearned finance income i : RERmME WS (345) (790)
Present value of minimum lease R{EFAEFEUTIBHIRE
receivables 3,913 5,900

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in
RMB. The effective interest rate of the receivables is 8.9%
(2019: 8.9%) per annum. There are no unguaranteed
residual values of assets leased under finance leases
and no contingent rent arrangements that needed to be
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

K%@E’J%ﬁiﬁ%ﬂ‘*ﬁ‘ﬂ&*ﬁtlﬁu)\ﬁwﬁ
B BWHRIENERERNK28.9%
—NE8.9%) BE_ZE_ZTEF+_A
=t+—HRZZE-—AFE+"A=+—AHL
FE BETIREEHEEENEERT
BREE TEEMNATHERINAEER -

_7
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

180

(B) Other loan receivables

Other loan receivables represented outstanding
principals, which are denominated in HKS, arising from
the Group's money lending business in Hong Kong. Other
loan receivables have fixed terms of repayment, all of
which are within 1 year. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its other loan receivables in order to
minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers' and their
guarantors' financial positions.

Other loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates
mutually agreed between the Group and the borrowers,
ranging from 6% to 15% per annum. As at 31 December
2020, other loan receivables of RMB6,548,000 were
guaranteed by a property of a borrower (2019:
RMB6,973,000).

ECLs of other loan receivables which measured at
amortised cost are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach and adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate. The gross loan balances of RMB15,155,000
(2019: Nil) were past due and RMB6,567,000(2019:
RMB25,300,000) were not past due at the end of the
reporting period. It is assessed that the ECL rate for the
above other loan receivables are ranging from 0.30% to
100% (2019: It is assessed that the overall ECL rate for
the above other loan receivables for which there was no
history of default is approximately 1%.).

To support the management to determine the ECLs
of other loan receivables, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer, Eidea Professional
Services Company Limited, to perform a valuation.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

RS @

(B)

HthFEULE R
HitEWERIEHAEBEBEEE
BAREEZHARWEERSE TS UETT
SHE-HMEWERBEEERA
ERHRH—FERN - AEBNREFTY
HEMEKRER Z BEEG > LEB
BEBRMARERERAZFE BRI
M EEE R

HiEWE A E B R ERAZE
HMEWBEZNEEF6%E15%2 F
EH B R E_TEFE+_HA=+—
B> AR#®6,548,0007T Ay E M FE Uk
ERUERA—EBYEFER (CZ2
— N AE#6,973,0007T) ©

DU R A 5t 2 EHMEWE RN TE
HEEEBRRABERE S EBETIE
tH 58 B8 L 5 B 3R BRF AR B R 3 R AR A TS
RIENTER (BRA) - RIREHR
B HREEEN AR 115,155,0007T
ZE-NFE BAH ARE
6,567,0007c (ZE—NF: AR
25,300,0007%) R HA o S A » Eakt
HiEWERNBREEEEEN T
0.30%ZE100% (ZE— 6 : &7
P E MR E R SR SC AR 0 T
HEBBEEENB1%) ©

A BEEETHMERERNTE
HEERE A&EEZR—LEBIE
EEEMBRESERBERABET
(EXIEE
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BRER @
(B) Other loan receivables (continued) (B) HEWER @)
Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HMEWEROREBEREGEE U
loan receivables are as follows: TS 6
2020 2019
—EIEF “=E—NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
At beginning of year iNEE=)) 253 77
Impairment losses, net (note 6) REREFEE (f5E6) 9,367 172
Exchange realignment PR (517) 4
At end of year RER 9,103 253
The maturity profile of other loan receivables of the REREEHRETERHMBRERNE
Group as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HABRAT
2020 2019
ket 2. 3 “E-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBT T
Overdue %60 2 6,071 =
Within 3 months =@ERN 6,548 6,903
3 to 6 months =ZEEA - 15,046
6 to 12 months NET @A - 3,098
12,619 25,047
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no amounts due from RIZBEZZEFEFR_ZT—NAFE+A
related parties of the Group were included in other loan =+—8 A& E R E 5 UK
receivables. Et AHMBWERA
20. INVENTORIES 20. 78

2020 2019
k- a2 —T-hEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBF T

Merchandised goods EFE 12,648 12,881
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21.

182

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 EWTUE
Impairment e

Trade receivables, net B 5 E WG IE 558
Contract assets SHBE

Bills receivable SR REWTR

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds
receivable from the sale of goods and rendering of services.
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit term generally ranges from 30
to 90 days, and a longer credit term will be granted to certain
major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control management system to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned, as
at 31 December 2020, except for the amounts due from one
(2019: one) customer exceeding 10% of the Group's total trade
and bills receivables, the remaining balances of the trade
receivables related to a large number of diversified customers.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk as at 31
December 2020. Trade receivables were interest-free and
unsecured as at 31 December 2020.

Contract assets arising from construction services for
communication network infrastructure. It primarily relate to the
Group's right to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group's
construction contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the construction period once
milestones are reached. These payment schedules prevent
the build-up of significant contract assets. Additionally, 5% of
the contract sum is kept in contract assets until the end of the
retention period as the Group's entitlement to it is conditional
on the Group's work satisfactorily passing inspection.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

. BEREBRBWR

2020 2019
—E—F —EBE—hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
194,481 217,785
(8,189) (9,392)
186,292 208,393
6,402 -
6,881 1,887
199,575 210,280

NEBEZERZIBEBRREE S RmKRIEM
RISEW Z FTiSm B RIEAER &
B REBERAZZEEEH ENE
EEEBHELAR EEEE—MRH30E90
BEARE METIEZRRERREZRE
B -SRI ERSEEH AEE
NEEEFEREERWRHIE LRBE
EEFHEEASA BREEERABAER
Be-mHhEEASSEHBTAIARNGRE
REKRBE R_E_EFE+_H=+—
H> REWE—(CE—hE E—-) TR
BHBEANERE S REHRREWRAEEE10%
Sh B EWRENG NMERERZAE
MNEEEBH RN_BE_EFE+_A=+—
HEEEAGEERAREF RS ZZ4F
+ZB=+t—HZzEZERKRZEARERK
LI o

GNEERBEERERREEEIRBF
EEMNGHNEE - TBINTEENRES
HEARE R ERARE TR REER -
BNBEERZENRABHRGREREW
MIE AEBBRE S AT ARG E
RME—BEINEARDHE MARREHR
DERNR - ZEMRAEAMERRE
REMEE I AEERREGHNEE
ZREMEBURARAE B TEESIEN BB R
B AN ENSNERGNEEEERE
HAfE R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BHRFEEER @
2020 2019
it et 22 “E—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTTT
At beginning of year KA - -
Increase in contract assets as aresultof #EET2EH5(ENEH
changing in measure of progress BEEMN 6,402 =
At end of year RER 6,402 =
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables and contract assets TREIINREPRAEEE Z RUIRIE
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period, based on the REHNEENRE DT BREADSTURS
transaction date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: HEAA IR > I B PRESIEEE ©
2020 2019
—E_BF “T-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Within 3 months = YN 79,279 100,763
3 to 6 months =E/EA 46,699 37,928
6 to 12 months NETZEA 41,071 42,351
1to 2 years —EME 25,042 24,431
Over 2 years 838 603 2,920
192,694 208,393
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade B2 WA R EREEEEESHNT -

receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
—E2F “E—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBFT
At beginning of year KA 9,392 8,240
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ (R {ER518# 0]
impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEEFEE (E6) (71) 3,641
Amounts written off as uncollectible HiE R B U Bl 7R IE (1,405) (2,497)
Exchange realignment FE R EA 273 8
At end of year RER 8,189 9,392
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer categories with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if uncollectible and
are not subject to enforcement activity.

To support the management to determine the ECLs of trade
receivables, the Group engaged an independent professional
valuer, Jones Lane LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, to perform a valuation.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

21.

B 7 REERWR @

AEBRSHRE D HEREBREEETRA
BEaMstERMEEHRE BHEXDRE
BERUGERANZEEFEH DE/
BHARBETE St ERMBEMELER S
BRERCRSAHISERBEER
ERR R ARG EIRERANGER 5
Bile—fRM = B 5 BUWFIEN A A K[E
KB AZIRICERE TR T LUMEE -

mEEEEERWERNARESES
B AEEZE—RBUEXEEMTE
BITERFEREAERADETGHE

TR EBERBFHEEESAENES
BERERENEEZEERBRER !

A _E_EF+_A=+—H

184

Past due
Current Within1year 1to2years 2to3years Over3years
ENHA 15/ 1526 2E35F BiR=F
Expected credit lossrate ~ TEHAEEEEXE 0.54% 1.65% 12.78% 100% 100% 4.07%
Gross carrying amount IREARE
(RMB'000) AR¥EF 1) 73,763 109,711 13,102 2,155 2,152 200,883
Expected credit losses FREAE AR
(RMB'000) AR¥EF 1) 397 1,810 1,675 2,155 2,152 8,189

As at 31 December 2019

R=E—NE+=A=+—H

Past due
%0 AR
Current Within1year 1to2years 2to3years Over3years
ENA 1ER 1ZE26E 2E3F BB=F
Expected creditlossrate  FHAfERATRE 0.44% 1.43% 17.97% 46.17% 83.94% 431%
Gross carrying amount IREAE
(RMB'000) (ARMEF ) 66,751 126,501 18,694 2,434 3405 217,785
Expected credit losses FREAE G518
(RMB'000) (ARET ) 292 1,808 3,359 1,075 2,858 9392

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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22,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group as at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

—EAMA
=FENER
NETZEA

Within 3 months
3 to 6 months
6 to 12 months

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no amounts due from related
parties of the Group were included in the trade and bills
receivables.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER  22.
ASSETS

Advances to suppliers ERAE BN
Deposit and other receivables ¥e& R H A EWGRIE
Other tax recoverable H el iR B3
Impairment allowance BB

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no amounts due from related
parties of the Group were included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets.

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

EAiﬁ"tHH;EK%.,E?#EFEWTAE’J FEAB R

mE:

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥ET T
2,486 636
1,800 1,151
2,595 100
6,881 1,887
KB _BER_FB-AF+-A=+—
H> AEBETRAESBRRIBEFAEZS

R R FE R Y ©

TR MRIE Htt BRI R EthE

=5
2020 2019
—_ —vﬂE <_j-L‘/EE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
32,428 37,707
9,027 12,726
1,681 3,530
43,136 53,963
(220) (220)
42,916 53,743

TR CRERCEF-NAFT A=+
H > A5 B I R E 5 B UWRUIEST A TR
IR HE WA R BB ERN -
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22,

186

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
ASSETS (continued)

Where applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default and
expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.
The financial assets included in the above balance were
categorised in stage 1 at the year of the reporting period. In
calculating the expected credit loss rate, the Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, except
for the default receivables, the Group assessed the expected
loss rate for the other receivables to be minimal.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Long ageing balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
deposits and other receivable balances. Movements in the
provision for impairment of deposits and other receivables are

as follows:

22,

At beginning of year RER]

Impairment losses, net (note 6) MBS IEFRE (MiEE6)
Amounts written off as uncollectible Hif 5 BT U Bl R IE
Exchange realignment PE SR sREE

At end of year RER

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

TR Ht R IE R EthE
E®

FBABR T RERESAHBEERE
MBI EMETRED T R ERBREAM
SAREEESE BTS2 AEENBE
iR - FIRREFH BB UK RIRE
AR SRRSO B TER @A) o
RERSHEEFER LAERRNERE
EEDRE—BR -FAERAGEBEX
B AEEERBEBEERNMAEER
B BB FHRAE - R -TFR
E-AFE+A=+—H BKTEENN
FE W RR IR Sb o 7 B [ 5T ik HL 4th FE LR I B9
TRHA RS IR R AT i

AEE R BB ERHREEBUYRE
BRBEERRAERKE REBRRNG
FHERREEECEHER AEELEL
B & K S WGRIRAE R A E AR
mEMERRA - B2 R HAME WA
ZRERBESHINT

2020 2019
—ECE —T-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ABR¥TFIT ARMFIT
220 282
= (16)
= (47)
- 1
220 220




23.

24,

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

At end of year RER

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
shares of a listed company in Hong Kong, the trading of which
has been suspended since October 2017. The equity investment
is classified as held for trading and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

A fair value loss of RMB188,000 was recognised for changes
in fair value of equity investment at fair value through profit
or loss in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB2,821,000).

To support the management to determine the fair value
of equity investment, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuer, Jones Lane LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, to perform a valuation.

Details of the summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial investments together with a
quantitation sensitivity analysis are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBT INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Unlisted debt investment JELETHEBKE
On 20 March 2019, the Group subscribed an unlisted bond
issued by an independent third party with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$15,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB12,980,000), bearing interest at a rate of 12% per
annum. On 18 March 2020, the Company entered into a first
supplemental subscription agreement, pursuant to which, the
maturity date of the debt investment was extended to 19 March
2021. The investment was measured at fair value through profit
or loss and matured in 1 year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

24,

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

RARBESABmNREKRE

2020
BB HF

2019
=&
RMB'000
ARBF T

RMB'000
AR®T

999 1,249

BHE_Z—tE+A=1t—HILEEE>
FEBWBE-—BEB LT ATNKRG A
BE_E—tETAREEXS REARSE
DEA/FERS > LRANBES ARG

HE_Z_ZEF+_HA=+—HLEE>
MEAAEBEFAEBETNREAZEAR
BESFHNADEEFIEARE188,0007T
(CEBE—NE: AR12,821,0007T) RiE
BRERWITEMPE S P58 o

R EEEREERTIRENAAEE
FERZE-RBUEXGEMHPENRT
ERFERAEABRADETHEE.

ERTRREGEZIERTAIRERAAK
BHRENFS EREESRE DN &N
OB IRARMEEL0

BRARBESABRNEHRE

2020
St 222

2019

= hiE
RMB'000
ARMET 5

RMB'000
AR®TIT

13,055 13,856

AT E-NE=BR_+H AEERE
— BB E=ZHETACHEES
15,000,000t (FBER AK112,980,000
7o) UEFIZE12%st EMIE EMES R
ZTEFE=BA+NBH ARBEFTILFE—D
BB Bt BEEENIHBE
EEE"ZE-—F=H+hB - BBEHA
ABEFAERZ EER—ERNEIH-
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24,

25.

188

A —H=+—H

DEBT INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

A fair value gain of RMB1,607,000 was recognised for changes
in fair value of debt investment at fair value through profit or
loss in “Other income and gains” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB1,233,000).

To support the management to determine the fair value of
unlisted debt investment, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuer, Jones Lane LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, to perform a valuation.

Details of the summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial investments together with a
quantitation sensitivity analysis are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 18 March
2021, the Company further entered into a second supplemental
subscription agreement, pursuant to which, the maturity date
of the debt investment is extended to 19 June 2021. Details of
the extension have been set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 March 2021.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

24,

25.

BARBEHAEBENERKRE
€=
BE_Z_EFE+_A=+—HILEE"
ﬁtiﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘:ﬁuﬂkﬁ S EBRRENAR
BEEHNEGEEEIRN THMEA KK
m AR AR EEWER AK,607,0007T
(ZZE—NF . AE1,233,0007T) ©

mMBEEBEEF LHEFRENAR
BE ~EEZE-—RBIIXEEMS
BMTEXTERBABRARNETH
fEo

FRTHRELEZIERTIRRBAHK
BEEFS EREEHREDN &N
RE M RARW L0

RBEHRAB KRB —F=8+N\8>
NABE—FINE DT BERE
B BEFERENIPHIEIEE T ——
FRBTAH BREALEHENEBHRNAA
BRAAEE_— =B+ \BHNQE.

RERREEFBYRERBER

2020 2019

ot E—NF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBET T ARETT

Cash and bank balances RERIREMEER 76,128 48,781
Pledged deposits BIERER 6,090 31,018
82,218 79,799

Less: Pledged deposits: B BIRRERR

Pledged for a banking facility PIRTTREE REE (R IR = (13,423)
Pledged for contract bidding E’f R S A EHR R (6,090) (3,837)
Pledged for contract execution MENMITRITE = (13,758)
(6,090) (31,018)

Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEFEY 76,128 48,781

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F




25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB61,673,000
(2019: RMB36,541,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group, based
on the invoice date, as at the end of the reporting period, is as

follows:

Within 3 months =ERAA
3to 12 months =EZ+2EA
1to 2 years —EWE
Over 2 years 838w

The Group normally obtains credit terms ranging from 1 to 3
months from its suppliers. Trade payables are unsecured and
interest-free.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no amounts due to related
parties of the Group were included in the trade payables.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25.

26.

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

HERREEBMREBIEHER
()

RBEHFR AEBUARESHEZRSE
KRiR1TiEGR A ARM61,673,0005T (ZF
—h&E : AR¥36,541,00070) > ARMER
A EHRRAEMER AT BEFEA
Hi KO B B IR AR B ) Je (A5 B ~ S BB o (B
BRE)  AEE R ZBEREEL SN EZE
BZRITRARB RGN EME!E o

IRTREVEBHRTERNBEZFEBAX
BREVA B - IR1TAE SR R BB ERF RN
FERFERTEERCHRNRT

=R AREA
RREPRTEMEZETRBRER
HBIF B ARES ST T

2020 2019
—ETTHF —E2—hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®ETT
86,387 97,187
53,005 39,298
5,936 16,418
16,381 18,012
161,709 170,915

rEE-REHEHETNF—E=@A
NEEH -EZBRNRESERRREE

R_E_ERER_FE-NE+TA=+—
H> x&EBTEFABESEORIEFAEZS
PR TRIE ©

189
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BHBEEROT
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEE —ZE—hnEF
+ZB=t+—H +ZA=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHET T
Advances received from customers &5 IR TR B
Sales of goods HESmM 14,945 13,422
Rendering of services MRS 11,683 13,806
Total contract liabilities BB BB 26,628 27,228
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DA IERBIE B D (3,344) (2,296)
Current portion BNHBER 23,284 24,932
Contract liabilities included advances received to deliver goods SHREEEEMR T E m kiR AR W EL
and render services. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2020 WEWRHRIE _ 2 _TFaHNa86HLVE
was mainly due to the decrease in advances received from AR MIBHRT B E P WA TR IE
customers in relation to rendering of services. VPR ©
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

HtEIRIERK Bt &

Loans from a director

Accruals fEst &

Other taxes payable HAMFESTRIE

Other payables HAAETRIE

Total other payables and accruals HAPE (IR K
FEst & FR4R%E

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's other
payables and accruals were loans payable to a director of the
Company at an aggregate amount of HK$7,937,000 (equivalent
to RMB6,683,000) (2019: HKS$7,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB6,258,000)). The details of the terms of loans are set out in
note 38 (b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's other
payables and accruals was a loan amounting to HK$4,000,000
(equivalent to RMB3,368,000) (2019: HKS$4,000,000
(equivalent to RMB3,576,000)), payable to Smoothly Global
Holdings Limited (“Smoothly Global"), which is owned by
two directors of the Company and also a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group. The maturity of the loan payable
has been extended to 6 December 2021 during the year ended
31 December 2020 and the loan payable was unsecured and
interest-free.

Save as disclosed above, the remaining other payables and
accruals are interest-free and have an average term of three
months.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's other payables
were amounts due to a related company of RMB2,985,000,
which were repayable on credit terms similar to those offered
by the related company to other third parties. The balance was
settled during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RE—REBEZEM

2020 2019
—E2F —E—NE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARBFT
6,683 6,258
14,147 11,276
2,940 4,296
11,643 11,958
35,413 33,788

N2 EF+"HA=+—H x&EEH
HENRIENRESERBEREENAAT—
LEENEN B55E47,937,000%8 T (17
ERARYE6,683,00070) (ZE—HF
7,000,000 7t (HHER AKE 16,258,000
70)) cBRERZ BRI BHR AR E ]
R MI5E38(b) °

RZE_EBEE+_F=+—H ' &&E
EHMENREREAERTEEE
fdSmoothly Global Holdings Limited
(TSmoothly Globall) (HAABIMKAE
ERFE NASEEFERKRE) NER
4,000,000 ¢ (FHE R AE153,368,0007T)
(ZB—4E 4,000,000 7T GEERAR
#%3,676,0007T)) - BEZZ-_ZEF+_"H
=+ —HLEEE ZEMERBEREEC
T _—F+_HA/ A3 BZEMER
AHERERRE

bR £ PR EE & Sb » FIBRBO EL AR (4 =R
REFERRRE R FHERMS =M
Ao

RIZE-AF+A=+t—H FEEH
N RIREER MRS ADMBARE
2,985,000 EMEEHMEREATIMA
thE =S TR EREL - ZERRENE
EE_TE+_RA=+—HLEEEH

=
/B °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

29.

192

INTEREST-BEARING BANKAND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Current

Non-current

29.

Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity
RS
(%) EI5A
-
Lease liabilities (note 14(b)) ~ FAEE1E (HiEH14(b)) 5.33-6.97 2021
Bank loans - unsecured RITEM—EIEH 3.65-4.85 2021
Bank loan - secured RTEN—IEH = -
Other loans - unsecured Bt & —mig 3.80-5.17 2021
JEEDHA
Lease liabilities (note 14(b)) AEEE (fizF14(b) 5.33-6.97  2022-2023

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2020, a director of the Company provided
guarantees to certain subsidiaries of the Group in respect of
revolving banking facilities in aggregate of RMB25,946,000
(2019: RMB21,622,000). As at 31 December 2020,
RMB20,600,000 (2019: RMB12,798,000) was outstanding
under these banking facilities. As at 31 December 2020, the
director also provided a guarantee to a subsidiary of the Group
in respect of a non-revolving bank loan of RMB10,000,000
(2019: RMB9,500,000) and other loans of RMB10,609,000 (2019:
RMB16,561,000).

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

st BERIT R EMERR

RMB'000

ARBTT

Effective
interest rate
(%)
EHAE

(%)

Maturity RMB'000

HH ARBTR

4975  5.33-6.97 2020 7341
30,600 425580 2020 22,298
- 65 2020 11,464
10,609 456 2020 16,561
46,184 57,664
1,991 5.33-697  2021-2023 6,966
18,175 64,630
Kzt :

AT _EFEF+_HB=1+—HIEE"
AATEEMRTEERESHEAR
#25,946,0000 (ZBE—HE: AR
21,622,0007T) A4 5 BIA T M B A Bl iR it
ER-NZEZEFE+TA=1+—"H %%
RITRMEREEESEES ARY20,600,000
T (ZE—N%F: AR#12,798,0007T) °
RIBEZEF+-RB=1+—H > EZFTN
JEBIRIBITER ARY10,000,00t (2=
— N AR#9,500,00070) REMER
AR"10,609,0007c (ZZ2—NF : AR
16,561,0007T) B2 @ — KB A B E
HEfRo



29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

No banking facilities were pledged by a bank deposit as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB13,423,000) and no outstanding
under these banking facilities as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB11,464,000).

As at 31 December 2020, except for the unsecured other loans
of HK$2,810,000 (equivalent to RMB2,366,000) which were
denominated in HKS and unsecured bank loans of US$857,000
(equivalent to RMB5,600,000) which were denominated in USD,
all borrowings were denominated in RMB. As at 31 December
2019, except for the unsecured bank loans of US$403,000
(equivalent to RMB2,930,000), which were denominated in USS,
secured bank loan of Vietnamese dong (“VND") 37,717,293,960
(equivalent to RMB11,464,000) which was denominated in VND,
and the unsecured other loans of HK$18,525,000 (equivalent
to RMB16,561,000) which were denominated in HKS, all
borrowings were denominated in RMB.

30. COUPON NOTES

Coupon notes, unsecured
Carrying amount as at 1 January

FIERIE  EIKT

Early redemption R0
Amortisation N
Exchange realignment FE R aREE

Carrying amount as at 31 December

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29.

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

st BIRITREMER @

izt - (%)

(b)

RIE_EE+_"_HB=+—H > WHEIR
TRERETER (CE—HE: ARK
13,423,00070) fEHEIR - R B -SE+—
B=+—B > iEZLERTHEBFKE
BT (C2—NE ARME,464,000
JT) ©

RIEZZEF+TH=+—H B&MUWET
SHERNSEIRREtIRITE12,810,0008 7T
(HHER ARY2,366,0007T) K& UETTsT
{EAEIR IR IR{TE3R857,000% T EER
AR #5,600,0007T) 4> FRrBERUEIUAR
BHE- RZE—NAE+ZA=+—8>
PR ETTEHERN IR IRTE 403,000
E7T FEER ARK2,930,0007T) - LUEE
BEEHENIKIRIRITEN37,717,293,960iH
mfE (TtEE) EERARE,464,000
70) U B e s AR IR IR E IR TER
18,525,00078 7 (FEEM AR¥E16,561,000
7o) I B BEHIUARETE-

30. FIBRRE

R—A—RZKREE

R+ZRB=+—RZiKEE

2020
S-S

—_—=—=

2019
—TNEF

RMB'000
ARET T

RMB'000
AR®ET

- 48,921
- (49,323)
- 366
- 36
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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wmRMIE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

30.

194

COUPON NOTES (continued)

On 30 March 2017, the Company issued 8.0% coupon notes
(the “Third Batch Coupon Notes") with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$47,100,000 (equivalent to RMB41,670,000),
which would mature in 2 years from the issue date. The
related commissions amounted to HK$2,402,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,125,000), among which HKS$1,443,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,250,000) has been paid and netted off against the
cash proceeds. The Third Batch Coupon Notes carried interest
at a rate of 8.0% per annum and were payable quarterly
in arrears. The effective interest rate of the Third Batch
Coupon Notes was 10.87% per annum. The Company early
redeemed the Third Batch Coupon Notes partially with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$600,000 (equivalent to
RMB531,000) in December 2018. The Company early redeemed
the Third Batch Coupon Notes with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$1,800,000 (equivalent to RMB1,583,000) and
HKS$44,700,000 (equivalent to RMB39,300,000) in January and
February 2019, respectively.

On 11 May 2017, the Company issued 8.0% coupon notes (the
"Fourth Batch Coupon Notes") with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$9,600,000 (equivalent to RMB8,493,000),
which would mature in 2 years from the issue date. The
related commissions amounted to HK$490,000 (equivalent
to RMB433,000), among which HK$288,000 (equivalent to
RMB255,000 has been paid and netted off against the cash
proceeds. The Fourth Batch Coupon Notes carried interest
at a rate of 8.0% per annum and were payable quarterly in
arrears. The effective interest rate of the Fourth Batch Coupon
Notes was 10.87% per annum. The Company early redeemed
the Fourth Batch Coupon Notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$9,600,000 (equivalent to RMB8,440,000) in
February 2019.

All coupon notes are redeemable at the option of the Company
after the twelfth month from the issue date, in whole orin part,
at certain predetermined prices in certain specific periods prior
to the maturity dates of the coupon notes. Further details of
the coupon notes are set out in the related announcements of
the Company dated 1 and 22 December 2016 and 23 February
2017, respectively.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

0. FISEE @

A —E—tE=FB=+H AR T ET—
AL 4EZEAL7,100,00058 T FHER AR
#41,670,0007T) f98.0%F B =k (T =t
MEZER) BREBTHBRERFR-
HEREAE A2,402,0008 T FEER AR
2,125,0007%) > ELH1,443,0007%8 T (FHE R
AE#1,250,0007t) B A BEIRBEIRERN
BRRIE o F = HEFI B ERRIZ FHZ8.0%51
B BENE— R F=HANEEENE
BREFZEE10.87% AATERZZE—/N\
FH+_RRFPERLOHDE=MFE K
KAEFEEHA600,0008 T FBER AR
531,00070) e AABERMRZE—HhF
—AR_BRBELNF=#HIEEE K
SEEEHE41,800,0008 T FHER AR
1,583,0007T) K244,700,0005 7T FREH A
R #39,300,0007T) °

RZZE—tERB+—H > AABET—
A S 4828 49,600,0008 T HEERAR
#8,493,0007T) AY8.0%F) B E 4 (M5 Mt
MEZER)) BREBTHBEERFR -
HRIME5490,0008 T (FHER AR
433,0007T) > E 288,000 T FHERR A
K 255,00070) B4 & EIRHIREFIENR
IE o F UML) B EHRIZFFEB.0%51 8
B —R o BUHALF E Z BN B R EF]
E21087% AABINRZE—NEZAR
PO AL4EE 49,600,000/ 7T FEHER
AR #8,440,0007T) AU OHLF) B Zik

RETHHEE+TZ@ERE%E  ZARABER
MEERIBEAE TREMARNEET
FEEAEENEBREBELRZBHABLFER
B-BRAMNEEBRNE—THBIHNREA
BHAA-E—XR"F+ZA—BRZ+Z
BURZE—tEFE-B-+=HZHEBAR

A
= °



31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

SHARE CAPITAL 31. &=

Shares B
2020 2019
k- k- 33 “Z-NF

Issued and fully paid: BETREE :

1,404,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,404,000,000% US$28,080,000 US$28,080,000
US$0.02 each SREE002ETZ BBRK 28,080,000 T 28,080,000 7T
Equivalent to HER RMB188,710,000 RMB188,710,000

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as

follows:

AR188,710,0007t A RH188,710,0007¢

TABREEHPFEWT !

Number of Share capital Share
shares in issue Equivalent to premium Total
BRTRNYE BARER R EE a5t
USS$'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
= ARETTT NG S AREFT
At1 January 2019 A\=E—NE—B—H 1,170,000,000 23,400 156,928 625,495 782,423
Issue of shares (note) TR (=) 234,000,000 4,680 31,782 652 32,434
Share issue expenses (note) RARETRZ () = = - (1,135) (1,135)
At31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 RZZ—A%&
and 31 December 2020 +-A=+—H"
“Z2E5—F-HR
“ZT2E+TR
=+-8 1,404,000,000 28,080 188,710 625,012 813,722

Note: On 11 January 2019, 234,000,000 new shares were issued at a
price of HK$0.16 per share to not less than six independent third
parties for an aggregate cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$37,440,000 (equivalent to RMB32,434,000). The related
transaction costs amounting to HK$1,300,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,135,000) were netted off against the cash proceeds.
The net proceeds were intended to be used for business
development and as general working capital of the Group.

M R —E—NF—HB-+—H>234,000,000
B HTRG B2 8 R0.16 B T T T A IS
LBUF=7 NEEXABREAER
37,440,0007% 7t (FHE R AR #32,434,000
7T) ° MERARZ 5 A %%1,300,000E 7T (HEE
R AR¥1,135,0007T) ERIFHIREFAER
HoFfRRIER R BERETERRF
RHEEE—REEET

195

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZE _ZF F 3R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE
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—EEFEf—H=+—H

32.

196

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any invested entity. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors,
including executive director and independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, the Company's
shareholders, any non-controlling shareholder in the
Company's subsidiaries, holders of any security issued or
proposed to be issued by any member of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest, and any
other person including any consultant, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner, joint venture
business partner, promoter or service provider of any member
of the Group whom the board of directors considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The Scheme became effective on 25 October 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date. As such, the scheme expired in October
2020.

The maximum number of unexercised share options permitted
to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HKS5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

32.

ARG St &

ARBRAEBERESS ((Zst8)) - 5E
MHAEREFUAEFMERZEGERS
BATIRHEBKREE &k HELEE
SEEAKRBREESEEURKSIHEER
REAKEERAFEENANER &
SHEISERSEALTOEARDES (8
BRTESRBUFATES AEEH
thES - ERBRR-FAFWE LR ZIE
ERRR -TEBZEAREARHSE
BEEETARENTEAERZETHRET
NERESFFEA UREMEMAL &
EER-DHEE - REm - HES KB
BE BECFEENH SECEBECHFR
HF HEANEEREZTGA2RRTEN
HAEBECNR S FREMBERREMH
R#%E - ZtBN _E—EF+A-+0
HEX BRIFEBUNSES] BRI BZA
EAMI0FE -HIt ZFABER T -FTF
+REwe

RBEZFTEEER DR ETEREREN
B EARTERBSINRERR N ERE
BEZRETRMNZI0% SEEESHEAL
PRAEF2ER B ANRZ B ERHEBER
BZAETRNBE LR R AZRER
AR EAREEEITRD Z1%  REER
BELERZBRENBRRREARE LS
B ERHLE o

MARABDEF THRAINTERFTNR
FZEAMBALRHBRERCEIIF
HITESFEHAE I RER12E S
BA MBAREERKRRIIEILIFAT
EFYURSZEMBBACRUBREY
kzk BEEATDRERNFBHEET
BR130.1% > S ABEBB5S B B Bt (IREE
HHBAZEAARABZRHERSE) > RIA
EIRERNIRERAG EE Rt



32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
7 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to three
years and ends on a date which is not later than ten years from
the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors in its absolute discretion and shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets
on the date of the grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average of closing price of the Company's shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

2020
—E-E

—

Weighted
average
exercise

price
I#EFs
78
HK$

BT

At 1 January and R—B—HBk
31 December +—-B=+—H 1.7

No share options under the Scheme were granted, exercised,
cancelled, or lapsed during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

RERRIESTE @
REBREZZOPTNENARESTAR
HARASZNREARNBIBTERER K
HEBRENITERHESRE WK —
E-FRBHEMAG BERTERREERE
REERE+SEREME FHZFEE®
HERIE UREERH)

BRENTEERESZ2RNBERE
EARSERTIRESE (IREEREEH
(WAREER) BXPAIE HRERMIIE
ABRMPUEHE  (NEZRRZBRES
HAI BB 5 B P E B RERPAS A
RERDBIFEIWHE ; Kli) B RE RN
EEe

BREAHTEFEE ARBREXINRKRE
AREGREZREF -

UTREARBZFEBRITEZBRE:

2019

& “E-hE

Weighted
average
Number of exercise Number of
options price options
I
fBRERE 118 fEREHE
‘000 HKS '000

T4 BT T

7,920 1.7 7,920
BE_Z_TER_FT-NAFTZA

=+—HLEE BEREZEERE
T EHER RN BRE -
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BieHESTE @
Exercise
Number of price*  Grant date
share options pershare of share option  Exercise period
Name of category of HERtE sh Rk
participants SEEWS KR B fIfEE* RHEH TfEHA
‘000 HKS
T BT
Directors £
Wang Fang 5 2,880 1.7 25-10-2016 25-10-2016 to 25-10-2026
25-10-2016%25-10-2026
2,160 1.7 25-10-2016 25-10-2017 to 25-10-2026
25-10-2017%25-10-2026
2,160 1.7 25-10-2016 25-10-2018 to 25-10-2026
25-10-2018%25-10-2026
7,200
Chan Sek Keung, Ringo B8 288 1.7 25-10-2016 25-10-2016 to 25-10-2026
25-10-2016%25-10-2026
216 1.7 25-10-2016 25-10-2017 to 25-10-2026
25-10-2017%25-10-2026
216 1.7 25-10-2016 25-10-2018 to 25-10-2026
25-10-2018%25-10-2026
720
7,920
3 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * BERGHE 2 1T BRI AR ST AR ST
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the A BRI B BT T AR -
Company's share capital.
No share option expense under the Scheme was recognised by BRE_ S _SEERKR_SE—H&E+_H
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. =+ —HItEE AEBEBERDZ 2

BN ZEAIBREMS
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2016 was estimated as at the
date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 0.00
Expected volatility (%) 59.63
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.56
Expected life of options (year) 10
Exercise multiple 2.393

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the year, the Company had 7,920,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 7,920,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of US$158,400 (equivalent to RMB1,105,000) (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 7,920,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 0.6% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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—ETEFE+—H=+—H

RERRtEStE (@
BE_Z—AE+-A=+—HILEE>

ERHUBDEEBREZAAEE TS
REREEHFRATEXNRA G LEE
PIT % U B8 R 1 BY A9 AR B AR 1 o T 3R 51 H 5t

HEXFTANEASR !

% B (%) 0.00
e HA R 12 (%) 59.63
i 3 B A 2 (%) 1.56
BERETERSER (F) 10
TEEH 2.393

BREZARERUBE=ZF2HERE
2> BARMRIRATAE S ERITTEE - T
B R BRI 1 R e BT R SR R BV R R
BEHRARDRIREBERER

THEAMEREBEREFEMNAQAEE

itio

RER RRBHEHFT,920,0001 B AE
ARIFZTEITE - REBEALQFRFHAR
ARE BHTEERTEBREDTES
BHEEINETTT,920,000 AR EEBERK
KB NPE 158,400t (BHER AR
1,105,0007T) GRIFRETTRAX) o

RYEZSEMBERERBP s %A
7,920,00017 FE R 15 R R R A 5T BT
HERZBT LB E#EITRNL0.6%-
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33. RESERVES 33. f#fA&
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements FEBRAFEERBEFEEZ#ESEK
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HEHNIEEMBRRFELOEEL8E 247
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 86 to 88 SHEmBEFRES

of the consolidated financial statements.

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 34, B S AIEIZHIRE R 2 o A K

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BT
Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non- ERBEAEAFEGIEG 2 AEENREAR
controlling interests are set out below: BIREFIERIIT ¢
2020 2019
ZEIEHF “B—hE
Percentage of equity interest held by non- JEZEHIERFEER B DL
controlling interests
Fortune Grace Fortune Grace 25% 25%

2020 2019
—EEHg “E—NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®T T ARBETTT
Loss for the year allocated to non- DT IEESIER
controlling interests FERBIE
Fortune Grace Fortune Grace (3,635) (3,569)

Accumulated balances of non-controlling ¥R & HHAFEEE ST =~
interests at the reporting date REtAEER
Fortune Grace Fortune Grace 49,445 53,269
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

34. BEAEAIFFERIEZZEDERM
B AT @

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are

before any inter-company eliminations:

TRRALAMBABDMBENBEE -
PR ERY A B R EHA < 51

2020 2019
—ETTH “E-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BT T
Revenue WA 469,116 484,611
Total expenses RS (483,655) (498,887)
Loss for the year FEBE (14,539) (14,276)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEHEEEEE (15,293) (13,869)
Current assets MEEE 372,064 389,239
Non-current assets JERENEE 108,098 135,586
Current liabilities MEIEE (262,242) (284,648)
Non-current liabilities IERBAaRE (20,138) (27,102)
Net cash flows (used in)/from & EE) (A Fiig
operating activities REMEFRE (4,645) 18,703
Net cash flows from/(used in) S EREFTE (FT )
investing activities REMEFRE 24,697 (28,544)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing ~ FAE &8 (FRA) Fi13
activities e MEFRE (15,853) 8,343
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash IR K IR HEWEMN,~
equivalents OmiZL) 28 4,199 (1,498)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . FERERERME

CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions () EXRERERS
There is no major non-cash transactions during the year HE_Z_ZHFIIFEUREAIFR
ended 2020. ERG
During the year ended 2019, the Group had non-cash BHE_ZE—NEFILEE AEBEHR
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities BFEHEE %‘ZﬁFB’J@ﬁW&ﬁEE’Z%ﬁ
of RMB3,136,000 and RMB3,136,000, respectively, in EENERSEAEDI A AR
respect of lease arrangements for buildings. 3,136,0007t 5% A R #53,136,0007T ©

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RAEEEFIEEZAERE
activities
2020 ZE-TF

Interest-

bearing

Lease Loans from bank and other
liabilities a director borrowings

RE—% stEERIK

HEaf EXZEW HftvfEwr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2020 AZZZERE—F—H 14,307 6,258 50,323
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ RIEREREEEZEE)
New bank and other borrowings HTIRERIT R E M AR = = 48,146
Repayments of bank and other BERTREMER

borrowings - - (57,447)
Increase in loans from a director RE—LEENEFEM - 789 -
Lease payments HREMT (7,341) - -
Total changes from financing HEREREELL

cash flows SE) (7,341) 789 (9,301)
Other changes: HimEg)
Interest expense FISHEZ 671 - -
Interest paid classified as NEAREHEREZ

operating cash flows E',T'JL?F'J (671) - -
Foreign exchange movements =) = (364) 186
At 31 December 2020 RZERIRE

+ZB=+—H 6,966 6,683 41,208
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

35. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . IZEBRERERME @
CASH FLOWS
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEFFIEEZEERES @

activities (continued)

2019 —E—NF

Interest-

Loans bearing

Lease from bank and other
liabilities adirector borrowings Coupon notes

RE

—RES AERTR
HE&R ZER HAhfER MERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARET T ARETTT

At 1 January 2019 R-B—nE—F—H 17,518 43,933 35,092 48,921

Changes from financing cash flows: BEREREEEZ

F

ﬂz
New bank and other borrowings L RIT R E MR = = 76,946 -
Repayments of bank and other EERTREMER
borrowings - - (62,255) -
Early redemption on couponnote ~ RRHEEF EZi - - - (49,323)
Decrease in a loan from director RE—REENETHLD = (37,806) = =
Lease payments B (6,347) - - -
Total changes from financing HERERELIRE
cash flows (6,367) (37,806) 14,691 (49,323)
Other changes: Hitgg) :
New leases MHE 3,136 - - -
Interest expense FERZ 966 - - -
Interest paid classified as operating  HEALEREREL
cash flows ENFE (966) - - -
Foreign exchange movements FE R &3 = 131 540 402
At31 December 2019 RIZB—NE
+=A=+-H 14,307 6,258 50,323 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020

—Z=
—=

35.

36.

37.

204

A —H=+—H

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(c) Total cash outflows for leases
The total cash outflows for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

KEREA
MEESRN

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group underwent several reorganisations, including
disposals of the entire interests in Honglin International
Limited and BB A BRER AR AE (Weihaishi Yubo
Wire & Cable Technology Co., Ltd.) during the year ended
31 December 2015 and the transfers of several subsidiaries
within the Group. The Group has conducted filings of the
reorganisations, if required, with the relevant tax authorities.
However, those reorganisations may be subject to further
investigations if initiated and requested by the relevant tax
authorities. The directors of the Company believe that the taxes
arising from those reorganisations have been properly dealt
with and provided for in the consolidated financial statements.
Given the complexity of relevant tax laws and regulations and
the diversified practice of respective tax authorities in the
PRC, there exists a possibility that tax authorities may levy and
collect additional taxes for those reorganisations.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's banking
facility, contract bidding and contract execution are included in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

36.

37.

. HERERERWE @

(c) HEZIRERH4EEE
FNGERERERNEBEZIRER
HABREWT -

2020 2019
—BCEF —ZT-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKET T
2,381 2,373

7,341 6,347

9,722 8,720

AR

FEEBETSRED BERBEZT
—hAE+ A=+ —HLEFEHELMKE
BRAERABDREETHABERENSAERA
5] 2 B 1 MR I A £ [ 9 4858 2 6 Y /B
AB - AEBEOHEBRFEREREA
(WAERE) - 2AM HEXFHEARBE
BRHER ZEEMHIEARTE TN
HE - FAABREFHERFEHEENR
HEAGREM B RENEDRIER R
1 o IS R EIARRI IR B A R R OE R EAE 1N
EERBERNEEZZBETE RHBER
WE S EERW R W EERIMA IR -

BERH
UAEEEEFERFZAERIRITRRE
BE - BREORGHATHBHNES
RIS 5E25



38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with its related parties during the year:

(a)

On 6 December 2017, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with Smoothly Global for an unsecured,
interest-free loan of HK$4,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,368,000). The maturity of the loan payable has
been extended to 6 December 2021 during the year ended
31 December 2020 and the loan payable was unsecured
and interest-free (2019: HK$4,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,576,000)).

Smoothly Global is 70% and 20% owned by Mr. Chan Sek
Keung, Ringo and Ms. Wang Fang respectively, they are
also the directors of the Company.

On 13 August 2018, the Group entered into a facility
agreement of HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB87,716,000) with a director of Company. As at
31 December 2020, the principal of HK$7,000,000
(equivalent to RMB5,894,000) (2019: HK$7,000,000
(equivalent to RMB6,258,000)) and interest payable of
HK$137,000 (equivalent to RMB115,000) (2019: Nil) were
outstanding under this facility. The outstanding balances
under this facility as at 31 December 2020 are unsecured,
bearing interest of 5% and repayable within one year
(2019: unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year). During the year ended 31 December 2020, interest
of HK$137,000 (equivalent to RMB115,000) was payable
to a director of the Company (2019: Nil), and is included
in “Finance costs” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FAE

B R M

31 December 2020
—ETEFE+—H=+—H

ELRHRAERS

REGMBREEME DA RENR

S ERNAEBBREBESE

(a)

E1T IR % :

A ZE—t+tEFE+ZANBH &R

£Smoothly GlobalFtEIEKIF R B
iéf#z. 000,000 (HHER AR
3,368,0007T) ;] M ERWE - #EZ
Z_EFF+_A=+—HILEFE &
NERBEREZZS_—F+AN
HIf BZENERABRERRR
8 (ZE—% : 4,000,000 7T FHE
P AER#3,576,0007T)) ©

Smoothly GlobalF #5758 5t 4 ke £ 75
D BERT0%K20%RE % > K%
BN NTESE-
RZE—NFENAB+Z=ZH &XE&E
EHEARTD —HESFTILMELE
E1%%100,000,000%5 5t (1B & X
AR#87,716,0007) c iR =ZE
EF+_B=+—H ZmMEB
ETFZ4%£7,000,00087T (BBER
AR#5 894,00057m) (ZE—H
£ :7,000,0007870 (FHER AR
6,258,0007T)) K FE(H E137,000%8
7T (FHER AR115,0007T) (ZF
—NF B HREE - RITZF
+ZB=+—H ZMEBEE~KE
BAERAEIEE 5%t B RBR—
FREE (CE—NIF: m%&?@ B

REBER—FREER) BHEZZ_Z
F+ZA=1+—HILEFE> L@ﬁﬁ:/&
B—%EEFEA137,0008 7T (FHE
PAR®115,0007t) (ZE—hHE:
) > ZMBES AGREERRN TR
B AIEER -
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

206

(b)

(continued)

On 24 December 2020, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,420,000) with a director of the Company. As
at 31 December 2020, HK$800,000 (equivalent to
RMB674,000) was outstanding under this loan facility
(2019: Nil). The outstanding balance under this loan
facility as at 31 December 2020 is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year (2019: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into a purchase agency agreement with a
related company. The commission fee paid to this related
company was charged based on the 5% of the purchase
amount. The charges are substantially in line with
comparable transaction in the market. The Group paid a
commission fee of RMB6,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB930,000).

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group's outstanding balances with its
related parties as at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

During the year, the Company did not identify any
personnel as key management other than the directors of
the Company. Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive's emoluments are included in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

ATETEF+ /A FUH AE
EHKAT —RERI LSRG ELE
FE1#%7:%10,000,000%8 7t GHE R AR
8,420,0007T) e IR B _ZT&E+_H
=+—H ZEXRFEEE 800,000
Bt EERARK674,0007T) MR
B2 (CE2E—NEFE . D) - RIZZZ
FE+ZA=+—H ZEFMEEE
TREZREGRARKR - REREAR
—EREER (CE—NIE HF) o

BHE_ - N\E+_B=+—HIL%
B AEERE—HREABTIIIRE
RERZ - ZNTFZAEATNMEE
B RIS EERI5% U EY - & A
HENABLERTZ A —H -8B E
TECEE+_A=+—HILEE"
FEBEL T HAEERAR6,0007T
(ZZ—Hh&E . AR¥930,0007T) ©

HRAE T 2 NMEEFRER

FERNRREPAREABREL ZREE
BRERGT 1B I 4 & M S ¥R R Y 5£28 5229
KEE

FEBRTZEEASHMN

FRBRERBVEEIN AT ILE
HAERNALTRIBEEE-EFXK
RETHASHMNZE—TFBHN
rrE MR MIEES



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. HENEASERMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REARZ AN EmM T ENKREEWT !
instruments as at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:
2020 —ETHF
Financial assets LTHEE

Financial asset

Financial at fair value

Financial assetsatfair  through other
assetsat  value through comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income

BonBE  BRAAEE

BEEREs  GABREN  SAHMZE
TRz EREE TMEE KnMNEMRE 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREFR  ARBTR  ARETR

Trade and bills receivables BIRZERIHR 193,173 - - 193,173
Financial assets included in ST FIE S HtFELR
prepayments, other HERHEMEEN
receivables and other assets THEE
8,807 = = 8,807
Loan receivables ElER 16,532 - - 16,532
Interest receivables FEUSH S 149 - - 149
Equity investment at fair value BARBES ABRZ
through profit or loss BARE = 999 = 999
Debt investment at fair value through /A AEEt A& Z
profit or loss BBKE - 13,055 - 13,055
Financial asset at fair value BARBESAHM
through other comprehensive SEABENEHEE
income = = 111,078 111,078
Pledged deposits BIEEER 6,090 - - 6,090
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 76,128 - - 76,128
300,879 14,054 111,078 426,011
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. KREHNBDEMTAE ®
(continued)
2020 (continued) “ETEF @
Financial liabilities EHER
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Fe i SR R S
SRRz &R G
RMB'000
ARBFT
Trade payables B S I =IE 161,709
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAE MBI RIE R EST
and accruals BEfRzeMaE 18,326
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st RIRTT R EMER 48,175
228,210

2 08 InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. KREHSDEMTHE @
(continued)
2019 —2—-hF
Financial assets THEE

Financial asset

Financial assets at fair value

Financial atfairvalue  through other
assets at through  comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income

BAnERE BAnERE

g SIS stARmE  AHMEZE
ik SREE THEE KalsHEE 45t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT ARETTT

Trade and bills receivables B o R EERET 210,280 - - 210,280
Financial assets included in STATRRIE N RAEUK

prepayments, other TIEREHMEER

receivables and other assets EREE 12,506 - - 12,506
Loan receivables et &R 30,947 - - 30,947
Interest receivables FEF S 343 - - 343
Equity investment at fair value BARBEFAERZ

through profit or loss BEKE = 1,249 = 1,249
Debt investment at fair value BARBESABRZ

through profit or loss BEKE = 13,856 = 13,856
Financial asset at fair value BAREE AHM

through other comprehensive SENENEREE

income = = 382,569 382,569
Pledged deposits BIEEER 31,018 - - 31,018
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 48,781 = = 48,781

333875 15,105 382,569 731,549
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. KREHNBDEMTAE ®
(continued)
2019 (continued) ZE-hE®
Financial liabilities EHER
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R E AL A
FEEC SRaE
RMB'000
ARHETTT
Trade payables B S I =IE 170,915
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAE MBI RIE R EST
and accruals ERzEMA%E 18,216
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st RIRTT R EMER 64,630
253761
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

40. THMTAZARBERAAEBES
iR
FEESHTE GEEESRAAEESEM
EERIN ZEEERAAMBENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
IRMEE AREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECBF "EBhE CBIEE B2NE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®BTRT AR®TR ARETR
Financial assets TREE
Equity investment at fairvalue ¥ AABEABRZ
through profit or loss BAKE 999 1,249 999 1,249
Debtinvestment at fairvalue ~ ¥EAAEBEAEBRY
through profit or loss BHKRE 13,055 13,856 13,055 13,856
Financial asset at fair value BRRBES AEM
through other comprehensive ~ ZERENEREE
income 111,078 382,569 111,078 382,569
125,132 397,674 125,132 397,674

The Group's corporate finance team is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to the chief executive officer. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and the
major inputs applied in the valuation which performed by
an independent professional valuer, if any. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief executive officer.

FEEBETHEEMBHESHERIA
BWARBESENEBRKERF BXEM
HHEEEARHER - NEREEMH BX
MHBESIMEMIAGBEEH RERANE
VEXGEMETZEHEENEZEZHAZE
A - HEEHBRERARME

211
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

40.

212

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, current financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, pledged deposits, loans receivables, interest
receivables, trade payables, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and the current financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss, representing an investment
in shares of a listed company in Hong Kong that the trading of
which has been suspended since October 2017, was measured
by valuation techniques of the guideline public company
method. The guideline public company method requires the
research of comparable companies' benchmark multiples and
selection of an appropriate multiple. In order to reflect the
latest financial performance of the listed company which the
Group invested in, the management have adopted the price to
sales ("P/S") ratio of the comparable companies.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

40.

ERMITAZARBERRAAEES

& &)

HERENGR REkREFEY BES
R B EUWGR ~ 5T ATR RRIR ~ L th UK
ERHEMEENRBTMEE CHERRE
PoRBWERBRAE EZENMRE
5t B ERIT R B M AR LA R 5t A B AR AR
BEREGFERANABTHREENANEE

HHEREERE TEHARZEFTANE
HAHAPR 84T o

RZE_ZTE+_BA=+—H BAAB
Bt ABRZRAKRE (B—EREB LT
NEZRHEBRE HE-_E—tE+HiE
BEEE) 2 ANBERISSIARAREZ
GEA A E IG5 AR AR EBEMRRE
OELERABZEEGE TEASHRS
HoARMAERREN EHARZRIA
HBYERE SEBERMOELLREAT
ZEMEEHE (TP/S)) EEXo



40.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment designated
as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income has been estimated using a summation method
with majority of component assets are valued by market-
based valuation technique based on assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as price to book (“P/B") multiple, price to earnings
("P/E") multiple, price to earnings before interest and taxes
("P/EBIT") multiple and enterprise value to sales ("EV/S")
multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is
then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size
differences between the comparable companies based on
company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted
multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of
the unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair
values, which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted debt investment are measured
by valuation techniques of binomial model using significant
unobservable market inputs including the credit spread and
short rate volatility.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.

B R M

31 December 2020
—ETEFE+—H=+—H

EMITAZAREBERAABES
iR @)
EEARAABESAHMEZEKRENS
MEBEEMNFELITRALENLAABEEIR
B IFR T RRHIBERTIANEIIFHR
REAFEANSBDEEUT R AELEM
BEAFETHENGH A ER G o BE
REESRBTE RE - BEEKRKIEE
EABELEBRARAR (A% UHEEE
BRI ELERAG T EBERAESEE W
B ELEEEEME (TP/BY) E8 EREEEF)

(TP/E)) fE8 BB ERATRF (TP/
EBIT)) EEA X EELLIHE (TEV/S)) &
HoEHUTMELERA TN EEBERNU
B EAE REEHEREARREE
EERBERMARE WIFERBESRAEL
BRABZBENREEZR) TR MR EHIE
BRIEEmRAKRENEERF 2 MUt
ENABE EFEFHE THRNESHMER
MENGEE A RES A A BERDER
REMEERENAAEBEERAESHY B
B BARSHARBENEE.

FLEFEHBRENAABEND R -ENE
ANEEDEZERERTABREHRHHA
Y (BECEREREBHANEES) 8-
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. EMIAZARBERAAEESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ) @
Fair value hierarchy RAEEEZER
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TREPLEMBEEHEZERNATHREEH
valuation of financial investments together with a quantitation ABBUERRZZEZZ2ER ST —NF
sensitivity analysis at 31 December 2020 and 2019: +TZA=+—BZEEHRKEDIF :
Valuation Unobservable Amount of Sensitivity of fair
Description technique input unobservable input value to the input
ARBEHEARE
i {41030 FABRBHE FABRRHAYE ZHRE
Equity investment at fairvalue  Guideline public company method Valuation multiple:
through profit or loss (Market approach)
BARBES BT B8 ARAEE (M%) AR
ZRAERE
- Price to sales 0.33(2019:0.28) 1% (2019: 1%) increase/

decrease in multiple
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
0.42% (2019: 0.27%)
—BRELLHEE 033 (ZE—N%F:0.28) SRS,/ H 1%
CE—NEF  1%)
REJANBELEN/

0.62%
(C2—NEF 1 0.27%)
Discount for lackof ~ 24.74% (2019: 19.16%) 1% (2019: 1%) increase/
marketability decrease in discount

would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by 0.55% (2019:
0.33%)

B MRREETE  2474% CE—AF 119.16%) BN/ H1%
(CE—NE 1 1%)

REJANBERD
1211N0.55%
(ZE—N%10.33%)
Debt investment at fair value  Binomial method (Income approach) Credit spread (%) 6.56% (2019:10.61%) 10% (2019: 10%)
through profit or loss increase/decrease in

spread would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by 0.90%/0.00%
(2019:1.53%/0.02%)
BANBES ABE ZIEAFE (RAE) FEEE(%) 6.56% (ZZ—F:10.61%) BEEM/HD10%
ZEBRE (C2—N%F 1 10%)
RERAREERD
/121110.90%,/0.00%
CE2—NF:
1.53%,/0.02%)

Short rate volatility 0.30% (2019: 0.59%) 10% (2019: 10%) increase/
(%) decrease in ratio would

result in decrease/
increase in fair value by
0.00% (2019: 0.00%)

KZHARI 2R E (%) 0.30% (ZE—H4 : 0.59%) BB,/ R0 10%
(ZZ—NF 1 10%)
BERNREE
b /18 110.00%
(CE—N%E 1 0.00%)
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation

Description technique

fiiit fhER

Financial asset at fair value

income approach)
BARBESARMDE ainE FEERBNEE
Wiz eRMEE WUmia AT EE)

Summation method (With majority of the
through other comprehensive  component assets valued by market

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.

Unobservable
input

FARRBHUE

Valuation multiple:
(ENELEE

- Price to book
-BRILEEEE
- Price to sales
B E

- Price to earnings

-EREER

- Price to earnings
before interest and
tax

-ﬁa‘;]%tt(‘%%ﬁ‘ﬁm
|

B R M

31 December 2020

—ETEFE+—H=+—H

EMIAZARBERAREES

& @
ARBEFH @

Amount of
unobservable input

FRRRAARE

0.69t01.69
(2019:0.95t0 1.44)

0.69%1.69
(ZE—NE : 0.95F1.44)

1.23t03.98
(2019 1.92 to 4.06)

1.23%3.98
(CB—hF: 1.9254.06)

N/A
(2019:13.21t029.37)

R

(CB—hF:1321529.37)

19.89
(2019:N/A)

19.89
CE—h&E: FER)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF F IR

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

ARBEHBARE
ZBEE

10% (2019: 10%) increase/
decrease in multiple
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
0.09% (2019 0. 05%)

EZIEm,/ 0% (C 2
—fE: 10%) R CEUN
SBEEN,F0.09%

(C2—NE 1 0.05%)

10% (2019: 10%) increase/
decrease in multiple
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
0.06% (2019:0. 01%)

EHIE,/BA10% (T
— N5 10%) BEHA
AEBIBM,/70.06%

(C2—NE0.01%)

N/A (2019: 10%) increase/
decrease in multiple
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
N/A (2019: 5.26%)

R,/ AL TER (C
T—HE 10%) 58
RARBEEM, D
TER (CE—NE!
5.26%)

10% (2019: N/A) increase/
decrease in multiple
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
0.00% (2019: N/A)

fEEUEm,/ W10% (2
—NE  AE) H¢§
HARBEEM, FHD
0.00% (ZE—H&E &
EH)
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M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020

s
—=

40.

216

A —H=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation

Description technique

fiit fhERZ

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

Unobservable
input

FARRBHE

- Enterprise value to
sales

-CEBELHE

Discount for lack of
marketability (%)

ﬁl(Z_F;]_ BB
%

Discount for lack of
control (%)

BRZ IR AT (%)

ERMITAZARBERRAAEES

& @

AREBEEFHK @

Amount of
unobservable input

FEBRAAYE

1.40
(2019: N/A)

1.40
CENE  TER)

22.57%
(2019: 18.25%)

22.57%
(ZZ—f1E 1 18.25%)

16.60%
(2019: 18.00%)

16.60%
(ZZ—1% 1 18.00%)

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input

ARBEHBARE
ZBREE

10% (2019: N/A) increase/
decrease in multiple
would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
9.83% (2019 N/A)

EEIEI,/ A% (CF
—NE: TLﬂ%) i
HANBEEM/HD
9.83% CE—NE:F
BA)

10% (2019: 10%)
increase/decrease in
discount would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by 12.91% (2019:
12.23%)

B,/ 0% (C
T— jﬁ 10%)#@
BA Ef/1Em
1291%( i NE:
12.23%)

10% (2019: 10%)
increase/decrease in
discount would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by 8.77% (2019:
2.88%)

IEEN,/ A% (T
—7141 10%) &R
SEERD/1E108.77%

(ot j'LE 2.88%)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. EMIAZARBERAAEESE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) & @)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NREEEZER @
The discount for lack of marketability represents the discounts Rz migmaEmEmE2HETAE
determined by the Group that market participants would take BEEERNGERIAEBEMEBEE ZITEER
into account when pricing the investments. EER
The valuation multiples represent the market multiples derived HEGHEIREAELLR AR (FZ) BH
from the comparable companies (peers) and were applied to e LERANSREENMFHES L
the financials of the financial assets to arrive the fair value. ERARBE
The discount for lack of control represents the amount by which TRZ BT RN RS (b R BR TR = £
the pro rata value of a non-controlling interest is less than the T B9 JE 42 1 48 7 BB 1B /D 72 12 61 4 2 LB 51
pro rata value of a controlling interest over which a business BENEEE

enterprise reflects lack of a control.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF F IR 2 1 7
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

218

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

Equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

As at 31 December 2019

Equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

RZBZEE
+ZR=+-8H

BAREBES ARG
BRE&RE

BAREBESARRH
BHRE

BASEES AR
2ERENEHEE

RIZE—NE
+=B=+—H

BAREBES ARG
BRE&RE

BAREBES ARG
BHERE

BASEES AR
2ERENEHEE

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

40.

Quoted prices in
active markets

(Level 1)

ERTHISHRE
(E14)
RMB'000
ARBTT

ERMITAZARBERRAAEES

& @
DAREBEFER @

TRITFEEERTIANAABEFE

FR

BAREEFENEE:

Fair values measurement using
ARBEFERA
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2)

BX BX
BLE FABE
BARE BARE
(824p) (834R)
RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARETR

(Level 3)

EH
RMB'000
ARBT T

- - 999 999
- - 13,055 13,055
B - 111,078 111,078
- 125,132 125,132
- 1,249 1,249
- 13,856 13,856
- 382,569 382,569
- 397,674 397,674




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy.

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

Equity investment at fair value through profit or loss

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

EMIAZARBERAABES
4R @)

ARBEFR @
KEE-B-BER-P—AL+A
ST—HLEFE ARBESHOBIR
HURR FIR 2 AR -

FRFIRAABESAENEFUT :

BRAnRBESABDNRERE

At 1 January nw—A—

Total unrealised losses recognised inthe  H4R& Emi’%ﬁ%ﬁ DY
consolidated statement of profit or loss R ETIRARER

Exchange realignment PR

At 31 December W+=-B=+—H

Debt investment at fair value through profit or loss

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
1,249 4,039
(188) (2,821)

(62) 31

999 1,249

BRARBESABENEHRE

At 1 January n—HA—H
Purchases BE
Interest F) 2

Total unrealised gain recognised in the ﬁfﬁ?é\?ﬁ 7% A FE SR RY
consolidated statement of profit or loss RERW T AREE

Exchange realignment E SR

At 31 December RN+—_B=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ABR¥TFIT ART T
13,856 -

- 12,980
(1,601) (794)
1,607 1,233

(807) 437

13,055 13,856

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF F IR 2 1 9



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5 ER R I SE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. TMTAZARBERIAEBES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) i @)
Equity investment at fair value through other BASREBESAREMZAKRZENRL
comprehensive income K’E
2020
—B_EfF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARMEFTT
At 1 January R—HB—H 382,569 612,939
Total unrealised losses recognised in other 3 E 2 E UL 7= R FESRRY
comprehensive income REIRET IR 4858 (271,491) (230,370)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 111,078 382,569

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 41. ARG EIEEEREE
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest- AEBNETEEMTEBEFRETRAE
bearing bank and other borrowings and cash and cash tMERUARRERRECEBY - ZEF TR
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments TEMNFEZEENDATERNEBEES
is to finance the Group's operations. The Group has various o AEEEZEHEMEMBEENSE A
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills MBS RBERKAR B2 R EREMR
receivables, trade and bills payables, which arise directly from HEEEAEEERESE -

its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the REELOBEFEN AEEB—ERRAE
Group's policy that trading in financial instruments shall be BETEMIARS o

undertaken with due care.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments REAEEEHTANFTFERBAFER
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and w SN R S EERBRAREN T B R -
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for EXTERNMEETE AR ERRAK
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. o BRABERIRU T o

2 2 O InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 41. MRS SIEEEREE @

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk = = Bz

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates AEBFFESNANEEFG RG> FEFT K
relates primarily to the Group's debt obligations in USS, RMB REBRNET A\RERHEEEZEER

and VND with floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest costs using a mix REBNBERDZRTANXIRZ A AT
of fixed and floating rate debts with respect to the prevailing EMZEEBENAECSEIENEMAE A&
interest rate environment. The Group mitigates the risk by EEERYBERMNEED R EREIRITE
monitoring closely the movements in interest rates and BMUEES R R - 455 B Em SR E A
reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The Group has not F =4 HA DU R P E B RO R = R o

used any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest

rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's TR AEBFRAIGEENER S AE
loss before tax and equity in response to changes in interest BET - ARBREEEFEBHHNNE
rates of the Group's floating rate debts in USS, RMB and VND 28 Fre BB ERT2) NBRE-

(with all other variables held constant).

Increase/
(decrease) in (Increase)/ (Decrease)/
interest rate decrease in increase in
basis points loss before tax equity*

FIREE BRILATRS 18 s
L (RO (&M ED GEL) /HEhn*

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTRT ARBTRT

2020 CECEF

USS debts ETEFR 100 (56) =

RMB debts AEEEES 100 (250) -

USS debts EITETS (100) 56 -

RMB debts AR AR (100) 250 -
@ Excluding retained profits * et R mT]

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 — 2 _ZF F IR 2 2 1
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31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

4. MRS EEREREBR @

AR E bR ()

Increase/

(decrease) in (Increase)/ (Decrease)/
interest rate decrease in increase in
basis points  loss before tax equity*

HIES-S FR% B E5 18 i

FFH R GEm) R GRi) g

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARETFTT ARHF T
2019 “E—hEF
USS debts ETTETE 100 (28) -
RMB debts AREBES 100 (195) -
VND debts B AR 100 (115) =
USS debts EITER (100) 28 -
RMB debts ARBET (100) 195 =
VND debts M EER (100) 115 -
3 Excluding retained profits * et R ARG A
Foreign currency risk BE =& [& gz

227

The Group's companies operated in different locations with
most of the transactions settled in local currency and did not
have significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
head of credit control.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

ARBHATNTEAMEEE ABHR
5 LU B o 5 4 B+ 1 4 0 P
BE R E AR

EEEE
AEREERRIMNEEBRENE =1E
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum

exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,

which is mainly based on past due information unless other

information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-

end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

Trade and bills receivables*
Loan receivables
- Doubtful***
Loan receivables
- In default****
Finance lease receivable**
Financial assets included in
prepayments, other
receivables and other assets
- Normal**
Pledged deposits
- Not yet past due
Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

EVES Tl e
FEWE

_E_";i***
FEWE

7%%@****

HEREERRE
STATRTRE  EAE U

TMERHEMEER

_E"%"**
BHEAER

— EARAH
RERRESEY

— EARAH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020

—ETEFE+—H=+—H

41. BEAMEEBERBE @

EERARE (@
REEBEERERERTE

TR ENEEBEEBRNEERE
hEBEERREARE BT E2LUaMHER
HEE FIFETRBAMNE IO EZRNIAER
ZHERFEMER) » URR+ZA=+—
HRNERBEROE 2IEERTHEE
BYABARE(E

R-E—ZFEF+—_H=4+—H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A FaH
FEER Bt RHRAEREEEH
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
A F2 F3R fg1E3A st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT AREBFTR ARBTR ARETR
= - = 207,764 207,764
= 14,293 = = 14,293
= = 1,578 = 1,578
3913 = = = 31013
9,027 = = = 9,027
6,090 = = = 6,090
76,128 = = = 76,128
95,158 14,293 1,578 207,764 324,193
ANNUALREPORT2020 —E=25% /)3
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MR MEE

31 December 2020
—EEFEf—H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Trade and bills receivables*

Loan receivables
- Normal**
Finance lease receivable
- Normal**
Financial assets included in

prepayments, other receivables

and other assets
- Normal**
Pledged deposits
- Not yet past due
Cashand cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

EERES e
ERER
_E"‘%"**
RMERERKRE
_E"‘%"**
SR RIE  EfthELR
MERAMEEN
THEE
_E"‘%"**
BHERER
— AR
BERAEFEY
— AR

2 2 4 InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

41. HEEAEEEEERBER @

EERR (@

RERBEARERFERERSTE ()

R_E—NF+_H=+—H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{85 725
FERE AOEARRENEEER
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
1% E2R F3R (7 Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AREBTT ARETn ARETR  ARETR
S = = 219,672 219,672
25,643 - - - 25,643
5,900 - - - 5,900
12,726 - - - 12,726
31,018 - - - 31,018
48,781 - - - 48,781
124,068 - - 219,672 343,740




41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

*

*%

*k%

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets to which
the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the loan receivables, finance lease
receivables, interest receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. While the credit
quality of the loan receivables is considered to be “doubtful”
since it had a significant increase in credit risk.

There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition through information developed internally or external
resources.

**** There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

MHEREREEERKREER @

EERE @
REBBEAERFAEERSTE (E)

*

*%

*kk

MAERERRERCENES RZERE
BRMENEEMS  REZFEENE
FHR B N iR & B B R R I 5E21

W ER B EAERERRIE  EIRF S
STATE IR HfEWRIE R B th & &=
B R E E RS 5 m R A R I
BENXAERMEEBNSRIAEEERR
RRERMISRER ER) - DRIEIRER
HNIEEmERRRBBIE

BRI E B PR E R > )
HRERLU (S ERBAIERN-

ek AR BAAZEEBNREERE.

225
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41.

226

A —H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Changes in the gross carrying amount of loan receivables that

contributed to changes in loss allowances were as follows:

41.

MHEREEEBRKRER @
EERR (@
REBIENASEZRRERBRE SRS
ok x&ZEﬂE%’*ﬁﬁ%@JQDT

Lifetime
ECL, Lifetime
12 months non-credit ECL,
ECLs impaired  credit-impaire
BrERMR AoERAR
+Z@EA8 EETE =53
RHGEEHE st
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Balance as at 1 January R—B—Rz &8 25,643 - - 25,643
Transfer to lifetime ECL, BAFHNEREER
non-creditimpaired BiE (LEEERE) (14,293) 14,293 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BATHRNBEHREE
credit impaired 1 (EEHE) (7,578) = 7,578 -
Derecognition BUHRERR (2,408) = = (2,408)
Exchange realignment fEREE (1,364) - - (1,364)
Balance as at 31 December R+ZBA=+—RZ#&H - 14,293 7,578 21,871

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.

Having considered the increase in the risk of default by certain
borrowers in respect of the repayments of loan receivables
of the Group and the decrease in the chance for the Group to
recover such loan receivables due to further deterioration in
the global economy, the Group identified that the credit risk
of loan receivables have increased significantly. As the result,
the Group has recognised impairment of loan receivables
of RMB14,293,000 which is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

In December 2020, a loan receivable of RMB7,578,000 is fully
impaired due to the debtor was not able to settled the debts.
The Group considered to start the arbitration proceedings. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that this debt is

credit-impaired and the outstanding amount is fully impaired.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

EREAEEFEERE S EWTIEmESE
NEERBNE— TP EEHE  HRiGEE
SR TMIEE21 o

REBHTEFAREERSEBERER
BYEA R BRIG A0 > LA K IR 2 BRAS 75 8 —
TR AEEKRDZERRERNEKS
B REBBERERERNEERRE
FEE FFo At AEBRLE N E AR
BEAE®14,293,00050  EBETDZAEZR
BRI ERARNEE2

R_E_ZTHF+ R AEBARLFE
B EWERARKT,578,000cBIEE
HRE ANEBEEBBETREF AQF
BEERA 2BEEBEERERREEN
BEREURE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 41. BAFEEGEIEEERBE @)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk e En 4 B

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests with the board
of directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. Having considered the
forthcoming business plan, the Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate banking facilities and continuously
monitoring working capital forecast and actual cash flows.
Should there be any significant change in banking facilities
available, the Group will adjust the working capital forecast and
business plan accordingly to maintain its liquidity.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the

agreed repayment terms.

FEEMBAEEERPESRI TAEE
ESRRNER - LBETREZEEMITE
MEREE (PN E 5 EUWRIE) BIZIHH
MR AR S ERE M

MBERBNERREEREARNESTTA
E-AADEFERTEENEH PR
ETRUBZENRIERBREEERUK
MMEERERE KEBHRBRZEERE
FEBRMEFTERTREAEEESE
ETTHARERFEERE BUBERD
MEE - HARNHERRITHEHREM
EXEH rEEREBMAREEESS
RARASE SR MR EOREN M -

TREMRBEHEERRRERZAERIF
TEEMARZERTEOEHA

Less than
On demand 3months 3 to 12 months Over 1 year Total
REREE EAUT 3Z12(88 1E0E &gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AER¥ETT
Trade payables BREMSE 36,967 60,531 64,186 25 161,709
Financial liabilities included in STAEMBENRIER
other payables and accruals A ERZSHERE 17,048 1,278 - - 18,326
Lease liabilities HEas - 1,017 4,183 2,055 7,315
Interest-bearing bank and s ERTREMAER
other borrowings (FEAERMN
(excluding lease liabilities) - 11,810 29,624 - 41,434
54,015 74,696 97,993 2,080 228,784
ANNUALREPORT2020 =E==55% 2/ /
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  41.
POLICIES (continued)

MHEREEEBRKRER @

228

Liquidity risk (continued) mENE RS (@)
Less than
On demand 3months 3 to 12 months QOver 1year Total
HEREER KEISIVES 3E12(EH 1ENE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBETFTT NS AEETFTT NS ARETTT
Trade payables BoEfFE 49,345 65,596 55,944 30 170,915
Financial liabilities included in st AEMBARIER
other payables and accruals A ERZSRER 5,221 484 12,51 - 18,216
Lease liabilities nEaE - 1,532 6,481 7314 15,327
Interest-bearing bank and sHERTREAMBER
other borrowings (FHESERIN
(excluding lease liabilities) = 14,367 37,008 = 51,375
54,566 81,979 111,944 7,344 255,833
Capital management EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
businesses and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

FEREFAEENTEZERERESEER
UREREERANREEEUREFREN
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RAAGe
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42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
interest-bearing liabilities divided by the total assets. The

gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT MIEE

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

41. BEAMEEBERBE @

BARERE @®

AEBRAERGRLEX GGt EEERR
MUMBEEABZILE) BHEER - REHR
WEXRSBEERMT :

follows:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—TIEHF —ENEF
+ZA=+—H +=B=+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5 &2 $817 K ELfth & =x 48,175 64,630
Total assets HEE 720,470 1,109,904
Gearing ratio BARAME/HER 6.7% 5.8%

IMPACT OF NOVEL CORONAVIRUS OUTBREAKTO
THE GROUP

The Group applied for a government support program
introduced in response to the global pandemic. Included in
profit or loss is RMB144,000 (2019: Nil) of government grants
obtained relating to supporting the payroll of the Group's
employees. The Group has recorded this government grant in
other income and gains. The Group had to commit to spending
the assistance on payroll expenses, and not reducing employee
head count below prescribed levels for a specified period
of time. The Group does not have any unfulfilled obligations
relating to this program.

42. HEERFSREHAERNTE

HEHRNEE > AEERFBAEEMS
st8 - AV BUF AR5 A R #144,0005T (&
T-NF B FARD ABERAFTRER
BT TENBFMA - AERERZBTE
Bhst AEMUR A R W o o A< 55 B B KGR 5%
BREANTES N R EHAAIRKET
ANBUR D EFRTE KT LA o 25 [ 3 FEAE A
Bt R B REITES
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

230

(a)

On 18 March 2021, the Company entered into a second
supplemental subscription agreement, pursuant to which
the maturity date of the debt investment is extended to 19
June 2021. Details of the extension have been set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 18 March 2021.

On 25 March 2021, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to sell InvesTech Finance
(International) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, at
a consideration of HK$16,000,000. The Disposal Group is
principally engaged in money lending business in Hong
Kong. Details of the Disposal Transaction have been set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 25 March
2021. The Disposal Transaction has been completed on
30 March 2021, and upon such completion, the Disposal
Group ceases to be the subsidiaries of the Company.
Accordingly, the financial results of the Disposal Group
cease to be consolidated into those of the Group.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

43. I{REHR

(a)

EE ]
RIE2EZ—F=A+/N\H > &xAF:5]
UE_MBErRTEHR BIL B
KRENIRHIERE S - —F 8
+H B LR ZFIBEH N AR E HE
RZE_—F=A+NBHHAE-

RIEZ—F=AZ+HH &AAF
S EBEWmZE B AR BB EH
BEEEEARRFMNE RS InvesTech
Finance (International) Limited > 1t
E7%16,000,0008 cc- HEEFRETE
REBRERNEER HEIRZF
BENRAAREHAAR T —F=8
TH+HRHZRAG HERZERZE
——F=B=+HREM REKE"
HEERRBEREAABZHEBAT
At HEEENMBEETIBHA
REBMBEES-



COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44,

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

Equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Net assets
EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves (note)

Total equity

B R M

31 December 2020
CECEFFH=A—H

AT RFBFRRR

BERAARBNREMARNUBRNENE
=3I

2020 2019

—EBTH —E-NF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFTT
ERBEE
N NGRS = 335,460 408,460
BB B EARRR 335,460 408,460
TRENE E
FE(TRRIE ~ HAth U IE K
Hth&EE 167 211
BARBESAEEZ
AL E 999 1,249
BAREEFABRZ
BHERE 13,055 13,856
FEU KB A B IE 74,692 418,400
REMRIREFEY 4b 492
BB E LR 88,957 434,208
mEafE
NN EYNCIE R 6,567 6,795
HMEARIE R ESE R 7,487 6,878
FEF TR 5,996 6,007
mENE EAERE 20,050 19,680
TENRE E 68,907 414,528
HWEERTEAR

404,367 822,988
FEE 404,367 822,988
e
BETRAE 188,710 188,710
fEE (e 215,657 634,278
TR 4EEE 404,367 822,988
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At1January 2019 RZZ—NF—A—H

FEFRREEFRER

Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the year
Issue of shares BITRM
Share issue expenses b
At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NE
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—-HE
ZZZZT5-FA—H
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FERSER 2 EHEEE
loss for the year
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+ZRA=+-H

bh. EATIMRBRAR @
sz :
RABERZBET ¢
Foreign
Share currency
Share option Capital  translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve loss Total
RIVEE BREGRE BAf#E ER S REtEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT ARBTn ARBTR ARETR ARETE:
625,495 6,304 106,715 (605) (42,075) 695,834
= = = 60,052 (121,125) (61,073)
652 = = = = 652
(1,135) = = = = (1,135)
625,012 6,304 106,715 59,447 (163,200) 634,278
= = = (6,284) (612,337) (418,621)
625,012 6,304 106,715 53,163 (575,537) 215,657
45. #HERSMBFRR

45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

232

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2021.

InvesTech Holdings Limited & ;=R B R A F

EEgRN T _—F=RA=+—H#ttER
BRENER GRSV BRK-
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